
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

Venue: Town Hall, 
Moorgate Street, 
Rotherham. S60  2TH

Date: Wednesday, 11th March, 2020

Time: 9.00 a.m.

A G E N D A

1. To determine if the following matters are to be considered under the categories 
suggested in accordance with Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government 
Act 1972 

2. To determine any item(s) which the Chairman is of the opinion should be 
considered later in the agenda as a matter of urgency. 

3. Apologies for absence 

4. Declarations of Interest 

5. Questions from members of the public and the press 

6. Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 1 - 11)

Delivery of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy

7. Autism Strategy - Update (Pages 12 - 25)
Anne Marie Lubanski, RMBC, to present an update

8. Rotherham Loneliness Action Plan 2020 - 2022 (Pages 26 - 51)
Ruth Fletcher-Brown, Public Health, to present the final version for 
endorsement

9. Integrated Care Partnership Place Plan 2020-2022 (Pages 52 - 133)
Sharon Kemp, RMBC, and Chris Edwards, RCCG, to present final version for 
endorsement

 



Key Developments

10. Carers Framework for the Future 2020-21 (Pages 134 - 142)
Anne Marie Lubanski, RMBC - Update from a workshop session to develop the 
plan to improving the health and wellbeing of carers

11. NHS Operational Planning and Contract Guidance 2020/21 (Pages 143 - 156)
Chris Edwards, RCCG - Presentation on the planning and contract guidance 
for the NHS Long Term Plan

12. Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment - Update 
Terri Roche, Public Health

Board Development

13. Terms of Reference (Pages 157 - 163)
Annual refresh of the Terms of Reference

Board Assurance

14. Issues escalated from ICP Place Board 

For Information

15. Integrated Care Partnership Place Board Minutes (Pages 164 - 168)

16. ICP Place Plan Q3 Performance (Pages 169 - 191)

17. Date and time of next meeting 
Wednesday, 10th June, 2020, commencing at 9.00 a.m., Oak House, Bramley



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 22/01/20

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
22nd January, 2020

Present:-
Councillor David Roche Cabinet Member, Adult Social Care and Health

(in the Chair)
Ian Atkinson Rotherham CCG
Tony Clabby Health Watch Rotherham

(representing Chris Edwards)
Phyllis Cole NHS England (representing Carole Lavelle)
Councillor Rob Elliott Health Select Commission
Sally Hodges Interim Strategic Director, Children and Young 

Peoples’ Services
Shafiq Hussain VAR
Viviennie Knight TRFT (representing Louise Barnett)
Terrie Roche Director of Public Health
Kathryn Singh RDASH
Paul Woodcock Strategic Director, Regeneration and Environment

Report Presenters:-
Councillor Allen Cabinet Member, Cleaner Greener Communities
Ruth Fletcher-Brown Public Health Analyst
Jackie Mould Assistant Director, Performance, Intelligence and

Improvement
Bev Pepperdine Performance Assurance Manager

Also Present:-
Lydia George RCCG
Gavin Jones South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Service
Becky Woolley Policy and Partnerships Officer, RMBC

Apologies for absence were received from Louise Barnett (TRFT), Richard Cullen 
(RCCG), Chris Edwards (RCCG), Sharon Kemp (RMBC), Carole Lavelle (NHS 
England), Anne Marie Lubanski (RMBC) and Councillor Mallinder. 

63.   VENUE HOST 

The Chair formally thanked Wentworth Woodhouse for allowing the Board 
to meet at their venue.

64.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no Declarations of Interest made at the meeting.

65.   QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND THE PRESS 

There were no members of the public and the press present at the 
meeting.

Page 1 Agenda Item 6



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 22/01/20

66.   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

The minutes of the previous meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board 
were considered.

Resolved:-  That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 20th 
November, 2019, be approved as a correct record.

Arising from Minute No. 55 (South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Integrated 
Care System Strategy 5 Year Plans), it was noted that the regional plan 
had been submitted and feedback awaited from NHS England.

67.   COMMUNICATIONS 

Ken Dolan
The Chair reported that Ken Dolan, Save Our NHS, had sadly recently 
passed away.

Louise Barnett, Chief Executive, TRFT
The Chair formally thanked Louise for all her support to the Health and 
Wellbeing Board and wished her well in her future employment.

Tony Clabby
This was Tony’s last meeting as from April Healthwatch Rotherham would 
be operated by the Citizens Advice Bureau.

The Chair formally thanked Tony for his contributions and input to the 
work of the Board.

68.   ROTHERHAM LONELINESS ACTION PLAN 2020-2022 

Ruth Fletcher-Brown, Public Health Specialist, presented the draft 
Loneliness Action Plan 2020-2022 for consultation.

Loneliness was a priority within the Health and Wellbeing Board Strategy 
(Aim 4) and a priority within the refreshed Place Plan.  Loneliness could 
fluctuate over the life course and most people at some point in their life 
would experience loneliness.

In order to tackle loneliness and promote good social connections, a 
response was required from individuals, communities, statutory partners, 
voluntary and community sector and local businesses.  Actions to tackle 
loneliness could be very simple and, in many cases, low cost building on 
local assets.

The final action plan would be submitted to the Board in March with the 
Better Mental Health For All Group to oversee the implementation of the 
Loneliness Action Plan.  Bimonthly updates would be submitted to the 
Mental Health and Learning Disability Transformation Group, quarterly 
updates to the Place Board and annual updates to the Board.

Page 2



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 22/01/20

Discussion ensued with the following issues raised/clarified:-

 The term “connecting” was the terminology being used
 The 5 themes of the 5 Ways to Wellbeing Campaign, which tied into 

Loneliness,  were to be used 
 At a meeting with the ICP Communications Team, it had been agreed 

that the Loneliness initiative was to be one of the 3 initiatives taken 
forward

 Loneliness did not just affect the elderly
 A needs assessment was required to inform the action plan
 Loneliness would be referenced within the Joint Strategic Needs 

Assessment and included within Making Every Contact Count training
 The consultation would be going out to partners with the final report 

submitted to the Board in March
 Intention to work with the new Primary Care Network Link Workers
 Certain Ward Plans showed that loneliness was an issue
 There were over 50 locations in the Borough that could hold activities
 A number of fire stations were undergoing refurbishment with the 

intention of providing community facilities
 It was hoped that there would be a Public Health Outcome Framework 

Measurement for loneliness by the end of the year to enable 
evaluation and evidence base

 The developing Health and Wellbeing Board website would be able to 
facilitate links to the key themes of loneliness as well as a link to 
Gismo

Resolved:-  (1)  That the draft Rotherham Loneliness Action Plan 2020-
2022 be noted.

(2)  That partners share the draft Action Plan within their organisation and 
feedback any comments thereon.

(3)  That the final version of the Action Plan be submitted to the Board’s 
March meeting.
ACTION:-  Ruth Fletcher-Brown/All Board Members

69.   VOICE OF THE CHILD - ROTHERHAM LIFESTYLE SURVEY 2019 

Bev Pepperdine, Performance Assurance Manager presented the 
outcome of the Voice of the Child Lifestyle Survey 2019 with the aid of a 
powerpoint presentation

The Lifestyle Survey was an annual survey open to pupils in Y7 and Y10.  
It captured the voice of children and young people and aimed to highlight 
the results to support the allocation of resources to improve the health of 
children and young people as well as providing a baseline for monitoring 
the impact of services provided to improve health and wellbeing. The 
survey enabled benchmarking and comparison between other areas, 

Page 3



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 22/01/20

provide information that could be used to plan resources and shape 
curriculums and highlight areas to explore further in terms of health 
inequalities.

The presentation illustrated the trends:-

What is Working Well 

 More children and young people said they were eating the 
recommended portions of fruit and vegetables

 Less children said they would choose to drink high sugar drinks and 
high energy drinks

 More young people were doing regular exercise
 Young people said that safety around the Rotherham bus and train 

stations and the town centre had improved
 There was less bullying
 Less young people identified themselves as a young carer
 Those that identified themselves as young carers felt more confident 

that they could continue with further education
 Less were smoking regular cigarettes
 Less had tried alcohol
 More young people had received education on child sexual 

exploitation
 Less Year 10 young people said they had had sexual intercourse

What areas are we Worried About

 More young people said they had a mental health diagnosis and more 
felt that their mental health was poor

 Less had said they were visiting their dentist on a 6 monthly basis
 Less had said they were drinking the recommended amount of water 

each day
 More young people were skipping lunch
 Less felt their weight was okay
 More felt they had no-one to talk to
 There was an increase in the number of young carers who said that 

they had struggles
 Less had said their home was a smoke free home
 More had said they had tried an electronic cigarette
 Although slightly less had said they had tried drugs, the types of drugs 

they were trying were the harder type of drugs and the frequency of 
drug use had increased

 More Year 10 pupils said they had had sex after drugs or alcohol use
 More Year 10 pupils said they did not use contraception

Page 4



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 22/01/20

What are we Worried About
 2019 – 10.6% of young people said they had a diagnosis of a mental 

health condition compared to 5% in 2015
 2019 Year 7 – 8.3% rated their mental health as poor compared to 5% 

in 2017
 2019 Year 10 – 17.5% rated their mental health as poor compared to 

12% in 2017
 2019 – 4% (145) of young people said they would not have anyone 

they could talk to if they had a problem compared to 3.4% (90) in 
2016

 CAMHS Service – 2019 increase in the volume of referrals to support 
young people with their mental health

Each school would receive their own confidential results to enable 
comparisons to be made to the Borough-wide results that could be used 
to plan resources and shape curriculums. 

Partners received highlight reports and there was an expectation they 
would provide feedback on the actions taken and the impact thereof and 
planned actions for the future

Discussion ensued with the following issues raised/clarified:-

 12 out of the 16 schools had participated in the survey; 3 of the 4 non-
participators were different to those of last year

 Work was taking place regionally across South Yorkshire and the 
Humber on producing a bank of questions to enable bench marking to 
take place

 The outcomes informed the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
 Clarification required as to the exact percentage increase, if any, of 

Autism.  However, CAMHS had seen a huge increase in the number 
of referrals largely from schools

 Was it acceptable that the schools’ information was confidential?
 The CAMHS’ transformation plan was about promoting mental health 

and getting the appropriate support/help

Resolved:-  (1)  That the report be noted.

(2)  That Health and Wellbeing Strategy leads and sponsors consider the 
issues of the report relevant to their particular Aim and Joint Strategic 
Needs Assessment.
ACTION:-  Becky Woolley/all Aim leads and sponsors
(After the meeting the following information was supplied:-

3.3 Health – Disabilities
Pupils were asked if they had a diagnosed long term illness, health 
problem, disability or medical condition.  In 2019 22% (902) of pupils said 
they had a diagnosed condition.  This is 6% increase from 2015 when 
overall 16% (496) of pupils said they had a diagnosed medical condition.

Page 5



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 22/01/20

2019 – Out of the 902 pupils who said they have a diagnosed medical 
condition, the 3 main medical conditions are:

Medical 
Condition

2019 out of 902 with 
diagnosed condition

2019 out of 4091 cohort 
of young people

Asthma, 
Breathing & 
Fatigue

24.7% (223) 5.45% (223)

Autism 12.1% (109) 2.66% (109)
Mental Health 10.6% (96) 2.35% (96)

I hope this clarifies the data a little clearer, therefore this shows the % to 
be on par with the national information that was quoted.)

70.   SPOTLIGHT: CLIMATE CHANGE 

Councillor Allen, Cabinet Member for Cleaner Greener Communities, 
supported by Jackie Mould, Head of Service, Performance, Intelligence 
and Improvement, gave the following powerpoint presentation:-

Climate Emergency
 State of the UK climate report 2017 – warming climate, rising sea 

levels and increased weather variability/extremes all expected to 
continue in the future; necessitates a state of “climate emergency”

 IPCC Special Report on Global Warming (2018) recommends 12 
years to make drastic action against climate change

 Government target date of 2050 for Britain to produce “net zero 
emissions”

 RMBC recent reductions of carbon emissions by 3% per year (fifth 
greatest reductions over the past decade)

 Pressure is mounting to take further action within the context of 
central government targets, increased direct action (and other forms 
of participation) from citizens and the real effects of climate change 
e.g. recent floods

Rotherham Climate Emergency Motion
The Council declared a climate emergency in October 2019 and resolved 
to:
 Propose an informed target for the Council’s carbon reduction by 

2025
 Develop a “Carbon Action Plan” towards these goals
 Promote the strategy and engage with community, public and 

business
 Lobby government for additional resources to support this strategy
 Produce an annual Rotherham Climate Emergency progress report
 Enlist support from partner organisations across Rotherham
 Require all future Cabinet reports to include Climate Change Impact 

Assessments

Page 6



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 22/01/20

Climate Emergency:  Key Issues
Scope
 The scope of the action plan should, in the first instance, focus on 

direct emissions from Council activities (including contractors) and 
emissions associated with the Council’s energy consumption.  
Emissions associated with other items and commodities that the 
Council consumes may be considered at a later point

Proposed Target
 The emergent action plan has, at this stage, 2 concurrent focuses:-

RMBC: Council’s carbon emissions to be a net zero by 2030
Rotherham:  Borough-wide carbon emissions to be at net zero by 
2040

 The purpose of dual goals is to recognise the Borough’s carbon 
budgets as identified by experts at the Tyndall centre, as well as to 
recognise the need for the Council to lead by example in securing 
commitments and pledges from other organisations

Creating the Action Plan
 Considerations must be made for both mitigation and adaption 

measure
 Actions must be based on scientific evidence as well as political, 

economic and social reality.  Examples of best practice nationally and 
internally should be followed

 Proposed themes – energy, transport, waste, built and natural 
environment, engagement, influence

Theme:  Energy
Interventions being considered include:-
 Staff energy use/behaviours to be addressed with awareness 

campaign and targeted training
 Energy efficiency addressed through surveying operational sites, 

identifying specific energy efficiency upgrades
 Exploring alternative renewal energy sources

Theme:  Housing
Interventions being considered include:-
 Tackling Council housing emissions directly through retrofitting low 

carbon heating and insulation systems.  Estimates show the cost of 
this would be cost neutral after 20-30 years

 Building all new Council housing to Passivehaus standards or similar 
– reducing the need for heating

 Retrofits for private housing which could be supported through 
matched loans, with savings-based repayments similar to Council 
housing recommendation (approximately 10-20 year cost recovery)

 Investigate strengthening enforcement of minimum energy efficiency 
standards in rented private housing

 Community energy switching scheme (cost neutral)
 Development of community energy sector within Rotherham

Page 7



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 22/01/20

Theme:  Transport
Interventions being considered include:-
 Fleet emissions addressed by gradual electric conversion (replacing 

vehicles as decommissioned)
 Grey fleet emissions addressed by attempting to reduce in-house car 

use and promote more sustainable transport
 Working in partnership with transport partnerships and the City 

Region to support more and better public transport
 Using licensing to encourage EV conversion in taxi firms (currently 

under consultation as part of taxi licensing consultation)
 Expanding of EV charging infrastructure
 Encourage cycling and walking

Theme:  Waste
Interventions being considered include:-
 Waste Services and processing provided for operational buildings 

currently under investigation
 Household waste is currently managed as part of BDR Partnership 

with Doncaster and Barnsley Councils.  Emission reduction is already 
a priority here.  Best course of action is to review BDR terms with the 
view of further improving waste management and carbon reduction 
from waste

Theme:  Built and Natural Environment
Interventions being considered include:-
 Measurement and monitoring

Acquire accurate measurement of Borough-wide tree cover and 
carbon sequestration capacity (i-tree report; approximate cost of 
£10,000)
Begin to require developers make emission statements as part of 
planning applications and ensure emissions associated with planning 
are monitored as developments progress
Ensure emission data associated with Council construction is 
obtained through YORBuild2 or other frameworks

 Sustainable planning
At next available opportunity review Local Plan and land-use planning 
with prioritisation of emission reduction
Co-produce Strategic Regeneration Frameworks with developers
Use Section 106 Agreements to require developers that developers 
pay into a carbon offset fund including financial value for:
Emissions “naturally” offset in a development
Replacement of green infrastructure lost if not replaceable on-site

 Carbon sequestration
Increase tree cover by allocating planning budget to offset significant 
amount of trees being lost
Employ dedicating Planting Officer responsible for planting initiatives 
and surveying urban and woodland areas for planting

Page 8



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 22/01/20

Theme:  Influence
The aim is
 To encourage commitment to climate action from partners, suppliers, 

residents and businesses operating in Rotherham
 Work with partners through the RTP to secure commitment and 

develop innovative and realistic solutions
 Work with the Sheffield City Region to deliver City Region carbon 

emission targets and secure investment for climate actions
 Strengthen and build public-private partnerships to offset emissions 

typically associated with economic growth
 Lobby Central Government for support and resources and to influence 

national policy agenda
 Collaborate with the third sector and community sector to building 

community involvement

Engagement
The aim is to develop an effective public engagement and involvement 
strategy.  This will include:
 Developing a communications strategy to promote the action plan to 

the public and enlist support and involvement
 A key priority is Engagement and involvement from young people 

across the Borough
 Staff training and communication including staff suggestion schemes
 Engagement and community action through the Thriving 

Neighbourhoods model
 Develop partnerships with expert/scientific groups and communities

Principles
 The climate action plan aims to work to principles of sustainable 

development
 This means that any climate actions should contribute to the triple 

bottom line of human wellbeing/social equity, economic 
growth/development and environmental protection

 The action plan engages with the triple bottom line seeking 
opportunities to integrate climate protection with long term goals of 
economic growth and human wellbeing

Discussion ensued with the following issues raised/clarified;-

 Air pollution was one of the NHS national priorities
 Inclusion within the Place Plan
 All Cabinet report templates were to include a section on the impact of 

climate change
 There would be a series of events encouraging partners to take part
 The Social Value Charter was to be considered by the RTP at its next 

meeting.  Within the Council Policy carbon reduction was one of the 
measures of which contractors had to demonstrate as part of their 
added value

Page 9



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 22/01/20

 A Climate Change Charter was worth exploring but was outside the 
principles of the action plan; it was down to each organisation to work 
out what they wanted to do towards those principles

Councillor Allen was thanked for her presentation.

Resolved:-  That the presentation be noted.

71.   ADDITIONAL FACTORS INFLUENCING THE DELIVERY OF THE 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY 

Jackie Mould, Assistant Director, Performance, Intelligence and 
Improvement, gave a brief verbal overview of the draft Indices of Multiple 
Deprivation.

A more indepth discussion would take place during the summer when 
further analysis had taken place.

72.   WINTER PRESSURES UPDATE 

Ian Atkinson, RCCG, gave a verbal update on Winter Pressures 
illustrating the following:-

 Winter plan across all health partners and care partners agreed and 
all actions enacted by the end of December

 There had been a reduction in the number of A&E attendance to date 
but there was an increase in the complexity of patients on last year 
which would lead to a longer stay in hospital

 Strong partnership working across the piste continued to grow
 Work taking place on disability pathways 
 Focus on some of the Mental Health support offer – further support 

from Mental Health Social Prescribing in the Community Teams

Resolved:-  That the update be noted.

73.   ISSUES ESCALATED FROM PLACE BOARD 

There were no issues raised.

74.   CHILD DEATH OVERVIEW PANEL ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19 

The Board received for information the Rotherham Child Death Overview 
Panel 2018/19 Annual Report.

75.   ROTHERHAM INTEGRATED CARE PARTNERSHIP BOARD 
PERFORMANCE REPORT: QUARTER 2 

The Board received for information the Rotherham Integrated Care 
Partnership Quarter 2 performance report for the ICP Place Plan.

Page 10



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 22/01/20

It was noted that overall the position had improved since Quarter 1.

Resolved:-  That the report be noted.

76.   INTEGRATED CARE PARTNERSHIP PLACE BOARD MINUTES 

The Board noted the minutes of the Rotherham Integrated Care 
Partnership Place Board held on 6th November, 2019.

77.   BETTER CARE FUND SECTION 75 AGREEMENT 2019/20 

The Board received, for information, a report outlining the progress on the 
development of a new Section 75 Framework Agreement and Better Care 
Fund Call-Off Partnership/Work Order for 2019/20 as requested by the 
Department of Health and Social Care, Ministry of Housing, Communities 
and Local Government and NHS England.

78.   DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 

Resolved:-  That a further meeting be held on Wednesday, 11th March, 
2020, commencing at 9.00 a.m. to be held in Rotherham Town Hall.

Page 11



Rotherham’s All Age Autism 

Strategy 

Progress and update

March 2020

P
age 12

A
genda Item

 7



Our vision
To work towards making Rotherham an autism friendly place to 

live. This means a place where you can get a timely diagnosis 

with support, meet professionals with a good understanding of 

autism, find services, organisations and employers that make 

reasonable adjustments when required, where people can feel 

safe, have aspirations and fulfil their potential, and become a full 

members of the local community.

P
age 13



Key Activity– Children and 

Young People
• Working with partners, our voluntary organisations and community 

groups we have identified five priority areas on which to focus our 
implementation plan. Some examples of the operational activity that 
is underway are:

– A digital diagnostic pathway has been commissioned from 
Healios who will support local CAMHS service.

– Planning is underway to re-design our C&YP pathway in 20-21

– Education settings have engaged in training, licensed by Autism 
Education Trust

– New specialist education places have been created, at primary 
and secondary, for children with Autism

– Rotherham Opportunities College offers local post-19 education 
provision

– Project Search offers supported internships

– Rotherham Parent Carers Forum are commissioned by 
Rotherham CCG to offer regular drop-in sessions to support 
families on the diagnostic pathway

P
age 14



Key Activity Area’s– Adults

• Planning to introduce a Rotherham based adult diagnostic 

and post diagnostic service from Q1 2020/21

• Will maintain existing capacity in Sheffield service for one 

year to ensure waiting list is managed.

• Launched Autism Alert Card – this was done in partnership 

between SYP, Police and Crime Commissioner, the Council, 

NHS and Rotherham NAS. 

• Parent Carer Forum and VOICE co-char the Autism 

Partnership Board

P
age 15



Priority 1: Starting well

All Rotherham’s 

autistic children and 

young people are 

healthy and safe 

from harm.

P
age 16



Priority 2: Developing well

All Rotherham’s 

autistic children and 

young people start 

school ready to learn 

for life.

P
age 17



Priority 3: Moving on well to 

independence

All Rotherham’s 

autistic children and 

young people are 

ready for the world of 

work. 

P
age 18



Priority 4: Living well

Autistic adults 

living in 

Rotherham 

will get the 

right support 

when needed.

P
age 19



Priority 5: Ageing well

Autistic adults living 

in Rotherham will 

be better supported 

as they grow old.

P
age 20



Transforming Care

• Since 2015,  Rotherham has been working on a national 
programme with Sheffield, Doncaster and North Lincolnshire 
to reduce the numbers of people with a learning disability who 
are detained in specialist hospitals – Transforming Care. 

• Rotherham currently has 8 people detained in specialist 
hospitals - 4 people in hospital beds commissioned by 
Rotherham CCG and 4 people in hospital beds commissioned 
by NHS England.    

• Rotherham has successfully discharged  5 people back into 
the community over the last 2 years.    

• Rotherham will discharge a further 4 people in 2020/21.  The 
population has changed in that 3 people have autism and not 
a learning disability. A specialised housing and care support 
offer is required and this has taken time to develop.  

P
age 21



Success stories

Scott is a 46-year-old man 

with autism who had been 

attending a day centre and 

is now following his 

passion for cooking, 

working in the kitchen at a 

local play centre. 

“It’s more enjoyable 

because I can choose 

what I do”

P
age 22



Autism Alert Card

Rotherham Council, South 

Yorkshire Police and 

Rotherham CCG have worked 

together to develop the Autism 

Alert Card.  

This will ensure the needs of 

autistic people are known by 

the police and criminal justice 

system. Previously a 

significant gap.

P
age 23



Ongoing challenges

• Supporting services and the community to be open to support 

people with autism: for the community  to celebrate 

neurodiversity.  

• Diagnosis and post diagnostic offer for Children and Young 

People and Adults.

• Rotherham CCG and RDaSH are working to create ‘all age’ 

solutions to address the diagnosis waiting list issues and 

develop a local post diagnostic offer for adults.  

• Ensuring that the right support is available and is cost 

effective. 

P
age 24



Autism Strategy progress and 

timeline

• A draft version of the has been created and is in 
the process of editing. A workshop with the Autism 
Partnership Board is planned to review the 
online version of the strategy. This is scheduled 
for Wednesday 18th March. 

• The strategy will be built around people’s stories. 

• The strategy will be presented to Cabinet in June 
2020. 

• It is planned that the strategy will be formally 
launched in July 2020.

P
age 25



Rotherham Loneliness Action Plan 2020 - 2022

Rotherham Loneliness Action Plan
2020 – 2022

Working together to ensure people of all ages in Rotherham feel more 
connected to others and loneliness is reduced.

P
age 26

A
genda Item

 8



Rotherham Loneliness Action Plan 2020 - 2022

Introduction

Vision Statement:  

People of all ages in Rotherham feel more connected to others and loneliness is reduced. 

Introduction

Loneliness is a very personal issue and people will describe it very differently. For the purposes of this action plan the following definition will be 
used for loneliness:

 “Loneliness can be defined as a subjective, unwelcome feeling of lack or loss of companionship. It happens when we have a mismatch between 
the quantity and quality of social relationships that we have, and those that we want.” Perlman, D. and Peplau, 1981, cited in HM (2018), ‘A 
connected society: a strategy for tackling loneliness’. 1

The way people lead their lives in society is changing, for example the nature of jobs has changed with developments in technology which means 
more solitary working. Many of the public services are moving towards a digital offer which means less human interaction. Whilst this can bring 
many positives it has led to changes in the way we now live, work and interact with each other. Loneliness is not a new issue, but it is being 
recognised as a major public health issue. Research has shown that loneliness is as harmful to our health as smoking 15 cigarettes a day. 
Loneliness has been linked to numerous health issues like coronary heart disease, stroke, depression, cognitive decline and an increased risk of 
Alzheimer’s. If people feel connected to others it can reduce the risk of mortality or developing certain diseases. There is some evidence to 
suggest that people who are lonely are more likely to place a higher demand on public services, for example visiting their GP and A&E more 
often. Anecdotal evidence from frontline staff suggests that some demands placed on public services in Rotherham may be due in part to 
individuals feeling lonely. 

P
age 27



Rotherham Loneliness Action Plan 2020 - 2022

‘‘Young or old, loneliness doesn’t discriminate.’’ Jo Cox

Loneliness can fluctuate over the life course and most people at some point in their life will experience loneliness. It is difficult to say what exactly 
causes loneliness but there are some known trigger factors which can be seen at an individual, community and societal level. Some of the 
factors are illustrated in the picture below:

Other factors which operate at community and societal levels include, transport, neighbourhood safety, access to services, financial hardship, 
insular communities, stigma and discrimination, digital technology and work life balance.

Loneliness affects all ages within society and national and local data reflects this. National estimates are that between 55 and 18% of the adults 
in the UK feel lonely often or always. Despite this there is a great deal of stigma attached to loneliness with a third of the adult population stating 

P
age 28



Rotherham Loneliness Action Plan 2020 - 2022

that they would be too embarrassed to say that they were lonely, making it more difficult for people to ask for help. Mental Health Foundation 
(2010) The lonely society.2 

It is because loneliness presents as a public health issue that a whole system response is required in Rotherham. In Rotherham actions to 
address loneliness are referenced in the Health and Wellbeing Board Strategy (Aim 4) and the refreshed Place Plan. This important public health 
issue has been championed by the Chair of the Health and Wellbeing Board (H&WbB). 

This action plan will ensure that links are made to other supporting strategies and action plans, for example, Thriving Neighbourhoods, 
Rotherham Carers Strategy and the Rotherham Suicide Prevention and Self Harm action plan. 

Rotherham Loneliness event, 24th September 2019- Working Together to Tackle Loneliness

On the 24th September 2019 partners of the H&WbB were invited by Councillor Roche to a workshop to share their experiences of loneliness, 
showcase some of the many examples of good practice and to start to contribute to Rotherham’s action plan to address this public health issue.   

The day focused on:

o The vision for Rotherham and what good looks like.
o What is working well?
o The gaps and opportunities.

The discussions from the event were captured visually and appear in this action plan. A full summary appears in Appendix 1. The presentations 
and discussions highlighted the abundance of initiatives across Rotherham which are helping address loneliness and build social connections, 
particularly in the voluntary and community sector. Delegates gave example of positive joint working between the different sectors and 
commented on the fact that loneliness is seen as a cross sector issue.  There are many opportunities to take this work forwards including the 
need to work with people, empowering them to find solutions. 

The other themes which were raised on the day by partners these were: 

 the value of partnership and neighbourhood working
 the great contribution the voluntary and community has and can make to this issue
 the need for intergenerational and inclusive working

P
age 29



Rotherham Loneliness Action Plan 2020 - 2022

 the need to identify and reach out to people 
 the need for better communication, marketing and information technology.

P
age 30



Rotherham Loneliness Action Plan 2020 - 2022

P
age 31



Rotherham Loneliness Action Plan 2020 - 2022

P
age 32



Rotherham Loneliness Action Plan 2020 - 2022

Governance

The implementation of this loneliness action plan will be overseen by the Better Mental Health for All Group. These meetings are chaired by a 
Consultant in Public Health and have representation from H&WbB partners. The multi-agency group meets bimonthly and is tasked to implement 
this plan and the Better Mental Health for All Action Plan. The Partners represented on this group include: 

 Crossroads, representing the Adult VCS
 Rotherham Clinical Commissioning Group (RCCG)
 RDaSH (mental health provider)
 Rotherham NHS Foundation Hospital Trust
 RMBC- Adult Care, Housing and Public Health (including Neighbourhoods)
 RMBC Children and Young People’s Services
 RMBC Communications
 Rotherham United Community Sports Trust (RUCST)
 South Yorkshire Police

Progress against this action plan will be reported to the Mental Health (MH) and Learning Disability (LD) Transformation Group, a subgroup of 
the Rotherham Place Plan Board. Annual updates will be given to the Rotherham Health and Wellbeing Board. 

National Picture

 Over 9 million adults are often or always lonely.  
 43% of 17 – 25-year olds using Action for Children services experienced problems with loneliness. 
 Over half of parents (52%) have had a problem with loneliness with 21% feeling lonely in the last week. 
 50% of disabled people will be lonely on any given day. 
 For 3.6 million people aged 65 television is the main form of company. 
 38% of people with dementia said that they had lost friends after their diagnosis. 
 8 out of 10 carers have felt lonely or isolated as a result of looking after a loved one. 
 More than 1 in 10 men say they are lonely but would not admit it to anyone. 

P
age 33



Rotherham Loneliness Action Plan 2020 - 2022

 58% of migrants and refugees in London described loneliness and isolation as their biggest challenge. 
 More than 1 in 3 people aged 75 and over say that feelings of loneliness are out of their control. 

 Loneliness costs UK employers £2.5 billion per year.  
 Three out of four GPs say they see between 1 and 5 people a day who have come in mainly because they are lonely, and one in ten sees 

between six and ten such patients daily. 
 Disconnected communities could be costing the UK economy £32 billion every year.  
 £1 invested in tackling loneliness saves society £1.26.  
 81% of people agreed that there are lots of actions everyone can take in their daily lives to help those feeling lonely.  

The Jo Cox Commission on Loneliness was inspired by the MP’s vision that by working together a real difference could be made to the lives of 
those affected by loneliness. Thirteen charities and businesses worked together to look at what could be done to tackle the issue and the 
resulting report sets out their findings: 3

The strong message from the report is that tackling loneliness will require a response from public sector staff, employers and businesses, 
communities and individuals.

In response to the work of the Jo Cox Commission on Loneliness, the Government committed to implementing many of the recommendations 
including the publication of a national strategy to tackle loneliness which was published in October 2018. The national strategy acknowledges 
the role that every part of society needs to take in order to tackle loneliness. Action needs to be taken by local authorities, public and health 
services, businesses, voluntary sector, communities, families and friends to support a more connected society.

The Strategy set out the challenge of how national Government, Local Authorities, businesses and society can work together to promote social 
connections. These three guiding principles, together with the feedback from the stakeholder event, will form the basis of this action plan:

 Improve how organisations and services connect people at risk of experiencing loneliness.
 Make it easier to access information about local community groups, activities and support services.
 Catalyse the sharing of knowledge and good practice on tackling loneliness.

P
age 34



Rotherham Loneliness Action Plan 2020 - 2022

In January 2018, the Prime Minister tasked the Office for National Statistics (ONS) with developing national indicators of loneliness suitable for 
use on major studies to inform future policy in England, including people across society and of all ages. ONS worked with experts in the field to 
agree a working definition of loneliness, and ideal criteria for the indicators and for the collection of data.

In December 2018 the Office of National Statistics published guidance and analysis on the National Measurement of Loneliness. One of the 
recommendations made by researchers was that; the introduction or preamble should not mention loneliness and should introduce the topic as 
focusing on the participant’s relationships with others.4 

The Local Government Association (LGA) have produced a guide for councils to enable them to see how effectively they are tackling loneliness. 
The guide makes the case for this important public health issue to have a whole system preventative approach and encourages local areas to 
define the nature of loneliness in their local area, knowing who is at risk.5 The LGA guide comments that whilst many people may know about 
the need to make healthy lifestyle choices there is less awareness about the importance of having social connections.   

One of the announcements in the 2019 NHS Long Term was for people to have more control over their health and more personalised case when 
they needed it. The introduction of link Workers for Primary Care Networks (PCNs), under the GP contract reforms, was one of the actions to 
address this. Social prescribing link workers are one of five additional roles being funded within primary care, to bring additional capacity into the 
multi-disciplinary team, under the Network Contract Directly Enhanced Services (DES).

With one in five GP appointments focusing on wider social needs, rather than acute medical issues, many GPs report that they spend significant 
amounts of time dealing with the consequences of poor housing, debt, stress and loneliness. Social prescribing and community-based 
approaches aim to assist with this by reducing pressure on clinicians like GPs, improving people’s lives, helping with community resilience and 
ensuring that the needs of diverse and multi-cultural communities can be met.6 

Regional ICS

Tackling loneliness is a common challenge across the ICS that requires a response that is broader than can be delivered by health and care 
partners alone. Work to tackle loneliness was identified in March 2019 as one of the three priority areas in which to explore potential collaborative 
work between Local Authorities in South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw and the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Integrated Care System. It is 
acknowledged that given the breadth and complexity of this area it will not be practically possible to scope out all existing activities that are taking 
place that contribute to promoting social connections and tackling loneliness. However, it makes sense to work with stakeholders in each place to 

P
age 35



Rotherham Loneliness Action Plan 2020 - 2022

understand the main areas of activity, the local plans to respond to the National Strategy and together identify any gaps, common challenges, 
barriers and potential opportunities that may benefit from collaborative action.

Local picture

Public Health England (PHE) profile data shows that in Rotherham:

 Just below half (47.5%) of adult social care users aged 18+ had as much social contact as they would like in 2017/18. For those aged 65+ 
this was 42.6%.

 In 2016/17 37.3% of adult carers aged 18+ had as much social contact as they would like. For those aged 65+ this was 44.1%.
 32% of people aged 65 and over lived alone as at the 2011 Census. By ward this ranged from 24% in Anston and Woodsetts to 40% in 

Rotherham East.
 7.3% of households were occupied by lone parent families as at the 2011 Census.

PHE plan to include loneliness indicators in the Public Health Outcomes Framework this year, which will give a more detailed picture for 
Rotherham. However, there have been some focused work with specific communities of interest in Rotherham to establish how loneliness affects 
them.

Older people

In January 2017 the Rotherham Older Peoples Forum (ROPF) secured funding from South Yorkshire Community Foundation to survey older 
people in Rotherham to find out exactly what loneliness means to them and the effect it has. The survey found that 82% of the respondents felt 
lonely sometimes or most of the time. The respondents commented that loneliness affected their confidence, motivation and health and 
wellbeing. Most often loneliness was triggered by a life event such as change in health or bereavement.  The full report can be found below 
however the main summary points were:

 Loneliness is a feeling – it is how we perceive ourselves to be rather than physically being alone. 
 Loneliness means different things to different people. 
 There is a clear need to generate social activities in the more rural areas of Rotherham and to make sure information about available 

activities reaches older people in those areas. 
 There are strong links between loneliness and mental health. People become unable to help themselves as it firstly affects their 

confidence and motivation which in turn affects their health, and so it becomes a downward spiral.

P
age 36



Rotherham Loneliness Action Plan 2020 - 2022

 The long-term effects of loneliness can be so profound we need to find effective ways to tackle it or the demand on statutory health and 
social care services will only continue to increase.

The older people consulted suggested three solutions; befriending support, personal self-help strategies and joining local groups. 7

Tenants

Two focus groups were held with RMBC tenants in summer and autumn of 2019. Tenants were asked:

How often do you feel left out?
How often do you feel you like companionship?
How often do you feel isolated?

The majority of TARA members stated that they lived alone (75%) Tenants were more likely to say they were lonely if they were in poor health 
(self-described) or had recently arrived in the area. While the data set is small it does support national findings of the ONS. 
Expanding TARA groups was the most common suggestion for how loneliness might be tackled in the area. 

Young people

Nationally it is known that loneliness can be experienced throughout childhood, even amongst very young children and this is particularly the 
case where parents themselves experience loneliness. Some research has in fact indicated that younger people (16-24 year olds) may 
experience loneliness more often than older people. In Rotherham there has been little consultation with young people into their experiences of 
loneliness. Rotherham Public Health wanted to explore with young people what the issues were for them. Rotherham Children, Young People 
and Families Consortium were approached and asked to work with young people to provide a snapshot of youth loneliness in Rotherham. 
The five organisations of the Children, Young People and Families Consortium held focus groups with 130 young people aged 10-25 years of 
age, between April and June 2019. These organisations were:
• Endeavour
• Clifton Learning Partnership
• YWCA Yorkshire
• Rush House
• United Multicultural Centre

The focus groups asked the young people the following questions:

P
age 37



Rotherham Loneliness Action Plan 2020 - 2022

• What the issues are for young people in relation to loneliness?
• How common is loneliness amongst young people?
• Are any triggers or sub-groups that can predict loneliness?
• What is working well and what could be done to alleviate the problems?

The focus groups found that loneliness was an important issue for the young people consulted. The following themes were important to the 
young people consulted:

• Having a relationship with a trusted adult. 
• Having opportunities to celebrate diversity and difference, allowing young people to learn about each other.
• Giving young people opportunities to take on responsibilities, fundraising was given as an example.
• Educating others about loneliness and the signs and symptoms young people may present with.
• Supporting young people’s emotional wellbeing since mental health and loneliness are inextricably linked. 

In the latest Young People’s lifestyle survey (2019), 145 Young People (4%) of those who answered the question indicated that they did not have 
anyone they felt they could talk to.  This was:

Year 7 – 65 pupils
• 39 Girls
• 26 Boys
Year 10 – 80 pupils
• 37 Girls
• 43 Boys

Overall – 145 pupils
• 76 Girls (52.4%)
• 69 Boys (47.6%)

Overall out of the 145 pupils, 49 of they said they had a diagnosed medical condition (33.8%).  The borough wide results for all Y7 and Y10 show 
that 902 (22%) said they had a diagnosed medical condition.  Therefore young people in this cohort that felt they did not have anyone they could 
talk to are more likely to have a diagnosed medical condition.

P
age 38



Rotherham Loneliness Action Plan 2020 - 2022

Helpful resources on loneliness

 Bellis, A (2019), Tackling Loneliness, Briefing Paper, Number 8514, 5 August 2019, House of Commons Library.
https://researchbriefings.files.parliament.uk/documents/CBP-8514/CBP-8514.pdf

 Campaign to End Loneliness, guidance for councils and commissioners. 
https://www.campaigntoendloneliness.org/%20guidance

 Department for Digital Culture, Media and Sport (2019), Loneliness Fact Sheet from the Community Life Survey for England 2018-19
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/community-life-survey-2018-19

 Jo Cox Commission on Loneliness: A call to action
https://www.ageuk.org.uk/globalassets/age-uk/documents/reports-and-publications/reports-and-briefings/active-
communities/rb_dec17_jocox_commission_finalreport.pdf

 Local Government Association (2018), Loneliness How do you know your council is actively tackling loneliness?
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/22.28%20-%20Loneliness%20Must%20Know_02.pdf

 Local Government Association Combating loneliness: A guide for local authorities
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/combating-loneliness-guid-24e_march_2018.pdf

 NHS England and NHS Improvement ( 2019) Social prescribing link workers: Reference guide for primary care networks; 
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/07/pcn-reference-guide-social-prescribing.pdf

 Royal College of General Practitioners, (2018), Tackling Loneliness A Community Action Plan 
https://www.rcgp.org.uk/-/media/Files/News/2018/RCGP-tackling-loneliness-may-2018.ashx?la=en

 What Works Wellbeing (2018), What do we know about tackling loneliness.
https://whatworkswellbeing.org/wp/wp-content/uploads/woocommerce_uploads/2018/10/briefing-tackling-loneliness-Oct-2018.pdf

P
age 39

https://researchbriefings.files.parliament.uk/documents/CBP-8514/CBP-8514.pdf
https://www.campaigntoendloneliness.org/%20guidance
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/community-life-survey-2018-19
https://www.ageuk.org.uk/globalassets/age-uk/documents/reports-and-publications/reports-and-briefings/active-communities/rb_dec17_jocox_commission_finalreport.pdf
https://www.ageuk.org.uk/globalassets/age-uk/documents/reports-and-publications/reports-and-briefings/active-communities/rb_dec17_jocox_commission_finalreport.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/22.28%20-%20Loneliness%20Must%20Know_02.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/combating-loneliness-guid-24e_march_2018.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/07/pcn-reference-guide-social-prescribing.pdf
https://www.rcgp.org.uk/-/media/Files/News/2018/RCGP-tackling-loneliness-may-2018.ashx?la=en
https://whatworkswellbeing.org/wp/wp-content/uploads/woocommerce_uploads/2018/10/briefing-tackling-loneliness-Oct-2018.pdf


Rotherham Loneliness Action Plan 2020 - 2022

Aim 1. To make loneliness everyone’s responsibility.

Objectives Actions Who will lead? By when? What do we want to 
see as a result?

Progress to date

Raise awareness 
amongst all 
partners, 
businesses and 
the general 
public of the 
importance of 
social 
connections. 

Create a social 
movement to 
empower people 
to see that 
everyone has a 
role in tackling 
loneliness

Use the 
Rotherham Five 
Ways to 
Wellbeing as the 
campaign to 
encourage a 

 To develop clear 
and consistent 
messages in 
relation to 
loneliness, the 
affects and impact 
on people across 
the whole life 
course.  

 Partners of the 
H&WbB to use 
agreed messages 
in communications 
to their workforce 
and general public.

 To develop clear 
self-care/self-help 
messages which 
encourage and help 
people to develop 
and maintain good 
social connections 
using the themes of 

Communication 
Leads and identified 
champions from all 
H&WbB partners.

Starting March 2020  Consistent 
messages about 
loneliness which 
are supported and 
communicated by 
all H&WbB 
partners.

 People living and 
working in 
Rotherham having 
a good 
understanding of 
how they can help 
themselves and 
others. 

 Five Ways to 
Wellbeing 
messages 
prominently used 
as a way of 
promoting 
wellbeing. 

 People reporting 
that they feel that 

P
age 40



Rotherham Loneliness Action Plan 2020 - 2022

Objectives Actions Who will lead? By when? What do we want to 
see as a result?

Progress to date

whole society 
response to 
address 
loneliness.

Five Ways to 
Wellbeing: 
To be Active
To Connect
To Give
To keep Learning
To Take Notice.

 To develop clear 
messages about 
how people can 
look out for others.

 To work with 
Comms colleagues 
to have a 
scheduled 
programme to 
promote these 
messages 
throughout the 
year, linking in with 
national campaigns 
where appropriate. 

 To promote and 
celebrate examples 
of good practice. 

they feel 
connected and 
supported by the 
people they live 
and work with.

Utilise local 
assets to 
address 
loneliness and 
improve 

 H&WbB partners to 
understand how 
local assets can be 
used as community 
hubs. 

H&WbB partners  Creation of more 
community 
hubs/opportunities 
for people to 
connect. 

P
age 41



Rotherham Loneliness Action Plan 2020 - 2022

Objectives Actions Who will lead? By when? What do we want to 
see as a result?

Progress to date

opportunities for 
people to 
connect. 

 Actions in place to 
use local assets as 
places for people to 
connect. 

Involve local 
people in 
coproducing 
solutions to 
tackle loneliness, 
utilising local 
assets.  

 To work with local 
communities where 
loneliness is 
identified in Ward 
plans.

 To work with 
community of 
interest groups to 
look at solutions to 
address loneliness.

 To look to use local 
assets to address 
loneliness within 
geographical 
communities and 
communities of 
interest.

 To share learning 
and best practice 
from ward activity 
with other areas.

Neighbourhoods, 
RMBC working with
Elected Members
Local community

Communities of 
interest- CYPS, AC, H 
& PH, VCS and 
partners of the 
H&WbB.

Ward plans- work 
ongoing.

 More inclusive and 
connected 
communities.

 More people 
engaged in 
community 
volunteering roles.

 Empowered 
communities 
which use their 
local assets to 
address 
loneliness.

 Shared good 
practice being 
adopted in other 
areas.

For partners to 
mitigate against 
loneliness in the 
planning, 
commissioning 

 To agree a set of 
measures to ensure 
social connectivity 
is considered in 
place-based 

Champions from 
H&WbB.

 Evidence of social 
connections being 
considered in 
place-based 
initiatives such as 

P
age 42



Rotherham Loneliness Action Plan 2020 - 2022

Objectives Actions Who will lead? By when? What do we want to 
see as a result?

Progress to date

and development 
of 
services/policies.

initiatives such as 
planning, 
commissioning of 
services, housing 
and transport.

planning, 
commissioning of 
services, housing 
and transport.

Aim 2. Improving how organisations and services in Rotherham connect people at risk of experiencing loneliness to support.

Objectives Actions Who will lead? By when? What do we want to see 
as a result?

Progress to 
date

Identify the levels of 
loneliness in 
Rotherham overall, 
paying attention to 
specific communities, 
groups and in relation 
to rurality.

 To include the new 
Public health outcomes 
Framework data on 
loneliness in JSNA.

 To build on the initial 
needs analysis with 
older people, young 
people and tenants, 
identifying other 
specific 
groups/communities to 
listen to.

 To ensure that the 
JSNA makes specific 
reference to loneliness 
and its impact on 

Neighbourhoods, 
PH with support 
from partners of 
the H&WbB.

 JSNA data on 
loneliness informing 
commissioning 
intentions and 
provision of services.

 Service providers and 
commissioners having 
a good understanding 
of the needs of 
vulnerable and at-risk 
groups.

P
age 43



Rotherham Loneliness Action Plan 2020 - 2022

Objectives Actions Who will lead? By when? What do we want to see 
as a result?

Progress to 
date

specific 
groups/communities.

 Partners of the H&WbB 
to make use of the 
JSNA data in their 
commissioning 
intentions and provision 
of services thereby 
ensuring that actions 
are not contributing to 
increased loneliness.
 

Agree 
measures/questions 
for identifying people 
at risk of experiencing 
loneliness which can 
be used by all 
partners.

 To agree and test 
questions as part of the 
MECC pilot in the south 
of the borough.

 To finalise questions 
and use in all MECC 
training.

 To roll out MECC and 
loneliness across 
Rotherham. 

PH working with 
H&WbB partner 
organisations 
including VAR.

 Staff from H&WbB 
partners using the 
same 
questions/measures 
to identify people at 
risk of loneliness.

 Number of staff 
trained in MECC and 
loneliness.

 Case studies showing 
how people have 
been identified and 
signposted. 

Raise awareness 
amongst public 
sector, local 
businesses and 
communities of the 
causes, triggers and 

 To incorporate this into 
MECC training.

 To update training with 
any new information 
from the JSNA.

PH working with 
H&WbB partner 
organisations

 Frontline staff aware 
of at-risk groups and 
trigger points for 
loneliness.

 Increased knowledge 
used to identify 

P
age 44



Rotherham Loneliness Action Plan 2020 - 2022

Objectives Actions Who will lead? By when? What do we want to see 
as a result?

Progress to 
date

impact of loneliness, 
using training and 
local campaigns.

 To use the Five Ways 
to Wellbeing as 
Rotherham’s local 
campaign to promote 
the importance of good 
social connections.

 To coproduce with 
groups simple actions 
everyone can take to 
look out for others. 

people and signpost 
to appropriate support 
and give tailored self-
help self-care 
information. 

Work with Primary 
Care Network (PCN) 
to agree actions to 
address loneliness.

 Provide MECC training 
for Link Workers.

 To assist Link Workers 
in understanding their 
local communities and 
the assets available 
which support good 
social connections.

 Link Workers operating 
within the Making Every 
Contact Count model. 

PCN, PH and 
Voluntary Action 
Rotherham and 
H&WbB partners.

 Link workers having 
attended MECC and 
loneliness training.

 Link Workers working 
within the MECC 
model.

 Reduction clinician 
time spent supporting 
people whose main 
issue is loneliness.

 Improved wellbeing of 
people experiencing 
loneliness.

Engage local 
businesses/employers 
in actions to combat 
loneliness.

 To co-produce with 
businesses suggested 
actions to combat 
loneliness.

 To look to include 
loneliness as a theme 

PH working with 
colleagues across 
South Yorkshire 
and local 
businesses.

 Loneliness is an 
element within the Be 
Well@Work scheme.

 Evidence of good 
practice from 
employers/businesses 

P
age 45



Rotherham Loneliness Action Plan 2020 - 2022

Objectives Actions Who will lead? By when? What do we want to see 
as a result?

Progress to 
date

within the Be 
Well@Work Scheme.

(For example; allowing 
community groups use of 
premises, staff trained to 
identify people at risk, staff 
time to have conversations 
with vulnerable people).

in their actions to 
address loneliness 
from both within the 
workforce and to the 
wider community.

 Shared examples of 
good practice.

Employers of the 
H&WbB to consider 
what actions they can 
take to encourage 
staff to have good 
social connections 
both in and out of 
work, paying attention 
to the remote and 
internet-reliant 
workforce.

 To work with HR in 
H&WbB partner 
organisations to 
develop policies and 
working practices which 
outline responsibilities 
for employers, 
managers and staff in 
maintaining good social 
connections.

HR Leads from 
H&WbB 
organisations 
working (linking 
into the Be Well @ 
Work)

 Specific policies and 
practices being 
implemented which 
support good social 
networks.

 Evidence of initiatives 
where staff support 
each other.

 Evidence of workforce 
supporting the wider 
community through 
volunteering 
opportunities. 

P
age 46



Rotherham Loneliness Action Plan 2020 - 2022

Aim 3 Make it easier for people living and working in Rotherham to access information about local community groups, 
activities and support services for loneliness.

Objectives Actions Who will lead? By when? What do we want to 
see as a result?

Progress to 
date

To promote one 
directory of 
information for 
the general 
public and 
practitioners to 
access. 
(GISMO)

 Partners of the H&WbB to 
agree to use and promote 
one directory of services 
in Rotherham- GISMO.

 To ensure that this one 
directory is maintained. 

 

VAR working with 
H&WbB partners.

 One directory of 
services which is 
used by all 
H&WbB partners.

 Website 
advertised and 
promoted widely 
across the 
borough.

 Directory updated 
regularly.  

Increase 
awareness 
amongst the 
general public of 
opportunities to 
access free and 
affordable 
activities.

 Promoting the one 
directory (GISMO) to 
people who live and work 
in Rotherham.

 All H&WbB partners to 
promote the 
activities/initiatives they 
deliver using the Five 
Ways to Wellbeing 
branding.

VAR, Comms Leads 
from H&WbB 
partners.

 People living and 
working in 
Rotherham know 
where to access 
information on 
local activities.

P
age 47



Rotherham Loneliness Action Plan 2020 - 2022

Aim 4. Spread good practice and encourage knowledge sharing on tackling loneliness across Rotherham.

Objectives Actions Who will lead? By when? What do we want to 
see as a result?

Progress to 
date

Build up the evidence 
base of what works 
locally.

 To learn from and 
disseminate good 
practice at a ward & 
community level.

 To consider holding 
network/ sharing 
events for practitioners 
and communities to 
come together and 
share good practice. 

Neighbourhoods, 
PH working with 
H&WbB partners.

 Better 
communication 
about what works 
amongst partner 
organisations.

 Better use of 
resources. 

 Strong local 
evidence base on 
which to build 
upon.

Encourage 
communities/businesses 
to engage with national 
based initiatives.

 Support local 
communities/employers 
to take part in initiatives 
like Jo Cox Great Get 
Together weekend &
#MincePieMoments 
Christmas campaign

Neighbourhoods, 
PH, H&WbB partner 
leads working with 
local communities 
schools, colleges, 
University and local 
businesses.

 Reduction in 
stigma 
surrounding 
loneliness.

 Greater 
community 
cohesion. 

 Examples of 
national initiatives 
being 
implemented in 
Rotherham.

 Positive media 
coverage.

P
age 48



Rotherham Loneliness Action Plan 2020 - 2022

Progress Summary

Date of meeting Actions Outstanding Lead Actioned By

P
age 49



Rotherham Loneliness Action Plan 2020 - 2022

Grey Not due to start

Red Not on target

Amber Almost achieving target 

Green
Achieving Target

On track

Blue Complete

P
age 50



Rotherham Loneliness Action Plan 2020 - 2022

References

1 Perlman, D. and Peplau, 1981, cited in HM (2018), ‘A connected society: a strategy for tackling loneliness’ 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/750909/6.4882_DCMS_Loneliness_Strategy_web_Update.pdf Accessed 
02/03/2020
2 Jo Griffin, Mental Health Foundation (2010) The lonely society. https://www.mentalhealth.org.uk/sites/default/files/the_lonely_society_report.pdf  Accessed 02/03/2020
3 Jo Cox, 2017, ‘ Combatting loneliness one conversation at a time: A Call to Action’   https://www.ageuk.org.uk/globalassets/age-uk/documents/reports-and-
publications/reports-and-briefings/active-communities/rb_dec17_jocox_commission_finalreport.pdf. Accessed 02/03/2020
4 ONS, (2018), Testing of loneliness questions in surveys. 
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/wellbeing/compendium/nationalmeasurementofloneliness/2018/testingoflonelinessquestionsinsurveys Accessed 
02/03/2020
5 Local Government Association (LGA), ref code 22.28. https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/22.28%20-%20Loneliness%20Must%20Know_02.pdf. 
Accessed 02/03/2020
6 NHS England, 2019, PAN 000581. https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/07/pcn-reference-guide-social-prescribing.pdf Accessed 02/03/2020
7 Voluntary Action Rotherham (VAR) 2017 https://www.varotherham.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/11/Ropf-Report-on-Loneliness-2017.pdf Accessed 02/03/2020

P
age 51

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/750909/6.4882_DCMS_Loneliness_Strategy_web_Update.pdf
https://www.mentalhealth.org.uk/sites/default/files/the_lonely_society_report.pdf
https://www.ageuk.org.uk/globalassets/age-uk/documents/reports-and-publications/reports-and-briefings/active-communities/rb_dec17_jocox_commission_finalreport.pdf
https://www.ageuk.org.uk/globalassets/age-uk/documents/reports-and-publications/reports-and-briefings/active-communities/rb_dec17_jocox_commission_finalreport.pdf
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/wellbeing/compendium/nationalmeasurementofloneliness/2018/testingoflonelinessquestionsinsurveys
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/22.28%20-%20Loneliness%20Must%20Know_02.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/07/pcn-reference-guide-social-prescribing.pdf
https://www.varotherham.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/11/Ropf-Report-on-Loneliness-2017.pdf


 

  

 

 

Rotherham Integrated Care Partnership  
 

 

Rotherham Health and Wellbeing Board:  11 March 2020 
 
 

Final Draft Rotherham Integrated Health and  
Social Care Place Plan 2020-22 

Purpose 

Members are asked to consider on the final draft of the Rotherham Integrated Health and Social Care 
Place Plan 2020-22 (version 3.0).  

Background 

Rotherham’s first Integrated Health and Social Care Place Plan (Place Plan), was published in 
November 2016, it detailed the joined up approach to delivering key initiatives that would support 
achievement of the health and wellbeing strategic aims. 
 
The Place Plan was then refreshed in 2018 to ensure clear alignment with the revised Health and 
Wellbeing (H&WB) Strategy which was agreed in April 2018.  The H&WB Strategy sets the overall 
strategic direction for health and social care in Rotherham, the Place Plan is the delivery mechanism 
for the health and social care elements of the H&WB Strategy. 
 
The NHS Long Term Plan (LTP) was published in January 2019, as a result place partners took the 
decision to refresh the second Place Plan to ensure it addresses the requirements of the NHS LTP. 
 
The Place Board received and agreed a framework for the refreshed third Place Plan at their meeting 
in May, approved the updated Plan on a Page at their meeting in September and received the first 
draft of the full Place Plan at their meeting in November 2019. 
 
The Place Board approved the final draft of the Place Plan at their public meeting in February 2020 
and recommended to partners to approve through their respective governance structures. 

Analysis of key issues and of risks 

Members are receiving draft version 3.0 of the Place Plan, which is the final draft.  This version has 
addressed all the comments received from partners.  There will be some minor amendments to be 
made as a result of proof reading which will be completed over the coming weeks.  There are no 
further material changes to be made to the plan. 
 
It should be noted that the milestones and key performance indicators (KPIs) for each of the priorities 
are to be finalised.  The milestones and KPIs will form the performance report for the Place Plan from 
April 2020.  The framework for the performance report will be received at the April Place Board and will 
include the final milestones and KPIs.  
 
Overarching actions prior to publishing the Place Plan are to: 
• Include final milestones and KPIs 

• Ensure correct abbreviations, particularly for organisational names 

• Final proof read 

 
It should also be noted that an executive summary is also being finalised. 

Patient, Public and Stakeholder Involvement 

All ‘place’ partners have been involved in the development of the Place Plan. 

 

Page 52 Agenda Item 9



Approval history 

 

Date Meeting Version of Place Plan 

1 May 2019 ICP Place Board Draft Framework 

4 September 2019 ICP Place Board Plan on a Page 

23 October 2019 ICP Delivery Team + Chief 
Executives 

Draft Place Plan version 2.0 

2 October 2019 ICP Place Board Presentation on Progress 

6 November 2019 ICP Place Board 
(confidential) 

Draft Place Plan version 2.1 

4 December 2019 CCG Governing Body Draft Place Plan version 2.1 

20 January 2020 Health Select Committee 
Workshop 

Presentation and Draft Place Plan 
version 2.1 

5 February 2020 ICP Place Board (public) Final draft version Place Plan 
version 3.0 

February/March ICP Partners governance 
structures 

Final draft version of the Place Plan 
version 3.0 

11 March 2020 Health and Wellbeing Board Final version of the Place Plan 
version 3.0 

 

 

Recommendations 

Members are asked to endorse the final draft of the Integrated Health and Social Care Place Plan 
(version 3.0). 

 
 

Page 53



 

  

 
  

FINAL DRAFT V3.0  
(Following February Place Board for March 2020 H&WBB) 

 

Rotherham’s 
Integrated Health and 
Social Care Place Plan 

(incorporating our response to the NHS Long Term Plan) 
 

2020-22 
 

P
age 54



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

2 
 

1 Table of Contents 

1 Table of Contents ..................................................................................... 2 

1 Introduction ............................................................................................... 3 

1.1 Rotherham Partners Commitment .................................................... 3 

1.2 Rotherham Culture and Leadership ................................................. 4 

1.3 Rotherham successes ...................................................................... 4 

1.4 Plan on a Page ................................................................................. 6 

 .......................................................................................................................... 6 

2 Local Context ............................................................................................ 7 

2.1 The Rotherham Plan ......................................................................... 7 

2.2 Rotherham Health and Wellbeing ..................................................... 7 

2.3 Rotherham Place .............................................................................. 8 

2.4 South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Integrated Care System ................ 9 

2.4.1 Networked Hospital Services .................................................. 10 

2.5 National Expectations ..................................................................... 10 

2.6 How this plan was developed ......................................................... 11 

3 Achieving Our Aspirations ...................................................................... 12 

3.1 Rotherham – an overview ............................................................... 12 

3.2 Rotherham’s population - health and wellbeing ............................. 15 

3.3 The Case for Change ..................................................................... 17 

3.3.1 Better Health and Wellbeing ................................................... 18 

3.3.2 Better Standards of Care and Quality ..................................... 18 

3.3.3 Better use of funds (spending the Rotherham £) .................... 19 

4 Enabling Workstreams ............................................................................ 20 

4.1 Workforce Development ................................................................. 20 

Organisational Development .................................................................. 21 

The changing workforce ......................................................................... 21 

4.2 Finance, including System Efficiency ............................................. 22 

4.2.1 Social Value ............................................................................ 23 

4.3 Communication and Engagement .................................................. 24 

4.4 Digital .............................................................................................. 27 

4.4.1 Information Governance ......................................................... 27 

4.4.2 Infrastructure ........................................................................... 28 

4.4.3 Sharing Care Records ............................................................ 28 

4.4.4 Patient Access & Engagement ............................................... 29 

4.4.5 Intelligence & Analytics ........................................................... 29 

4.4.1 Digital Inclusion ....................................................................... 30 

4.5 Housing, Communities and Estate .................................................. 30 

4.6 Prevention ....................................................................................... 31 

5 Personalised Care ................................................................................... 34 

5.1.1 Enabling Patient Choice .......................................................... 35 

5.1.2 Social Prescribing .................................................................... 35 

5.1.3 Personal Health Budgets (Self Care/Self Management) ......... 36 

6 Primary Care ........................................................................................... 36 

7 Planned Care .......................................................................................... 38 

8 Major Health Conditions .......................................................................... 38 

8.1.1 Research and Innovation ........................................................ 39 

8.1.2 Cancer ..................................................................................... 39 

8.1.3 Cardiovascular Disease .......................................................... 39 

8.1.4 Stroke Care ............................................................................. 40 

8.1.5 Diabetes .................................................................................. 40 

8.1.6 Respiratory Disease ................................................................ 41 

9 Transformation Workstreams .................................................................. 42 

9.1 Children and Young People ............................................................ 42 

9.2 Mental Health, Learning Disabilities and Neurodevelopmental Care
 48 

9.3 Urgent and Community ................................................................... 59 

10 Governance to Support Delivery ......................................................... 64 

10.1 Governance Structure ..................................................................... 64 

10.2 Performance Management .............................................................. 65 

10.3 High Level Risks .............................................................................. 65 

11 Glossary .............................................................................................. 68 

Appendix 1: Prevention in detail ...................................................................... 69 

11.1 Tobacco Addition ............................................................................. 69 

11.2 Obesity ............................................................................................ 70 

11.3 Alcohol ............................................................................................. 72 

11.4 Air Pollution ..................................................................................... 73 

11.5 Antimicrobial Resistance ................................................................. 74 

11.6 Stronger Action on Health Inequalities ............................................ 76 

 

  

P
age 55



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

3 
 

 

Voluntary Action 
Rotherham (VAR)

Rotherham 
Metropolitan 

Borough Council 
(RMBC)

Rotherham 
Doncaster and 
South Humber 

NHS Foundation 
Trust (RDaSH)

Connect 
Healthcare 

Rotherham CIC

The  Rotherham 
NHS Foundation 

Trust (TRFT)

NHS Rotherham 
Clinical 

Commissioning 
Group (CCG)

1 Introduction 

1.1 Rotherham Partners Commitment 
The Rotherham’s Health and Social Care Community has been 
working in a collaborative way for many years to transform the way it 
cares for and achieves a positive change for its population of 265,000. 
Our successful track record in developing and delivering new solutions 
makes Rotherham the perfect test bed for new innovations. We are 
passionate about providing the best possible services and outcomes 
for our population and are committed to a whole system partnership 
approach.  Only through working together can we provide sustainable 
services over the long term that aim to help all Rotherham people live 
well for longer.   

 
Rotherham Partners’ recognise that to realise our ambition and the 
necessary scale of transformation, we need to act as one voice with a 
single vision and a single Plan to deliver the best for Rotherham.   
 

Our shared vision is ‘Supporting people and families to live 

independently in the community, with prevention and self-

management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

The first Rotherham Integrated Health and Social Care (IH&SC) Place 
Plan, was developed in November 2016.  The Plan was refreshed in 
2018, to ensure close alignment with the new Rotherham Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy.  The 2020-22 Plan, this version, describes our 
achievements to date, future strategic intent and how the relationships 
between the health and social care community have continued to 
successfully mature to move us forward at pace.   

 
The Plan is intended to work as a catalyst to deliver sustainable, 
effective and efficient health and care support and community services 
with significant improvements underpinned by collaborative working 
through the development of the Rotherham Integrated Care 
Partnership (ICP).  
 
 
 

Partners are fully committed to working together to make decisions on 
a best for Rotherham basis to achieve the transformations set out in 
this Plan. This is underpinned by robust governance arrangements, 
including the Rotherham Agreement, a document that captures how 
we work together.  
 
A further example is Rotherham’s Thriving Neighbourhoods Strategy is 
clear evidence of all partners’ commitment to putting communities at 
the heart of everything we do. It illustrates how our partners are 
working with communities and building on community assets to find 
local solutions to local problems and co-design integrated, 
personalised and flexible services. 
  

ICP Partners 

P
age 56



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

4 
 

1.2 Rotherham Culture and Leadership 
Rotherham Place has a strong, experienced and cohesive executive 
leadership team who have set clear expectations and the spirit of 
collaboration and inclusiveness across the Rotherham ICP with the key 
aim of driving forward the transformation set out within this Plan. It sets 
a high standard of integrity amongst leaders across all partners, and a 
culture of empowering and engaging with all staff.   

 
To realise our vision we want everyone who works or lives in 
Rotherham– patients, people, families – to work together for a better 
Rotherham, to establish an individual and collective widespread 
aspiration for improved health and social care. 

 
The Rotherham culture means that staff are confident to challenge and 
change things to improve services for people, aligning to the vision and 
principles within this plan. A key strength in Rotherham is the trust and 
openness between partners and their commitment to the shared vision. 

 
“Culture eats strategy for breakfast” is a well- known management 
phrase – we can create a first-class strategy, but the hard part is its 
implementation and achieving the goals it sets.  This can only be done 
by winning the hearts and minds of our staff, through adapting to 
diverse approaches and styles and building mutual benefit.  This 
updated Plan therefore focusses, quite rightly, on how we will support 
and develop the systems workforce. 
 
As well as a shared vision, Rotherham partners have agreed a shared 
set of principles by which we work to achieve our vision for Rotherham: 
1. Focus on people and places rather than organisations, pulling 

pathways together and integrating them around people’s homes 
and localities; we will adopt a way of working which promotes 
continuous engagement with and involvement of local people to 
inform this.  

2. Actively encourage prevention, self –management and early 
intervention to promote independence and support recovery, and 
be fair to ensure that all the people of Rotherham can have timely 
access to the support they require to retain independence. 
 

3. Design pathways together and collaborate, agreeing how we do 
pathways once collectively, to make our current and future services 
work better. 

4. Be innovative, using international evidence and proven best 
practice to shape our pathways to achieve the best outcomes for 
people in the most cost effective way. 

5. Strive for the best quality services based on the outcomes we want 
within the resource available. 

6. Be financially sustainable and this must be secured through our 
plans and pathway reform. 

7. Align relevant health and social care budgets together so we can 
buy health, care and support services once for a place in a joined 
up way. 

1.3 Rotherham successes 
We are proud that through collaboration we have had significant 
success in moving forward the priorities, these include: 
● Rotherham Health Record (RHR) is a single common interface for 

all users regardless of the setting where they work.  It enables 
health and care workers to access patient information to make 
clinical decisions. RHR has been rolled out to all GP practices, 
social care, Rotherham Hospice and Rotherham Doncaster and 
South Humber NHS Trust. 

● Rotherham Health App is a brand new service providing patients 
with online access to manage their healthcare.  It is available 24/7, 
wherever you are, on desktop, tablet, or mobile devices.   

● Six Primary Care Networks (PCN) have been established across 
Rotherham, each with an identified clinical director.  PCNs seek to 
link staff from general practice, community – based services, 
hospitals, mental health services, social care and voluntary 
organisations to deliver joined-up care for populations of 30-50K.  

● Integrated Discharge Team (IDT) – by working together across 
health and social care, the service will: improve patient experience, 
reduce delayed transfers of care (DTOC) and provide better value 
for money.  The IDT has won an HSJ value award.   

● Re-design of Rotherham Intermediate Care day service has 
taken place to form the Independent and Active at Home Service.  
The new service is delivered in patient’s homes or local hubs, 
meaning any social activity is local and sustainable, where as 

P
age 57



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

5 
 

previously it was delivered borough wide. 
● Primary Care Extended Access has delivered 4 hubs across 

Rotherham, delivering significant numbers of appointments, 99% of 
patients surveyed described their experience as good or very good. 

● Significant progress has been achieved with Child and 
Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS), extensive service 
change has led to substantial improvement in both assessment and 
treatment and waiting times.    

● Rotherham was successful in its joint bid with Doncaster to pilot the 
national CAMHS trailblazer, the pilot is one of 25 nationally.  In 
Rotherham we expect to see 8000 young people receive additional 
support in schools during the 2-year pilot and reduce our CAMHS 
waiting time to 4 weeks.    

● Implementation of the Core 24 service, which is a 24/7 mental 
health crisis liaison. The full service went live in January 2019. 

● Key progress has been made in implementation of the Suicide 
Prevention Action Plan, this includes securing NHS England 
funding, roll out of Safe-talk prevention training and small grants 
scheme. 

● ‘Be The One’ is a new campaign aimed at bringing down suicide 
rates in Rotherham. It aims to encourage people to talk, listen and 
care.  It was launched on World Suicide Prevention Day 2019, and 
has since gathered more than 200,000 website hits and over one 
million social media impressions, as well as messages from people 
touched by suicide.  (https://www.be-the-one.co.uk/ ) 

● A clear strategy to improve the Social Emotional Mental Health 
of Children and Young People has been developed, including an 
action plan for implementation over the next few years.  The 
Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) Sufficiency 
Plan and developments, both with a health and an education lens, 
is in place to help make joint commissioning decisions, for 
example, school placements, therapies, training.  

● Launch of the Five Ways to Wellbeing Campaign took place in 
May 2018, with international interest in the Rotherham campaign 
video (https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=jb5NqV2bqGI&feature=youtu.be ) 

● Rotherham continues to be seen as a National Leader for Social 
Prescribing. 

 The Rotherham ICP Digital Strategy was approved in November 
2019, it sets out a three-year roadmap for digital services. 
 

These achievements have been enabled through clear leadership, 
outstanding relationships and wider partnership engagement and 
strong governance: 
● The ICP governance was developed and agreed by all place 

partners through a series of development sessions. The Place 
Board has met since June 2017, and in public since May 2018. 

● The ICP weekly executive meeting has met since 2016, attended 
by all place chief executives, and other senior officers, 
strengthening the excellent relationships already in place and 
providing leadership and ambition for place transformation.  

● Governance comprises of ICP Place Board, ICP Delivery Team, 
three Transformation Groups and six Enabling Groups. All are 
multi-agency, represented by all place partners, and all 
transformation groups have clinical representation.   

● A Performance Report ensures that Place Board can monitor 
progress against the implementation of the Plan, it is produced 
quarterly and is received by the Health and Wellbeing Board. 

● The Rotherham ICP Agreement was developed and approved by 
all partners. Based on a Memorandum of Understanding approach, 
it aims to provide an overarching arrangement to oversee the 
development of integrated multi-agency solutions for health, care 
and support across Rotherham.   

● As well as a shared vision, Rotherham partners have agreed a 
shared set of principles by which they will work to achieve the 
vision for Rotherham. 

● Internal Audit reviewed CCG Governance / Place Governance, with 
the outcome of significant assurance.   

● The Local Government Authority (LGA) wrote a very positive case 
study on integrating health and social care in Rotherham. 

● A key success is the joint focus on delivery, supporting place 
maturity, building trusting relationships and adopting new 
approaches to improving services leading to the creation of a range 
of joint roles, and the establishment of four system wide roles. 

P
age 58

https://www.be-the-one.co.uk/
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=jb5NqV2bqGI&feature=youtu.be


 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

6 
 

1.4 Plan on a Page 

 
Supporting people and families to live independently in the community,  

with prevention and self-management at the heart of our delivery 

 Health and Wellbeing 
Be serious about prevention, improve healthy life 
expectancy, reduce the gap in health inequalities 
and support individuals to maintaining active and 

healthy lifestyles 

Care and Quality 
Reshape care delivery, harness technology, drive down 

variations in quality and safety of care so patients’ 
changing needs are met and unacceptable variations in 

outcomes stop 

Finance and Efficiency 
Match funding levels with wide-ranging system 

efficiencies to avoid a combination of worse 
services, fewer staff, deficits and restrictions on 

new treatments 

 Life expectancy is 
less than the 

England average 
by more than 1 

year 

Significant 
inequalities in life 

expectancy across 
Rotherham 

Increase in hospital 
attendances and 

admissions 

Increasing numbers of 
people with long term 
conditions and people 
living longer in poorer 

health 

One in four adults 
experience a 

diagnosable mental 
health problem in any 

given year 

Significantly more 
children affected by 
income deprivation, 

particularly in the 
most deprived areas 

Significant joint 
financial challenge 

 
Children and  

Young People 
Mental Health, Learning Disability 

and Neurodevelopmental Care 
Urgent and  

Community Care 

 Digital 
(including  Information 

Technology and 
Governance)  

Workforce 
Development 

(including 
Organisational 
Development) 

Communications 
(including Engagement) 

Estates 
(including Housing) 

Finance Prevention 

 
Focus on people 

and places 

Actively encourage 
prevention, self-

management and 
early intervention 

Design pathways 
together 

Strive for best 
quality services 
based on best 

outcomes 

Be financially 
sustainable 

Jointly buy health, 
care and support 

services once for a 
place 

 
Voluntary Action 

Rotherham 
(VAR) 

Rotherham 
Metropolitan 

Borough Council 
(RMBC) 

Rotherham 
Doncaster and 

South Humber NHS 
Foundation Trust 

(RDaSH) 

Connect 
Healthcare 

Rotherham CIC 

The Rotherham 
NHS Foundation 

Trust 
(TRFT) 

NHS Rotherham 
Clinical 

Commissioning 
Group (CCG) 

Vision 

Gaps 

Principles 

Partners 

Challenges  

Enablers 

Read from left to Right 

Transformation 

P
age 59



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

7 
 

2 Local Context 

2.1 The Rotherham Plan 
The Rotherham Plan provides a framework for partners’ collective 
efforts to create a borough that is better for everyone who wants to 
live, work, invest or visit Rotherham. It sets out some of the big 
projects, or “game changers” that partners will be focusing on until 
2025 and forms part of a bigger picture which includes a number of 
partnership boards, of which the Health and Wellbeing Board is one.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.2 Rotherham Health and Wellbeing 
The Health and Wellbeing (H&WB) Board is a statutory sub-committee 
of Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council (RMBC). Locally, it is the 
single strategic forum to ensure coordinated commissioning and 
delivery across the NHS, social care, public health and other services 
directly related to health and wellbeing.   It aims to secure better health 
and wellbeing outcomes for the whole Rotherham population, better 
quality of care for all patients and care users and better value for the 
taxpayer. 

 
The third H&WB Strategy for Rotherham was produced in March 2018, 
it sets the strategic vision for health and social care and improving 
health and wellbeing outcomes for local people.  The role of the H&WB 
Board is to oversee its implementation and to take action where 
needed to remove blockages, identify gaps and to hold organisations, 
worksteams and strategy leads to account for delivery; ensuring 
opportunities for improving health and wellbeing are maximised. 

 
The H&WB Strategy includes four aims which the H&WB Board have 
agreed are the most important things to focus on to improve health and 
wellbeing outcomes for all Rotherham people, and that can be best 
tackled by a ‘whole system’ approach:   
 
● Aim 1: All children get the best start in life and go on to achieve 

their potential 
● Aim 2: All Rotherham people enjoy the best possible mental health 

and wellbeing and have a good quality of life 
● Aim  3: All Rotherham people live well for longer 
● Aim 4: All Rotherham people live in healthy, safe and resilient 

communities  

There are a number of principles which underpin the aims f the H&WB 
Strategy. This includes focusing on reducing health inequalities by 
ensuring that the health of our most vulnerable communities, including 
those living in poverty and deprivation and those with mental health 
problems, learning or physical disabilities, is improving the fastest.  

Rotherham 
ICP Place 

Board 

Brings together Local 
Authority, Voluntary Sector, 
Healthwatch, NHS and 
Public Health to set the 
strategic direction for health 
and social care in 
Rotherham and to work 
together to improve the 
health and wellbeing of 
Rotherham people and 
tackle health inequalities 

 

Rotherham Place partners 
work together to deliver the 
strategic direction for health 
and social care set by the 
Health and Wellbeing Board 
through delivery of the Place 
Plan 

 

Rotherham 
Health and 
Wellbeing 

Board 

P
age 60



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

8 
 

Children & Young 
People’s Priorities 

Mental Health,  
Learning Disability & 
Neurodevelopmental 

Care Priorities 

Urgent  & 
Community 

Priorities 

2.3 Rotherham Place 
In 2018, the second Rotherham IH&SC Place Plan was refreshed so 
that it closely aligned to the revised H&WB Strategy and became the 
delivery mechanism for the health and social care elements of the 
H&WB Strategy.  The 2020-22 Plan (this document) builds on the 
previous plans and takes into account the expectations set out in the 
NHS Long Term Plan. 
 
The transformation approach has been to identify five closely 
interlinked transformational workstreams to maximise the value of our 
collective action and transform our health and care system so that we 
can reduce demand for acute services, achieve clinical and financial 
sustainability and thus close the three gaps (section 4.4). These five 
transformation workstreams align to the H&WB Strategy and will 
underpin its delivery. 
 
The transformation workstreams will be taken forward through three 
transformation groups, and will report through the ICP Delivery Team 
to the ICP Place Board.  Existing mechanisms have been used so as 
not to duplicate any work within the system, the three transformation 
groups are; Children and Young People, Mental Health and Learning 
Disabilities and Urgent and Community Care. 

 
Each of the three transformation groups have agreed a set of priorities 
that they will take forward over the next two years.  These priorities are 
areas that will make the most impact if addressed collectively across 
health and social care, and build on existing collaborative work.  The 
transformation priorities are listed below and section 6 provides detail 
for each of these. 

 
Our collective approach to Place Plan delivery allows a ‘Golden 
Thread’ from our ‘Health and Well Being’ strategy aims through to the 
transformation group delivery. We fully acknowledge that each of the 
transformation groups have identified priorities which cross cut 
between groups, we manage this through the ICP Delivery Team.   
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1. The First 1001 Days 
2. Special Educational Needs and 

Disabilities 
3. Looked After Children 
4. Children and Young People’s Mental 

Health and Emotional Wellbeing 
5. Transitions to Adulthood 
1. Improving Access to Psychological 

Therapies (IAPT) service  
2. Dementia diagnosis and post-

diagnostic support  
3. Adult Severe Mental Illnesses (SMI) 

in the Community  
4. Mental Health Crisis and Liaison  
5. Suicide prevention  
6. Better Mental Health for All, including 

loneliness  
7. Improving residential, community and 

housing support for people with 
Mental Health and/or Learning 
disability   

8. Delivering the NHS Long Term Plan 
for people with a learning disabilities 
and / or autism (this includes 
Transforming Care)  

9. Delivery of My Front Door 
transformation programme  

10. Delivery of Autism Strategy and 
Neurological Pathway 

1. Integration of the Points of Contact 
across Rotherham 

2. Implementation of the Intermediate 
Care and Reablement reconfiguration.  

3. Development of a coordinated 
approach to care homes support 

P
age 61



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

9 
 

Place 
Plan 

Finance 

Communic
ation 

Workforce 

Digital 

Estates 

Prevention 

To support delivery of our Plan we have also identified enabling 
workstreams for; Finance, Communication and Engagement, 
Workforce and Organisational Development, Estates and Digital.  Each 
enabling workstream meets as a group on a monthly basis, and reports 
to Place Board twice per year. 
 
However, we strongly recognise that underpinning our work is 
prevention, and the NHS Long Term Plan crystallises this. In the 
coming years we anticipate growing pressures across a range of 
services.  This will include not only health and social care but also 
supported housing, informal care and other services.  As a result we 
are establishing a sixth enabling group for Prevention, this will report 
directly to the H&WB Board and secondary to the Place Board. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
. 

2.4 South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Integrated Care 
System  

The Integrated Care System (ICS) is a partnership of 23 organisations 

responsible for looking after the health and care of the 1.5 million 
people living in Barnsley, Bassetlaw, Doncaster, Rotherham and 
Sheffield.  It is made up of NHS organisations who consult with Local 
Authorities and key voluntary sector and independent partners in the 
region. Through working together, it was chosen by NHS England as 
one of the first areas of the country to become an Integrated Care 
System. 

 
An ICS is another way of describing the local ambition, supported by 
our patients and staff, to ensure health and care services are the best 
they can possibly be. Working together in this way enables better 
joined up primary and secondary care services, physical and mental 
healthcare, social care and gives patients the seamless care they have 
told us they want. 

 
Through partnership working, real and long lasting improvements can 
be made to the health of local people that would never be achieved 
working in isolation.  The goal is for everyone in South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw to have a great start in life, with the support they need to 
stay healthy and live longer. 

 
An ICS ensures that the most pressing needs within the health system 
are met and that health resources are used without duplication or waste. 
The primary role of ICS is to establish planning and management 
functions for responding partners to work in a coordinated and 
systematic approach. 
 
A key focus for the ICS has been an independent hospital services 
review, which was set up to review the sustainability of some acute 
services across SYB (as well as in two providers outside the ICS).  The 
outcomes of the review will require health providers involved to work in 
different ways, acting as ‘one system’, and driving greater collaboration 
between commissioners. The ICS has also made a decision to 

P
age 62



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

10 
 

reconfigure hyper acute stroke services across SYB, the 
implementation of which is now under way. 
 
The independent hospital services review objective, set against a 
background of financial pressures and challenges in quality and 
performance, was to identify a delivery model (or models) that would 
secure the sustainability of five acute services across the hospitals: 

 urgent and emergency care 
 maternity 
 care of the acutely ill child 
 gastroenterology and endoscopy 
 stroke 

 
The review produced a final report in May 2018. This included a key 
recommendation that the hospitals develop ‘networks of care’ in each 
of the service areas, with a different hospital taking responsibility for 
each.  
2.4.1 Networked Hospital Services 
A number of services are facing challenges particularly in terms of 
rising demand, national shortages of certain professional roles and the 
changing ways in which healthcare is being delivered (confirmed 
through the Hospital Services Review (HSR), published in May 2018). 
To address these challenges, it will be essential that Trusts work even 
more closely together, in a variety of different ways. This includes the 
development of “hosted networks”. 

  
Each of the Acute Trusts in South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw have 
agreed to be the ‘host’ to lead a network for one of the five priority 
services identified in the HSR. The Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust 
will be the host Trust for Maternity services.  

  
A Clinical Lead is currently being appointed for this Hosted Network 
and, once in position, will develop the network priorities alongside 
fellow clinicians, nurses, other professionals, and leaders from across 
the Trusts.  

  
The role of the host is to coordinate the running of the Network.  It is a 
supportive role, providing leadership through convening and facilitating 

shared working between the Trusts. The emphasis is on collaboration 
between organisations and matches the ambitions of the NHS Long 
Term Plan.    
The greatest benefits will initially come from system wide co-design of 
functions covering workforce, reducing unwarranted variation and 
innovation. This should support improved sustainability, consistency of 
standard of service and clinical practice, and retaining our skilled 
workforce. 

2.5 National Expectations 
The NHS Five Year Forward View set out a clear goal that “the NHS 
will take decisive steps to break down the barriers in how care is 
provided between family doctors and hospitals, between physical and 
mental health, between health and social care”. It placed integrated, 
holistic person-centred support at the heart of health and care 
systems, breaking down barriers to the traditional divides, further 
developing out of hospital services and fostering community resilience. 
With the aim that people and families can be better supported, services 
provided closer to home and demand for hospital services can be 
reduced. 

 
The Five Year Forward View identified three widening gaps; health and 
wellbeing, care and quality and finance and efficiency.  These gaps 
resonate with the challenges faced at a Rotherham Place level, see 
section 4.3. 

 
The NHS Long Term Plan builds on the policy platform laid out in the 
NHS five year forward view which articulated the need to integrate care 
to meet the needs of a changing population. This was followed by 
subsidiary strategies, covering general practice, cancer, mental health 
and maternity services. 

 
In June 2018, the Prime Minister announced a new five-year funding 
settlement for the NHS: a 3.4 per cent average real-terms annual 
increase in NHS England’s budget between 2019/20 and 2023/24 (a 
£20.5 billion increase over the period). To unlock this funding, national 
NHS bodies were asked to develop a long-term plan for the service.  
 

P
age 63



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

11 
 

The resulting document, the NHS long-term plan, was published on 7 
January 2019, in summary: 

 

 Chapter1 - sets out how the NHS will move to a new service model 
in which patients get more options, better support, and properly 
joined-up care at the right time in the optimal care setting. 

 Chapter 2 - sets out new, funded, action the NHS will take to 
strengthen its contribution to prevention and health inequalities. 

 Chapter 3 - sets the NHS’s priorities for care quality and outcomes 
improvement for the decade ahead. 

 Chapter 4 - sets out how current workforce pressures will be 
tackled, and staff supported. 

 Chapter 5 - sets out a wide-ranging and funded programme to 
upgrade technology and digitally enabled care across the NHS. 

 Chapter 6 - sets out how the 3.4% five year NHS funding 
settlement will help put the NHS back onto a sustainable financial 
path. 

 Chapter 7 - explains next steps in implementing the Long Term 
Plan.       
 
 

Adult Social Care - The Care Act 2014 sets out in one place, local 
authorities’ duties in relation to assessing people’s needs and their 
eligibility for publicly funded care and support.  

 
Under the Care Act 2014, local authorities must: 
 carry out an assessment of anyone who appears to require care 

and support, regardless of their likely eligibility for state-funded 
care  

 focus the assessment on the person’s needs and how they 
impact on their wellbeing, and the outcomes they want to achieve 

 involve the person in the assessment and, where appropriate, 
their carer or someone else they nominate 

 provide access to an independent advocate to support the 
person’s involvement in the assessment if required 

 consider other things besides care services that can contribute to 
the desired outcomes (e.g. preventive services, community 
support) 

 use the new national minimum threshold to judge eligibility for 
publicly funded care and support. 
 

The Place Plan takes into account these national drivers and will 
continue to drive integrated working across health and social care in 
Rotherham. 

2.6 How this plan was developed 
Rotherham’s Place Plan details our joined up approach to delivering 
key initiatives that will help achieve the Rotherham Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy.  All services should be provided as close to the 
patient as possible, the only reason for services being provided outside 
Rotherham is where there is a compelling reason of clinical safety or 
improved patient experience. Providing the right care in the right place 
will mean that more people will receive care closer to their home.   
The development of the Place Plan is a joint collaboration with 
representatives from key stakeholders across Rotherham’s health and 
social care services. 
 
The Place Plan does not replace partners’ individual plans but rather 
builds upon them identifying areas where we can do more together.  It 
uses insights from the H&WB Strategy and the JSNA, and takes 
account of other key relevant documents, both local and national. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 64



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

12 
 

National 

 NHS Mandate to NHS England (revised) 
2018-19 

 Five Year Forward View (2014), 
Implementing FYFV (2016), Delivering the 
FYFV (2015) and Next Steps FYFV (2017) 

 Five Year Forward View for Mental Health 
(2016) 

 General Practice Forward View (2016) 

 NHS Long Term Plan (2019), Interim People 
Plan, NHS Mental Health Implementation 
Plan 

Local 

 The Rotherham Plan 2018 

 Rotherham Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy (2018) 

 Rotherham Health and Social Care Place 
Plan (2018) 

 South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw ICS Plan 
(2019) 

 NHS Rotherham CCG Commissioning 
Plan 2018-20 

 Rotherham Strategy for Primary  
Care 2019 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3 Achieving Our Aspirations 

3.1 Rotherham – an overview  
A Rotherham pen-picture: 
Geography 

 Rotherham is a borough covering 110 square miles 

 The population of 264,700 is estimated to be growing by about 
1,200 annually, mostly living in urban areas, equating to 108 
thousand households 

 It is also made up of many towns, villages and suburbs which form 
a wide range of geographic communities 

 Rotherham has a wealth of green space across the borough, in 
the form of country and urban parks, nature reserves, woodlands 
and playing fields. Although used well in some areas, others offer 
an often untapped resource within communities 

Age structure 

 The local age structure is slightly older than the national average, 
with a lower proportion of those aged 16-44 but a higher proportion 
of those aged 45-74, and noticeably fewer aged 18-24 reflecting 
students moving away 

 The number of people aged over 85 is expected to increase by 
33% between 2018 and 2028 

 Of the 264,700 population there are 51,300 children aged 0-15 and 
25,900 young people aged 16-24 (MYE 2018) 

Deprivation 

 The links between poverty and poor health outcomes are well 
established 

 57,600 people (22%) live in areas that are amongst the most 
deprived 10% in England 

 Universal Credit roll out began in Rotherham in July 2018 and is 
estimated to have a significant impact 

 12,543 children live in poverty (21.5%, latest data from HMRC 
2016), with 10,700 in workless families 

 At ward level child poverty (2015 data) ranges from 9% in Sitwell to 
45% in Rotherham East, 33% in Rotherham West and 36% in 
Valley 

P
age 65



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

13 
 

 Based on data published in the End Child Poverty 2018 Report, all 
age poverty was estimated at 18.6% (49,000) based on absolute 
low income 

Ethnicity 

 Rotherham’s Black, Asian and minority ethnic (BAME) population is 
relatively low (8.1% in 2011) when compared to the national 
average (13% in 2011), though this is estimated to have increased 
by at least 10% since census data 

 The largest of these communities are Pakistani/Kashmiri and 
Slovak/Czech Roma 

Physical Activity 

 There is evidence to suggest access to green space has a 
beneficial impact on physical and mental wellbeing; yet modelled 
survey data suggests only 13.5% of people locally use outdoor 
space for exercise or health reasons 

 The percentage of adults walking (15.3%) or cycling (0.6%) for 
travel at least 3 days per week are both significantly lower than the 
England averages (23.1% and 3.2%) (2017/18 data) 

 The increasing use of private cars affects congestion and air 
quality, in addition to the missed opportunities and benefits of 
physical activity. Encouraging active travel would help improve 
health and reduce the particulate air pollution which is estimated to 
cause around 4% of deaths locally 

Education 

 Rotherham has 95 primary schools, 16 secondary schools and 6 
special schools 

 GCSE performance is similar to the national average and has risen 
in 2019, but the performance of children from Rotherham’s poorest 
families compares unfavourably with the national averages on 
many educational attainment measures 

 The percentage of 16-17 year olds not in education, employment or 
training (5.9%) is similar to the England average (6%) 

 The rate of Looked After Children (LAC) is significantly higher than 
the national average 

 The percentage of children achieving a good level of development 
at the end of reception (school readiness) 73.1% is higher than the 
England average (71.5%).  

 Pupil absence rates (5.1%) are higher than the England average 
(4.8%).  

Voluntary Sector 

 The borough benefits from a vibrant Voluntary and Community 
Sector (VCS), comprising almost 1,400 organisations with 3,600 
staff and around 49,000 volunteer roles  

 In 2015 it was estimated by Sheffield Hallam University that the 
paid VCS workforce contributed £99m to the economy per annum 
and that volunteers provide approximately 85,000 hours of time per 
week 

Carers 

 Carers make a significant contribution to family support for those in 
ill health or with disabilities 

 8,772 people (aged 16-65) in Rotherham are entitled to Carers 
Allowance with 6,042 receiving the payment due to their role as a 
carer 

 Cohesive communities and good social links support mental health 
and resilience, but the percentage of those who have ‘as much 
social contact as they would like’ is 46.0% for adult social care 
users and 36.3% for adult carers, however this is comparable with 
the national average 

Economy 

 Rotherham has a fast growing economy with jobs being created to 
meet identified needs and local employment levels at a historically 
high rate, close to the UK average 

 70 businesses signed up as Rotherham pioneers; McLaren signed 
a 20 year deal to be based at the Advanced Manufacturing Park 

 Rotherham’s employment rate has risen recently then fallen again 
(71.8% in Rotherham and 75.6% nationally in March 2019) 

 There are 104,400 jobs in Rotherham, an increase of 11.4% since 
2011. However, whilst employment rates are improving, the gap is 
increasing for vulnerable groups, such as those with learning 
disabilities or in contact with secondary mental health services 

 Earnings in Rotherham are lower than both the regional and 
national average; in 2018 the weekly average salary was 86% of 
the national average 

P
age 66



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

14 
 

 Working-age people in Rotherham are more likely to work in lower 
skilled occupations (process plant and machine operatives, 
elementary occupations) and less likely to be employed in higher 
skilled occupations (managerial, professional and technical roles) 

 The Annual Population Survey shows that 17,700 people in 
Rotherham were either unemployed or long-term sick in 2018/19, 
which is 11% of the working population (16-64) and above the 
England average of 8% 

 Significant redevelopment has included the University Centre 
Rotherham, bus interchange and the internationally recognised 
Advanced Manufacturing Park, with more planned as part of the 
agreed Town Centre Masterplan 

Housing 

 House prices have risen significantly – 17% over 5 years but 
income (gross weekly pay) has only increased 10% over the 
equivalent period of time.  

 The average income is below national average and the average 
house price (£151,400) is 4:5 times the average income level, 
pricing a large proportion of the population out of home ownership 
and leaving them reliant on social or private rented housing.  

 10.1% of homes across Rotherham are in fuel poverty (2017 data 
released in 2019), this is just below the national average of 10.9% 
and is the lowest level since 2013. However when considered on a 
ward basis, some areas are as high as 27.5%. 

 The percentages of adults with learning disabilities or in contact 
with secondary mental health services that live in stable and 
appropriate accommodation are better than the England average 

 Poor quality housing, a contributor to excess winter deaths, is an 
issue for Rotherham particularly in the private sector, where 7% are 
in a state of disrepair, this increases to 10% in the private rented 
sector. 13% of private sector are estimated to have some level of 
health and safety risk under the Housing Health and Safety Rating 
Standard (HHSRS) this increased to 16% in the private rented 
sector. 4.2% have an Energy Performance Certificate (EPC) rating 
below band E. 20% of the boroughs private sector households are 
classed as low income, with 11% estimated to be in fuel poverty.  

 The Strategic Housing Market Assessment estimates between 550-
650 new homes are needed annually to keep up with population 
and demographic change. It also highlighted increasing affordability 
issues and suggests 716 affordable homes are required to ensure 
people are adequately housed in homes that meet their needs and 
that they can afford to run.  

 An Action Plan has been developed in response to the 
Government’s Housing Delivery Test, to ensure Rotherham 
increases its delivery to the levels recommended. Since the Local 
Plan Sites and Policies Document of June 2018; the Council has 
granted permission for over 1,500 new homes, with a further 1,000 
in the pipeline to be determined in coming months, which will 
contribute towards the shortfall. The Council has also directly 
delivered over 230 new homes through its new build programme 
over the last five years, many of which meet the needs of older 
residents or households with a disabled family member. 

 The Council manages just over 20,000 homes for social rent, all of 
which continue to meet the national decency standard. 

 
Local health and social care services: 
 

30+ 
nursing/residential 

homes 

One lead body for 
voluntary and 

community sector 
groups 

6 Primary Care 
Networks/ 30 GP 

practices 

One local authority 

261,000 population 

One Clinical 
Commissioning 

Group 

One hospital (acute 
and community 
health services) 

One GP Federation 

One ambulance 
provider 

One mental health 
provider 

One Hospice 

P
age 67



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

15 
 

3.2 Rotherham’s population - health and wellbeing  
The Rotherham Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) has been 
re-designed and this refreshed JSNA sets out more clearly the range 
of data which informs how health and wellbeing in Rotherham is 
influenced by a wide range of factors. Local profiles help to describe 
the differences within Rotherham, as well as contextualise Rotherham 
in comparison to our nearest neighbours, and the regional and national 
picture. The JSNA will help to inform strategic direction and highlight 
recommendations for action. 
 
Peoples experience of health and wellbeing is influenced by more than 
health and care services. There are stark differences in the life 
expectancy of people living in the best and worst off parts of the 
borough, with a difference in life expectancy of up to 10.8 years. The 
single biggest cause of ill health and health inequalities are socio- 
economic factors such as education, employment and income, as well 
as family and social support networks available to people and the 
physical environment, housing, transport and access to green spaces.  
 
The following diagram demonstrates the things that can impact on 
people’s ability to live a healthy life and the strength of association 
between these health factors and health outcomes. Healthcare is only 
responsible for a fifth of people’s health outcomes, though with greater 
attention to inequalities around services this could be increased. 
Addressing health behaviours, partly through lifestyle interventions but 
also through changing social norms, the availability and cost of 
tobacco and alcohol, etc will make a bigger difference. 
 
The greatest improvements in population health will be gained through 
addressing the social and economic determinants of health, which will 
need concerted partnership action. Not only will this make a difference to 
life expectancy but it will also improve people’s quality of life. 
 
(County Health Rankings Model 2016:  
https://www.countyhealthrankings.org/explore-health-rankings/measures-data-
sources/county-health-rankings-model) 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Length of Life 50% 

 

Quality of Life 50% 

 
 

Health 

(30%) 

Diet & Exercise 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

 

Social and 

(40%) 
Income 

 

 

Physical 

(10%) 

Air & Water Quality 

 

The Causes of poor health and wellbeing 

P
age 68

https://scanmail.trustwave.com/?c=8983&d=5b-43tiIlGdNnhGlarMYxu-qrNh12IbxqWBuDRFjYQ&u=https%3a%2f%2fwww%2ecountyhealthrankings%2eorg%2fexplore-health-rankings%2fmeasures-data-sources%2fcounty-health-rankings-model
https://scanmail.trustwave.com/?c=8983&d=5b-43tiIlGdNnhGlarMYxu-qrNh12IbxqWBuDRFjYQ&u=https%3a%2f%2fwww%2ecountyhealthrankings%2eorg%2fexplore-health-rankings%2fmeasures-data-sources%2fcounty-health-rankings-model


 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

16 
 

This table shows some of the significant challenges for Rotherham as shown in the JSNA. 

The health of people in 
Rotherham is generally 

poorer than the 
England average 

Life expectancy in 
Rotherham is lower 

compared to the 
national average by 1.8 

years for males and 
1.4 years for females 

(2015-17) 

The gap in life 
expectancy between 
the most and least 
deprived parts of 

Rotherham for males is 
10.8 years and females 

is 8.4 years 

Deprivation in 
Rotherham is amongst 

the highest 20% in 
England, 45% of the 
population live in one 

of the 30% most 
deprived SOAs in 

England 

10.2% of 4-5 year 

olds and 23.6% of 10- 
11 year olds are 

obese, this is 
significantly above the 

national average 

The rate of hospital 
admissions for dental 
extraction in children 

aged 0-5 years in 
Rotherham is one of 

the highest in the 
country 

Above average overall 
rate of hospital 

admissions for alcohol-
related conditions but a 
below average rate of 

under 18s being 
admitted to hospital. 

In older people aged 
65 and over, hip 

fracture rates are in 
line with the national 

average, though there 
are significantly higher 

hospital admissions 
due to falls in those 

over 80 years. 

Mental health problems 
affect one in four 

people at some point 
each year 

An estimated 18.9% of 
Rotherham adults 
smoke, above the 

national average of 
14.4%, smoking 
related hospital 

admissions are 42% 
above average. 

The number of older 
people is increasing,  
and people will live 
longer with poorer 

health 
On average, men will 
spend 24% of their life 

in poor health and 
women 30%. 

The percentage of 
adults walking 

(15.3%) or cycling 
(0.6%) for travel at 

least 3 days per 
week are both 

significantly lower 
than the 

England averages 
(23.1% and 3.2%) 

Despite local actions 
Rotherham’s suicide 
rate is significantly 

higher than England 
and one of the highest 

in the country. 
However, the most 

recent data showed a 
good decrease 

The gap in 
employment rates 

between vulnerable 
groups and the rest of 

the population is 
increasing, such as for 
those in contact with 

secondary mental 
health services. 

Depression 
prevalence (14.3%) 

is significantly higher 
than England. An 

estimated 18.6% of 
16+ have a common 

mental health 
disorder and 10.9% 
of 18+ have a long 
term mental health 

problem, (both higher 
than England average) 

GCSE performance in 
2019 of children from 
Rotherham’s poorest 

families compares 
unfavourably with the 
national averages on 

many educational 
attainment measures 

From national survey 
data, Rotherham has 

significantly higher 
rates of self-reported 
low satisfaction, low 
happiness and high 

anxiety 
 

17.9% of mothers 
smoke during 

pregnancy contributing 
to increased risk of 
stillbirth, low birth 

weight and neonatal 
deaths 

5.9% of 16-17year olds 
in Rotherham are not 

in employment, 
education or training 

(or activity not known), 
same as the 6.0% 

nationally 

30% of the Rotherham 
population are 

estimated to drink at a 
level that puts their 

health at risk (14 units 
per week) and the rate 
of alcohol-related harm 
hospital stays is worse 
than the average for 

England 

There are about 6,550 
Potential Years of Life 

Lost each year in 
Rotherham through 
causes considered 

amenable to 
healthcare, this is 

around 1,400 years 
more than might be 

expected based on the 
England average 

Early deaths from 
cancer, heart disease 
and stroke have fallen, 
but remain worse than 
the England average 

Significantly more 
Rotherham 
children are 

affected by income 
deprivation 24.3%, 

compared to 
19.9% 

nationally.(ID 
2015)This rises to 
50% for children 
living in the  most 

deprived 
areas 

Rotherham’s 
breastfeeding initiation 

rate is amongst the 
lowest in the region at 
56.0%, contributing to 

levels of childhood 
obesity and paediatric 
hospital admissions 

Premature respiratory 
mortality rates are 

relatively unchanged 
and liver disease 

mortality rates have 
increased 

9.4% of working age 
people in Rotherham 

are claiming long term 
sickness or disability-

related benefits 

Half of people aged 75 
years and over live 

alone and most 
experience loneliness, 
especially those who 

are widowed 

Almost 500 smoking 
related deaths each 
year in Rotherham – 
30% higher rate than 
the England average 

 

P
age 69



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

17 
 

It is good to highlight that whilst we have significant challenges we also 
have significant successes: 
 

 Jobs are being created in Rotherham to meet identified needs and 
the local employment rate has risen significantly, now almost 
matching the national figure; gross value added (GVA) growth is 
predicted to rise from £4.3 billion in 2017 to £4.8 billion in 2028. 

 Childhood vaccination rates in Rotherham are generally good, but 
there are certain population groups where rates are not as high  

 Two year-old early education take-up in Rotherham has shown a 
continued increase and is above the national average of 72% as at 
January 2019.  

 At Key Stage 5, the Rotherham ‘A’ Level or equivalent pass rate 
(A*- E grades) was 99.0% in 2019, which is 1.4% above the 
national pass rate of 97.6% (as reported on the BBC) 

 Rotherham special schools are all judged good or outstanding by 
OFSTED; the percentage of pupils with SEND support achieving a 
good level of development in Rotherham has increased in 2019 
and is 8.2% above their national average counterparts. 

 Primary and secondary attendance figures have increased in 2019, 
persistent absence figures have decreased in 2019, and the overall 
rate of primary and secondary fixed term exclusions has decreased 
in 2019.  

 The rate of under 18 conceptions in the borough has more than 
halved in the last 10 years although still above the England 
average. 

 More people are having routine vaccinations and cancer screening 
in Rotherham than the national average. 

 The percentage of obese adults has fallen recently (from 71.2% to 
62.7%) bringing Rotherham in line with the England average, 
though poor diet and lack of physical activity will hinder further 
improvement.  

 Mortality rates have reduced over the long-term (since 2001-03), 
including infant mortality (below England for 2016-18 ), mortality 
from causes considered preventable and premature deaths from 
cardiovascular disease and cancer. 

 Cancer screening uptake rates are significantly higher in 
Rotherham compared to England for breast cancer, cervical cancer 
and bowel cancer. Abdominal aortic aneurysm screening is in line 
with the national average. 

 Dementia diagnosis rates are significantly better than nationally; it 
is estimated that 85.5% of those with dementia who are aged 65+ 
years have been diagnosed.  

 The number of people newly diagnosed with a sexually transmitted 
infection is below the national average 

3.3  The Case for Change 
The JSNA clearly tells us that we have significant challenges to 
address.  In the coming years we anticipate growing pressures across 
a range of services.  This will include not only health and social care 
but also supported housing, informal care and other services.  We 
expect these pressures because of a range of factors as described in 
the table above. 
 
We still, however, all want health and care services that can meet our 
needs now and in the future.  Rotherham partners aim to offer safe, 
compassionate and high-quality care, however, the challenges we face 
mean that we need to change the way we work to improve care and 
get better value for the resources we have available.   
 
As our population grows, and more people live with more long-term 
conditions, the demands on our services are changing and increasing.  
Current services are not necessarily designed for todays or future 
needs, and it is increasingly harder to keep up with rising costs.  
 
In the past 10 years, the number of people aged 65 and over in 
England has increased by 1.4 million, a 17% rise and the number of 
people reaching their 80th birthday. These people are more likely to be 
living with complicated conditions that mean they need support.  We 
need to make the most of opportunities to improve health and 
wellbeing, prevent illness and support people to manage existing 
conditions and stay independent.  

 

P
age 70



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

18 
 

Rotherham partners have come together to commission and provide 
services.  By working together we can transform the way we work and 
further improve the health and wellbeing of our population and at pace.   
 
Our vision is to put local people at the heart of services, helping people 
to stay well and independent in their own homes and communities and 
avoid being admitted to hospital, we want to: 
 
• improve the health and wellbeing of local people  
• deliver high-quality, joined-up health and social care  
• offer access to the right care and support in the right place, at the 

right time  
• ensure staff are able to continue to deliver the caring ethos of the 

NHS and social care 
• better meet people’s needs within existing funding  
• build health and care services that are sustainable for years to 

come 
 
The Five Year Forward View identified three widening gaps; health and 
wellbeing, care and quality and finance and efficiency.  These gaps 
resonate at a local level, as described at section 4.3.1 to 4.3.3.  The 
transformation workstreams we have identified - children and young 
people, mental health, learning disabilities, urgent and emergency care 
- aim to address both the challenges for Rotherham and close these 
three gaps.   
3.3.1 Better Health and Wellbeing 
A major cause of ill health and premature death is due to diseases that 
could be prevented by living healthier lives.  We aim to get serious 
about prevention, improve healthy life expectancy and reduce the gap 
in health inequalities and support individuals to maintain active and 
healthy lifestyles. 

 
We want health and care to be managed long before someone needs 
to have hospital treatment or experiences problems in their life. We 
want to do this in a way that is right for them, whether this is through 
providing information and advice, or through more active management.  

We want a culture in Rotherham where people feel empowered to be 
part of the decisions around their care and support, to maintain dignity 
and independence and drive their own care. 

We will better meet the needs of local people by targeting individuals 
that can gain most benefit. We will do this through expanding our 
Social Prescribing service both for those at risk of hospitalisation and 
for mental health clients and through continued systematic use of 
Healthy Conversations (brief interventions) and advice by every 
statutory organisation using Making Every Contact Count (MECC) and 
Five Ways to Wellbeing. We will train front-line staff to talk about 
sensitive issues such as loneliness, suicide, alcohol use, healthy 
eating habits, increasing physical activity, mental wellbeing and 
quitting smoking. We will also ensure quick and easy referral to 
evidence based lifestyle services (e.g. treatment of tobacco 
dependence) to support those that are ready to change and in a way 
that is right for them. 

 
In section 9 we detail further transformation priorities that will help us to 
achieve our aspirations for improved health and wellbeing for our 
population. These initiatives will allow us to better support individuals 
to make positive, sustained lifestyle changes by adopting a person-
centred and a whole community approach to improving health and 
well-being.   
3.3.2 Better Standards of Care and Quality  
There are variations in the quality of care received and differences in 
how services are delivered and the outcomes received.  We aim to 
work together to reshape care delivery, harness technology, drive 
down unwarranted variations in quality and safety of care so patients’ 
changing needs are met and unacceptable variations in outcomes 
stop. 

 
We want health and care services that provide people with an 
alternative to entering services or having a hospital admission.  We 
want to continue to support increased community care to improve 
patient outcomes, improve flow through the system and provide 
effective facilitated discharge, with a ‘Home is Best’ ethos.   

 

P
age 71



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

19 
 

We will continue to build on the progress so far, taking a more holistic 
and integrated approach across physical and mental health, social 
care and the voluntary and community sector in order to develop and 
embed an integrated model of care which supports individuals and 
their carers.  We will use new technology to support the delivery of our 
key priorities and use Population Health Management to understand 
current and future health and care needs so we can better tailor care 
and support and design more joined up and sustainable services.  

 
In section 9 we detail further transformation priorities that will help us to 
achieve our aspirations for improved standards of care and quality for 
our population. These initiatives will increase quality and standards 
across the health and social care system, reduce inappropriate 
hospital admissions and reduce waiting times.  We aim to provide 
equitable services to meet the needs of our population.   
3.3.3 Better use of funds (spending the Rotherham £) 
The forecast is for an inevitable continued growth in demand for 
services, largely from our growing and aging population.   
  
We aim to manage demand by supporting people to be healthy, 
increase productivity and efficiency to maximise available resources 
and redesign services to develop new ways of delivering joined up 
care.  By matching funding levels with wide-ranging system efficiencies 
we will avoid a combination of deteriorating services, fewer staff, 
deficits and restrictions on new treatments. 
 
In Rotherham we collectively spend in the order of £650m on Health 
and Adult Social Care and Children’s Services.    

 
System partners fully acknowledge that they are jointly responsible for 
ensuring the effective use of the available financial resource within the 
Rotherham place. Place based thinking and new ways of working will 
continue to take us beyond existing organisational boundaries for both 
the commissioning and delivery of provision. As we mature into our 
place base culture of working, unsurprisingly, we will increasingly make 
transparent financial decisions that not only support individual partners 
to be sustainable, but consider the impact on the wider place position.  

Our commitment to working in partnership to best utilise the 
Rotherham pound is strong. However we cannot underestimate the on-
going significant financial challenge facing individual place partners 
within our system: 
 

 The CCG, although forecasting financial balance in the current 
year, has identified an efficiency requirement in the range of £10m 
to £12m per annum over the next five years. 
 

 Through prudent financial management, RMBC has delivered 
balanced financial outturns over the last three years, whilst 
continuing to deal with significant social care pressures and year 
on year reductions in Government funding. The Council’s two-year 
budget for 2019/20 and 2020/21 requires delivery of a further £30m 
savings alongside driving transformational change in service 
delivery across the Council. Expectations are that the Council will 
maintain a balanced budget outturn for the current financial 
year.       

 

 TRFT is operating to a financial plan of breakeven in 2019/20.  This 
includes £14.8m of Provider Sustainability and Financial Recovery 
Funding.  This funding is only received on delivery of the quarterly 
financial targets.  

At the end of November, the Trust is £0.5m adverse to plan 
reflecting activity/acuity pressures impacting on increased 
workforce costs.  The Trust is still forecasting delivery of its 
financial plan though with risks around workforce and winter 
pressures. 

 

 RDaSH is operating to a breakeven position and if achieved will 
receive £1.2m of Provider Sustainability Funding.  
 
 

  

P
age 72



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

20 
 

As at the end of December 2019, RDaSH is on plan to meet its 
break even duty overall as a Trust. The Trust is experiencing a 
significant 20% overspend against its agency staff cap and this is 
driving a number of cost pressures in operational services. In 
addition the Trust is forecasting an underachievement against its 
internal cost improvement programme. This will amount to a cost 
pressure of £1.8m in 2019/20 equivalent to 32% of the overall cost 
improvement challenge. This pressure will have to be carried 
forward into 2020/21 and delivered in that financial year to ensure 
overall financial stability is maintained. 

Given the respective financial positions of partners, we will need to 
continue to make difficult financial decisions within our Rotherham 
Place. Of increasing importance is that we do this wherever possible 
collectively, ensuring that we mitigate any impact on other place 
partners.  
 

4 Enabling Workstreams 

4.1 Workforce Development 
Our workforce and communities are key to delivering the Rotherham 
Integrated Health and Social Care vision and bringing the “Place” to 
life.  To realise this we need to encourage and support our workforce 
to think innovatively to help to create a future model of service 
provision that puts the Rotherham people at the very heart of 
everything we do. We need to actively engage with the population of 
Rotherham to empower them to be dynamically involved in maintaining 
and supporting their physical, mental and social health, thus ensuring 
that communities are confident to be self sufficient and know how to 
access the right support and service at the right time to meet their 
needs 
 
Our workforce is our most unique and valuable asset but also our 
biggest challenge due to changing needs and requirements of the 
population we serve.  Robust systems and processes are being 
cultivated to secure and develop the current and future workforce, 
including embracing alternative workforce solutions by creating unique 

opportunities to introduce cross organisational posts to allow a more 
efficient and seamless service for users.  
 
Place partners are committed to investing in our workforce; ensuring 
that there is a skilled, experienced and motivated workforce working 
within the right environment and demonstrating the right behaviours 
that are vital for delivery.  This incorporates adapting roles to allow us 
to achieve our place plan objectives, in conjunction with organisational 
development to change behaviours and cultures, fostering a culture of 
honesty and transparency which transcends across all levels within all 
partners. 
 
As our Place base working matures, aligns and integrates our systems 
and structures, we recognise there is a stronger need to focus on our 
workforce. To develop this further we need to be proactive in changing 
ideas and concepts regarding workforce at all levels across our place , 
which in turn will change our culture  towards one of ‘Place first, 
organisation second’.  
With the ethos of “Place first, organisation second” there are five key 
points which are interwoven within our plans: 

 Making the Place the best place to work 

 Improving leadership capability 

 Tackling the workforce challenge 

 Delivering 21st Century Care 

 New operating model for workforce 

An assets and strengths based framework needs to  be developed and 
embedded to allow for collaborative working; a more engaged 
workforce and population ensures increased productivity and effective 
working which ultimately results in high quality care delivery.  Mapping 
population health to enable the workforce to develop is essential in 
ensuring the right skill mix and appraised training takes place to meet 
the needs of the changing population, which, combined with  an 
engaged population, who are actively encouraged to participate in their 
own health and wellbeing, will result in greater choice and control. This 
multifaceted approach will contribute towards individual personalised 
support and care planning according to individual needs, ensuring that 

P
age 73



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

21 
 

the population are empowered to take control and ownership of all 
elements of their health and wellbeing and have the appraised support 
of a mature and developed workforce.  
Organisational Development 
As a place we have agreed that we need to adopt one framework for 
organisational development across all partners. The model of choice is 
the Burke-Lit win model.  
 
The model identifies that change is influenced from environmental 
factors not just organisational factors and by embracing these 
concepts within the ‘Rotherham Place’ we can develop and deliver 
positive change across all partner organisations, acknowledging that 
these different factors influence and direct changes. A skilled and 
experienced workforce, working within the right environment and 
culture is key to delivery. Eight parts of the identified framework have 
been focused upon to create and define appropriate systems, including 
where we place emphasis on the local community development to 
improve population engagement with health and social care services 
which will ultimately improve population health.  Opportunities for 
improvement have been identified below: 

 OD Area  Organisation Development Area 

1.  Mission and 
Strategy  

  Create a  collective vision to enable improved 
communication with our staff and  
communities  

 Ensure that safety, quality and efficiency 
underpin our vision 

 Collaboratively develop a collective brand for 
the Rotherham Place  

2.  Leadership   Create a multidisciplinary leadership 
programme, which has the vision of ICP plan 
embedded within it 

 Commitment to lead change together 

3.  Culture   Change culture and behavior to take a 
Rotherham Place first approach  

 Develop opportunities to co-produce 
initiatives such as staff well- being and 
resilience building  

4.  Structure   Develop mechanisms that allow cross 
organisational recruitment and retention, 
using values based recruitment  

 Where appropriate create opportunities to 
introduce cross organisational posts 

5.  Management 
Practice 

  Create Rotherham Place ‘talent’ 
management opportunities  

 Introduce Rotherham Place apprenticeship / 
intern opportunities – including levy sharing 

6.  Systems   Align induction processes to ensure place 
and organisation is covered  

 Create an accredited training programme that 
supports transferable skills and ensures 
cross working across partner organisations 

7.  Tasks and 
individual 
value / 
behaviours 

  Agree a set of cross organisation “Place 
Based” staff values  

 Have a collaborative approach to identifying 
good and problematic areas of joint working  

 Develop an accepted approach to use of 
language in our Rotherham Place  

8.  Engagement 
and 
motivation 

  Undertake across organisation engagement 
events - ‘The Best solutions come from staff 
themselves.’ 

 Engage staff on ‘what matters to them’  

The changing workforce  
Rotherham as a Place needs to be the employer of choice, ensuring 
that recruitment and retention is effective in a very competitive 
employment market. This includes being a flexible employer, tackling 
bullying and harassment and having an inclusive and compassionate 
culture. Effective inclusive leadership is fundamental in developing and 
changing culture. Leadership needs to be developed as a priority to 
create a culture that focuses on people, inspiring and motivating the 
workforce to be committed and engaged in working more effectively 
and efficiently to provide high quality care across partner 
organisations. 
 

P
age 74



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

22 
 

Our workforce across the Place is changing both in terms of the people 
who work within it and the way in which we, as partners, manage and 
develop our workforce to ensure we deliver the best service we can to 
our communities.  We need to empower our population and 
communities to take ownership of all aspects of their health, 
developing an assets and strengths based framework which supports 
and enables this. 

 
Workforce shortages are significant across every workforce group with 
vacancies and a lack of stability across a number of key professions. 
There is a definitive need to ensure that as a Place we develop a talent 
pipeline that feeds the workforce. This needs to be sustainable and 
meet the demands of the changing population. This will include 
effective recruitment and retention processes and ensuring that there 
is an effective adaptive skill mix model which has strong links with 
social care to enhance the wellbeing of communities. To realise this 
ambition there is a need to transform the workforce through the 
introduction of new roles covering areas such as data, science and 
digital skills. 

 
A key challenge across the Place is to ensure that there are the right 
number of staff with the right skills in the right place to meet the 
population’s needs. The long term plan is clear that local health and 
care organisations need to work with Integrated Care Systems (ICS), 
as they mature, to help equip them with the tools and resources 
needed for place-based workforce planning and transformation.  As a  
Place it is acknowledged that some of the acute and community based 
specialties would benefit from a networked approach for workforce that 
would provide greater sustainability. 

 
Rotherham has a diverse and active voluntary and community sector 
(VCS), underpinned by thousands of volunteers. It is recognised that 
building on a ‘community asset’ based approach requires the VCS to 
be rooted within our local communities and neighborhoods; and that 
the VCS plays a crucial role in prevention and early intervention, 
enabling self-help, and supporting community resilience. As a Place 
there is acknowledgement that a VCS offer of support delivery does 

not mean zero cost and that appropriate investment is required to 
support delivery of our plans.   

 
Across the Rotherham Place, partners have developed strong 
relationships, with local colleges, universities and also Health 
Education England. We see these relationships developing further and 
being built upon. These organisations are key to supporting the 
Rotherham Place to deliver our workforce challenges. 

4.2 Finance, including System Efficiency 
System partners recognise the challenges of delivering improvements 
and transforming health and care services at a time of increased 
demand and lower growth in resources, and understand the 
importance of working collaboratively to address these challenges.  
 
To help facilitate this, the ICP Finance group was established in May 
2019, membership consists of Chief Finance Officers and Directors of 
Finance representing all Rotherham ICP partners. 
 
Its role is to support delivery of the ICP Place Plan by providing 
specialist financial advice to the ICP; this includes assessing and 
advising on financial matters linked to or arising from the ICP Place 
Plan and its underpinning initiatives and schemes.  
 
Importantly, the group provides a forum for the ICP Place Board to 
refer financial matters to and a forum for individual system finance 
leaders to refer financial matters to.  
Key deliverables include: 

 developing a joint understanding of the financial impact of place 
initiatives on individual partner organisations and on the ICP as a 
whole. 

 developing appropriate financial strategy and governance 
arrangements to support delivery of ICP and partnership working.  

 observing and documenting the financial impact on individual 
organisations of ICP Place Plan initiatives. 

 developing an ICP Place based financial framework including any 
transitional funding arrangements.  

 

P
age 75



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

23 
 

The ICP Finance group works to the ICP principles, but in addition has 
specific aims to;  ensure the best possible use of the Rotherham 
pound; be open and honest, fostering an open book approach to 
disclosing and sharing of financial information; observe and respect the 
financial sustainability of partner organisations by ensuring financial 
impact is jointly acknowledged and made transparent. 
 
Whilst system partners acknowledge the joint responsibility for the 
effective use of the available financial resource within the Rotherham 
place, each partner also has its own challenges and mitigations: 

 

 RMBC has a three-year Medium Term Financial Strategy and has 
moved to setting two-year budgets with effect from 2019/20.  
Regular reports on finance are submitted to Cabinet which review 
current financial performance and develop and agree budget 
savings proposals to meet future funding shortfalls. 

 
Medium Term financial plans take into account forecasts of 
demand, particularly for social care services and assessment of 
risks around the pace of delivery of transformational change. The 
Council’s overall financial sustainability is underpinned by 
integrated financial strategies which are developed through the 
budget engagement processes. 

 
There is a quarterly Performance reporting process in place where 
performance, finance and HR data are reviewed in parallel, firstly 
by the Strategic Leadership Team and then reviewed with 
Members through formal reporting to Cabinet and Overview and 
Scrutiny Management Board.   

 CCG 5 year allocations were published during January 2019, 
followed later by a requirement for Integrated Care Systems (ICS) 
to submit 5 year financial plans during November 2019. The CCGs 
own financial plan is a constituent part of the overall ICS plan. We 
work closely with health partners, in particular with those at Place, 
to align our financial planning assumptions as far as possible and 
the CCGs financial plan is constructed with clinical input and 
oversight and signed off through internal governance processes.    

Performance against plan is reported monthly up to Governing 
Body, who also monitor progress of the Quality, Innovation, 
Productivity and Prevention (QIPP) schemes, an important element 
of ensuring financial sustainability.   

 TRFT has a 5-year strategy and plan which provides the forward 
look and golden thread to the annual operational plan.  Delivery 
against the operational plan is managed through the Trust 
Management Committee, with assurance provided to the Finance & 
Performance Committee and Board of Directors. 

 RDaSH has a 5-year strategy 2019-24 which provides focus and 
direction, the context of which drives financial planning. Workforce, 
digital and collaboration to drive improved safety and quality 
standards remain the core pillars for the future, which align with our 
local ICS and Place Plans. Robust governance through the 
Finance, Performance and Informatics Committee and 
subsequently Board assess delivery against plans. Future control 
totals have been received and accepted by the Trust Board. Risks 
and opportunities are identified and managed through the 
contracting cycles, with the inherent risk of cost improvement 
challenges and costs pressures assessed at the start of each 
financial year and monitored in line with reporting requirements.   

 
We will continue to review external reporting at the most appropriate 
unit of accountability, which going forward may include Primary Care 
Networks.  Our aspiration is to better direct financial resources to 
deliver more impact on health outcomes. 
4.2.1 Social Value 
Social Value is the added value, delivered in addition to a contract. It is 
about improving the lives of local people by increasing the economic 
resilience of our place, supporting a thriving civic society, improving 
our green spaces and building a Rotherham that is inclusive and caring 
that people are proud to call home. 
 
Rotherham has one of the fastest growing economies in Yorkshire, and 
it is vital that all residents benefit from this continued growth. As key 
anchor institutions, we collectively spend in the order of £650m per 
year across the health and social care system, and we can harness 

P
age 76



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

24 
 

this purchasing power to bring added value to our local communities. 
By embedding social value in our contracts and commissioning 
processes we can help to improve the local economy, increasing 
spend locally, developing innovative delivery models and creating new 
opportunities.  
 
When all public sector partners act together adopting similar social 
value principles, the impact is amplified across the local economy. 
Rotherham Together Partnership are developing a Social Value 
Charter for Rotherham, which will set out how public sector 
commissioners and procurers, service providers and community 
organisations will work together to maximise the amount of Social 
Value in our place.  
 
By signing up to this charter, partners are committing to principles, 
such as:  
 

 To ensure that as many residents as possible are paid the 
Joseph Rowntree Living Wage 

 To spend local with the voluntary sector and SMEs where 
possible 

 To improve the education and skills of residents 

 To give employment opportunities to disadvantaged residents, 
including those who are disabled  

 Supporting fair and worthwhile employment where workers 
have strong rights and good working conditions 

 
Embedding these principles within each of our organisations will 
support our collective commitment as partners to best utilise the 
Rotherham £ and reduce health, social and economic inequalities 
within the borough.  All partners signed up to the charter will develop 
appropriate social value requirements which reflect these principles 
and measure and report on the amount of social value generated 
annually to the Rotherham Together Partnership.  
 
 
 

4.3 Communication and Engagement 

The communications and engagement strategy describes the approach 
and direction that focusses on informing, sharing, listening and 
responding to the people of Rotherham; and how we can work together 
collaboratively to improve both services and lives. All partners have 
statutory duties in terms of engagement, but more than that, we know 
that real and meaningful engagement with the people that are using or 
may use our services is fundamental in ensuring that plans will be 
effective and practical. Specific communication and engagement will 
take place, with a variety of stakeholders, for each of our five 
transformational workstreams and we will continue to develop 
meaningful communication, in a simple and easy to understand way 
that demonstrates how we will drive transformation. We will consider 
the most effective ways of communicating and engaging with local 
people, including those who are hardest to reach and for those whom 
English is not their first language. 
 
Communication and engagement messages will focus on what the 
plans will mean for children, young people and adults in Rotherham; 
making the plans more tangible and encouraging participation and 
engagement.  As the work develops, we will share the impact of 
engagement through examples, stories and case studies. 
 
Planning and delivery of our communication and engagement in 
Rotherham will be co-ordinated with the activity at an overarching ICS 
level. Our inclusive approach to communication and engagement with 
individuals and groups will include:  

 proactively and effectively communicating our vision, 
transformational priorities and achievements. Being proactive is 
central to our vision for communication and engagement with local 
people  

 developing two-way communication opportunities; where we share 
news, we listen and respond and are visible to local people. Where 
appropriate, we will look to use new and innovative ways to engage 
and communicate with our local communities in an ever growing 
digital environment, whilst considering the needs of individuals with 
limited digital access or knowledge. 

P
age 77



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

25 
 

 implementing relevant and effective communication and 
engagement tactics with key audiences and stakeholders 

 encouraging people of Rotherham to take care of themselves, 
making healthy choices with a focus on prevention and self-
management. We want people to be active, happy and comfortable 
in their own homes where possible  

 using an asset based approach; making the most of our joint 
resources; avoiding duplication of activity, and building on the skills 
and knowledge of Rotherham people 

 using a variety of mechanisms for engagement, utilising skills, 
resources and contacts in a manner proportionate and appropriate 
to the issue; with opportunities covering the spectrum from seeking 
feedback to co-creation. 
 

We recognise our staff as one of our biggest assets in the 
development and transformation of health and care. We will develop 
co-ordinated and timely staff and clinical communications and 
engagement activity across all partner organisations, allowing them to 
shape the transformation process and have their say on what matters 
to them. 
 
We are committed to the active participation of local people in the 
development of health and social care services and as partners in their 
own health and health care. Local people will have an important voice 
in how services are planned, delivered and reviewed.  We need local 
people in Rotherham to influence change that will improve services, 
health outcomes and their experience of care. 
 
The successful delivery of the place plan is dependent upon 
collaboration between health, social care and voluntary sector, and to 
a degree, a level of understanding from a wider set of stakeholders 
from across Rotherham.  The place plan has been jointly developed by 
health and social care partners in Rotherham and, in doing so, we 
have engaged views from a range of local partners by presenting the 
plan at the Health and Wellbeing Board, Rotherham Together 
Partnership, GP Members Committee, Health Select Committee, and 
through each partners’ governance structure.  

The following examples describe some of our key successes and how 
we have used the intelligence we have received.  Looking forward we 
have ongoing plans for engagement, focused on enabling delivery of 
the place plan. 
 

P
age 78



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

26 
 

Trailblazer Supporting Children’s Mental Health 

Rotherham and Doncaster are piloting a ground-breaking project to support Children’s Mental Health, with staff based in schools to offer support.  Co-design has been a feature throughout 
development of the project, with a series of workshops in schools involving primary and secondary age children and young people.  The young people were very clear about all aspects of the 
project, from the promotional materials, to access and what they wanted to see in place – some of which was incorporated, though other suggestions, such as school dogs, perhaps was a little 
more challenging to act on. Information and promotional materials have been developed and distributed to assist the teams providing support in the schools involved in the pilot. 

Rotherham Health App – Patient Story 

Six years ago I had to have an operation to have my thyroid removed, which means I 
now have to have an annual review of my health, regular medication and blood tests. 
I’m a busy mum of three young children and teach outside of the Rotherham area, 
which means fitting in time to contact the GP practice is hard, as I set off before the 
practice is open and when I get back from work I need to see to the kids. By the time I 
sit down the practice is closed. This means I have to ring when I get breaks. Often the 
phone just rang out meaning I had to call back quite a few times to get a response.  
 
When I heard about the Rotherham Health app it sounded too good to be true; being 
able to book appointments in the practice without ringing, and order my medication 
seemed to really address the issues I was experiencing. I was also told about being 
able to use the app on behalf of my kids, which was another reason I wanted to use it. 
 
The app has really changed how we access care in my family. I feel the biggest thing 
is that it gives me better control over my health, as I can see when my annual reviews 
are coming up and book in when I need to – even on an evening and weekend! If I 
hadn’t got the app I don’t think I’d have known about the extended access evening 
and weekend appointments.  
 
I‘m no longer wasting time waiting on the phone, I can just log on to the app and 
because the app tells you what each clinician can do you can make sure you book 
into the right person straight away. 

Primary Care Access 

During Winter 2018, we used the texting service to ask patients about primary care 
access, and what they wanted and needed. We had over 2,000 responses. 
 
From this, the challenges in accessing primary care for people in work, or with other 
commitments such as caring were clear, a number of people referred to the 
challenges of access for shift workers, and the difficulties in seeking routine care for 
check-ups and tests.  It was also apparent that although many people’s first 
preference was for a face to face appointment, that a large number of people would 
consider an alternative means of accessing care, if this meant that access was prompt 
and convenient.  Younger people and those in work particularly expressed interest in 
using new technologies; and it was noted that these may increase access for those 
with poor mobility or young children. 
 
As a result of this, we are improving access through the Rotherham Health App and 
the Extended Access Hubs, which provide appointments with an appropriate clinician 
on evenings at weekends. 

Integrated Discharge Team: Patient Story 

Evidence suggests that patients are more likely to make a better recovery at home and regain or retain 
independence the earlier they return home or to a suitable care home setting. However, delayed 
transfers of care are a significant challenge nationally, particularly for patients who have complex needs 
and requirements. In response to this challenge an Integrated Discharge Team (IDT) was formed, made 
up of nurses, social workers and therapists and has had a significant impact on outcomes for patients.  
 
Mrs Hepworth (name changed) is an 85 year old living on her own.  She has end stage Chronic 

Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD) and complex co-morbidities.  Following a urinary tract infection 
and exacerbation of her COPD she was unavoidably admitted to hospital.  Work began on preparing for 
her discharge during her stay and she received therapy input to maintain mobility. The IDT worked 
together across acute and community nursing, therapy and social care in order for Mrs Hepworth to 
return home.  Discussions took place with her Community Matron, who was best placed to understand 
Mrs Hepworth’s ongoing needs.   Her previous care package was increased, further equipment aides 
were put in place including a pendent and it was arranged for a re-assessment in two weeks’ time once 
Mrs Hepworth had settled back at home.  The team also liaised with Age UK to arrange some 
befriending to ensure Mrs Hepworth wasn’t isolated on her return.   
 
Previously Mrs Hepworth would have had a longer length of stay, increasing the risk of infection or a fall 
and loss of mobility in hospital, and would most likely have been discharged to a Discharge to Assess 
Community Bed. The difference in this outcome demonstrates the significant impact that integrated 
working can have for patients.  

 Men’s Mental Health 

Partners have been working with stakeholders and communities across Rotherham to improve support 
for mens mental health needs at a community level.  Two key projects are thesmall grants scheme and 
‘Be the One’ suicide prevention campaign. 
 
A report on the first set of small grants has demonstrated the real difference and benefit these small 
amounts of targeted funding can bring.  They target ‘upstream’ interventions; ensuring that mental 
health is on the agenda; is in men’s vocabulary and building conversations.   Organisations have told us 
that as a result, some are using the funding as a basis for additional funding; others about men now 
ready to join mainstream groups, who are working again for the first time in years, and men who have 
found creative outlets that have allowed them to express themselves as never before. 
 
‘Be the one’ is a campaign encouraging all of us to be the person that will talk and listen for friends and 
family that are struggling; people with lived experience of mental health problems were fundamental in 
designing and building the approach. The campaign website received around 200,000 hits and reached 
one million people on social media in the first two months. Individual stories have been shared since the 
launch of the campaign that demonstrate the impact of the powerful messages. 

P
age 79



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

27 
 

4.4 Digital 
Digital is already established as an enabling workstream to support the 
three transformation groups (Children and Young People, Mental 
Health, Learning Disabilities and Neurodevelopmental Care and 
Urgent Care and Community). We report to the ICP Delivery team and 
upwards to the Rotherham ICP Place Board and Health and Wellbeing 
Board. These governance arrangements ensure all our digital 
programmes and activities focus on achieving the ambitions of the 
Place Plan and wider Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 
 
We have recently developed the Rotherham ICP Digital Strategy that 
will help us to deliver the transformation objectives articulated in this 
Place Plan and the digital requirements of the NHS Long Term Plan.   
 
The NHS Long Term Plan (2019) sets out a 10-year blueprint that has 
informed the development of our digital strategy. The five key aims of 
the Long Term Plan are to: 
 
1. Boost ‘out-of-hospital’ care and dissolve the historic divide between 

primary and community health services; 
2. Reduce pressure on emergency hospital services;  
3. Give people more control over their own health and more 

personalised care when they need it; 
4. Digitally enable primary and outpatient care;  
5. Increase the focus on population health and local partnerships with 

local authority-funded services, through Integrated Care Systems. 
 

Digital Primary Care is a developing ambition nationally and has been 
championed in the Long Term Plan to ensure that “by 2023/24 every 
patient in England will be able to access a digital first primary care 
offer”. Emerging national initiatives and programmes have been 
established to enhance the use of digital services and solutions in the 
primary care setting. Our strategy explains how we seek to deliver 
these programmes, and our ambitions to expand delivery beyond 
primary care and into the wider health and care landscape.  
 

Our Strategy is focused on making the best use of existing 
investments, regional digital developments and ensuring that 
investments made at organisation level will support both organisation 
and place objectives. It replaces our Local Digital Roadmap which 
identified place wide digital programmes of work between 2016/ 2019. 
 
Our strategy focuses on the delivery of four programmes of work (key 
activities in brackets): 

 Infrastructure (maintenance and refresh of digital infrastructure; IT 
services review; skills and resource collaboration) 

 Sharing care records (further develop the Rotherham Health 
Record system; increased adoption of the Rotherham Health 
Record system; integration with the Yorkshire and Humber Care 
Record) 

 Patient Access and Engagement (Rotherham Health App 
development; Place wide website; Place wide Communications and 
Engagement strategy) 

 Intelligence and Analytics (development of a  population health 
management tool; clinical analytical support; alignment with 
Yorkshire and Humber Care Record) 

4.4.1 Information Governance 
As we deliver more digital programmes to support the delivery of this 
Plan, the scope of data we will collect, and re-use will broaden, and we 
will need to regularly review our arrangements and policy in this area. 
We currently use the ICP Digital Group to sign off sharing agreements 
between partners.  
 
Partner organisations are individually responsible for Information 
Governance, collectively our aim is to focus and make sure that we will 
always use legal and secure methods to collect the data we use and 
share about Rotherham people. Working with our commissioning and 
service delivery partners, we will ensure that individuals and service 
users understand the reasons, purposes and value of their data and 
how it is used. 
 
Ensuring that data that is recorded, collected, managed, maintained 
and accessed transparently, legally and securely under General Data 

P
age 80



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

28 
 

Protection Regulations (2018) is a high priority and key responsibility 
for all health and care service providers in Rotherham. We will 
continue to ensure we meet all legal and statutory requirements in this 
area and apply best practice.  
4.4.2 Infrastructure 
Our aspiration is to provide a flexible and scalable infrastructure to 
support the delivery of high-quality integrated care and to allow a 
growing number of professionals to work seamlessly together in an 
agile manner. We also want to make sure we are connecting our local 
core systems to enable the faster flow of information between services 
and organisation boundaries. We are making good progress towards 
this with each of our partner organisations implementing secure Wi-Fi 
services through the GovRoam programme and the implementation of 
regular infrastructure refresh programmes. Similarly, each of our 
partner organisations have a good level of digital maturity and a stable 
systems landscape. 
 
Whilst what we have now is good, we do feel it could be better and our 
programmes of work in this area are: 

 An infrastructure optimisation programme to ensure all staff can 
work in an agile manner across our joint estate; 

 Joining up and enhancing our data networks across the place, 
ensuring greater coverage for our health and care services; 

 Ongoing maintenance and refresh including networks, desktop, 
storage and cyber security; 

 An IT Service Review to identify areas for further collaborative 
working; 

 Further skills and resource sharing, particularly in relation to 
technical skills and procurement. 

4.4.3 Sharing Care Records 
The seamless flow of information across organisation boundaries with 
patients able to access and contribute to their own care record is 
essential for the delivery of high-quality, joined-up health and social 
care to the people of Rotherham. To achieve this, we will use existing 
digital solutions and services to support better, faster, safer sharing of 
patient records across care settings and to ensure we keep improving 
the flow of information. 

We already have the Rotherham Health Record, a web-based solution 
developed by The Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust (TRFT) to display 
acute, community GP, Social Care, Pathology and Ambulance records. 
We have also procured the Rotherham Health App which is offered to 
all Rotherham patients and supports online consultation, access to 
patient online services, booking into extended access services and 
lifestyle management support. 
 
The Rotherham Health Record and Rotherham Health App will be our 
primary digital tools for sharing information. 
 
In addition to these tools we are also participating in the Yorkshire and 
Humber Local Health Care Record Exemplar (LHCRE) Programme to 
provide a shared record across the Yorkshire and Humber region. This 
will support record sharing for patients who travel out of Rotherham 
Place for part of their care. 
 
Our Programme of work in this area includes: 
● The development and wider adoption of the Rotherham Health 

Record (RHR) to support integrated care delivery, focusing on how 
it can help to support the priorities against the three workstreams 
identified in this Plan;   

● Using the RHR to support the delivery of national initiatives such as 
the digital maternity record and digital Red Book; 

● Further develop the RHR to support shared care plans for use 
across the health and care community;  

● An RHR adoption and expansion programme working with the 
transformation workstream leads to determine how best to facilitate 
adoption of the solution to support their business processes and to 
identify priority developments to support transformation; 

● Establishing a proactive communications programme to ensure that 
patients and the public are aware of RHR, how it is used for their 
care and the information governance policies in place to ensure the 
security of their data. 

 
We plan to work with the supplier to ensure the Rotherham Health App 
is a useful tool to support information sharing and giving Rotherham 
people the ability to contribute to their own records: 

P
age 81



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

29 
 

● Integration of the App with RHR to allow patient access to health 
and care records; 

● Linking the app with self-testing devices to allow patients to input 
data directly into their GP record. 

 
We are keen to learn from successful shared record programmes 
elsewhere and we will re-use proven standards if they can help us to 
achieve of our local aims. With so many similar programmes 
happening across the country we will keep sight of these programmes 
and will use the RHR Steering Group and the ICP Digital Group to 
discuss further possibilities for this solution. 
4.4.4 Patient Access & Engagement 
Our vision in the Place Plan puts local people at the heart of services, 
helping people to stay well and independent in their own homes and 
communities and avoid being admitted to hospital. We want to find the 
right digital tools to help empower Rotherham people and transform 
their experience of health and care, starting with the Rotherham Health 
App. 
 
Our aspiration is to use digital services to make it simpler and easier 
for individuals to access our services and engage with health and care 
professionals and give access to the right information and services for 
their needs as well as manage and contribute to their own records and 
care planning.  
 
We recognise that we have a diverse population with differing needs 
and variable access to technology. We will prioritise making our 
services digitally available to everyone. We do not want to leave 
anyone out, from people with complex, long term conditions to finding 
ways to keep people healthy and well from birth. 
 
The programmes of work and activity in this area will include: 

 Use of consistent solutions such as video consultation tools across ●
provider organisations to help empower Rotherham people and 
transform their experience of health and care, prioritising the 
development of the Rotherham Health App to be the digital “front 
door” to health and care services in Rotherham, starting with 
primary care; 

 Expanding the Rotherham Health App functionality for Place-wide ●
usage. There are plans in place to develop the app to allow the 
booking and delivery of outpatient appointments at TRFT, and to 
incorporate the Cancer Holistic Needs Assessment for patients to 
complete via the app.  

 Linking the Rotherham Health app with Gismo, the Rotherham ●
directory of organisations to help people living and working in 
Rotherham find the right groups and services for their needs. 

 A Place-wide digital inclusion programme - working with RMBC and ●
partners to agree a strategy for digital inclusion for the entire town.  
 

We will use the existing ICP workstreams, specifically the Digital and 
Communications Group forums to align our individual organisation 
digital programmes and to identify opportunities where we can deliver 
our digital strategy jointly.  
4.4.5 Intelligence & Analytics 
Population Health Management (PHM), and the Business Intelligence 
to support this, is a key enabler for delivery of the Rotherham Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy and Place Plan. PHM recognises that health 
and wellbeing is more than just being ‘without disease’. It moves away 
from managing disease in silos to an approach based on ‘populations’ 
that may be defined geographically or by common health and care 
needs. This requires a shift in thinking from planning based on services 
to a citizen focus and a significant development of our analytics 
capability. 
 
We aim to be in a position where the focus on health and care service 
planning is focused on the citizen and everyone involved in planning, 
designing and delivery of care in Rotherham has the necessary data to 
support evidence-based decision-making.  
 
We will develop our intelligence and analytics capability by continuing 
to work closely with regional partners across South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw ICS to share knowledge and learning. Providing the best 
understanding of Rotherham citizen’s needs and service usage. 
 
We will explore the best use of new technologies across the Place, to 
improve how data is analysed, reported and visualised. Using these 

P
age 82



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

30 
 

technologies as appropriate to present and visualise citizen data, 
generating insight beyond traditional service based reporting. 
 
We will focus on: 

 Aggregating citizen-level data (including health, social care, ●
economic and environmental data) and ongoing development of 
these linked data sets; 

 Development of a population segmentation model against which ●
we will analyse this data based on common characteristics rather 
than by disease;  

 Identification of cohorts of citizens with similar health and care ●
needs; 

 Identifying appropriate interventions for those needs. ●
 

Once this capability is developed, maximising the use and positive 
effects of the evidence-based decision-making, it will require 
development of the interpretive skills of our clinical and commissioning 
decision-makers. 
4.4.1 Digital Inclusion 
We recognise that we have a diverse population with differing needs 
and variable access to technology. We will prioritise making our 
services digitally available to everyone. We do not want to leave 
anyone out, from people with complex, long term conditions to finding 
ways to keep people healthy and well from birth. Rotherham is 
committed to delivering information and services digitally wherever 
possible and will try to ensure we address the needs of the people in 
Rotherham who are most likely to be digitally excluded.  
 
We will be launching a Place-wide digital inclusion programme, 
working with RMBC and others to agree a strategy for digital inclusion 
across the borough, and work collaboratively to reduce digital 
exclusion for our population. All partners involved in the programme 
will be actively involved to ensure we make services fully available to 
all ages and ensure that the digital services we deliver are as inclusive 
as possible. 
 
Several schemes are being considered to help educate and promote 
digital skills in the community. We will look to establish partnerships 

beyond our partner organisations, to make as much progress as we 
can in improving digital inclusion.  Moving forward with these schemes 
will aid us in achieving our objectives and in increasing the take up of 
digital services for people in Rotherham. 

4.5 Housing, Communities and Estate 
If we are to be successful in the delivery of our place ambition, we 
need to ensure that our available housing and estates act as an 
enabler to our strategic transformation workstreams. Partners 
recognise the value of working together and taking a strategic 
approach to asset management and getting the most from our 
collective assets.  As well as buildings, this includes community assets:  
the skills and knowledge of local people; community groups; informal 
networks; and public spaces.  
 
Working within a ‘One Public Estate’ model, system leaders within the 
Rotherham place have agreed four key principles for how we will 
approach our place discussions regarding housing and estates: 
1. We collectively value our best assets and will engage in 

constructive dialogue to maximise their optimisation 
2. When making decisions we will take into account the impact on 

partners and not just our own organisations  
3. We will work together to co-ordinate Rotherham Partners’ Estates 

Strategies.  
4. Our estate decisions will support the wider Rotherham Economic 

Growth Plan, Housing Strategy, Thriving Neighbourhoods Strategy 
and the Rotherham Together Partnership. 
 

Our established Strategic Estates Group continues to work 
constructively, identifying available estate across the system, ensuring 
it is fit for purpose and identifying disposals where possible. It will 
continue to respond to the changing needs of services and the 
population. Examples of work to date include the successful One 
Public Estate Phase 6 (OPE6) bid for resources to support 
transformation including a scheme to create shared storage across the 
system.  
Rotherham place was also successful in 2017 in securing funding to 
facilitate agile working across providers to enable community teams to 

P
age 83



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

31 
 

work more effectively and reduce the footprint required. Rotherham 
place is also working with the ICS Strategic Estates Board in 
developing and delivering the ICS Estates Strategy and with the 
Sheffield City Region’s Public Asset Development Group to develop 
their Estates Transformation Strategy, to ensure estates strategies 
work beyond the Rotherham boundary.   System leaders are clear that 
our approach to utilising estate needs to be driven by our Place Plan 
transformation; there are a number of key estate decisions that will 
need to be made at a Place level during the period of this plan. These 
will include, but not limited to, the future use of the Joint Service Centre 
at Rawmarsh, the future use of the Badsley Moor Lane Campus and 
how the wider Partners can support the requirement to invest in the 
Primary Care estate  

 
It is important that people have access to local, well managed services 
but the type of housing they live in also has a huge impact on health. 
Good quality, affordable housing provides the basis for people to live 
healthy, independent and fulfilling lives.    

 
The population continues to age and pressures on the health services 
to support individuals is increasing. Therefore it is important that we 
plan for housing that is care and support ready so that people can live 
in their home for as long as they wish, whilst reducing reliance on 
public services and encouraging independence.  
 
The Housing Strategy sets out how RMBC and partners can deliver the 
right homes in the right places so we continue to meet people’s needs 
now and in the future. The role of housing goes beyond bricks and 
mortar; providing investment in council stock, encouraging 
improvements in private housing provision, development of new 
homes, and engagement with tenants and residents all contribute to 
creating healthy, stronger and more resilient communities. Getting 
people in the right housing and building community resilience can lead 
to improved health outcomes, financial wellbeing and reduced social 
isolation. 

4.6 Prevention 
Prevention priorities need to take into account where people live, work 
and play, and include: 
1. Reducing tobacco dependence throughout the borough 
2. Supporting everyone to achieve a healthier weight 
3. Encouraging daily physical activity for all 
4. Ensuring alcohol is consumed responsibly throughout Rotherham 
5. Tackling climate change and air pollution 
6. Slowing the development and spread of antimicrobial resistance. 
7. Taking co-ordinated action on the social determinants (the causes 

of the causes) of health 
 
A key part of prevention should be addressing health inequalities as 
detailed at the end of this section. This should focus on where people 
live, work and play as much as on health services. 
 
Prevention should be a universal offer. However, in order to address 
health inequalities it will be necessary to additionally ensure that 
prevention activities are effectively targeted and appropriate for those 
in the greatest need. 
 
Also important to addressing health inequalities is reducing variation in 
access to treatment, quality of care received, and differences in 
delivery and outcome. This links to the remit of primary care section 6, 
planned care section 7 and major conditions section 8. There are also 
a number of activities which do not necessarily quite fit into the above 
priorities but support prevention: 

 Enabling digital inclusion by increasing digital literacy and access 
to information on health including prevention, for example via the 
Rotherham App 

 Social prescribing 

 Improving workforce health in RMBC, TRFT to allow staff to 
better engage the public in discussions on their health (Making 
Every Contact Count) 

 Healthy hospitals 

 Consistent communication messages across sectors 

 Personal health budgets/self-management 

P
age 84



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

32 
 

People will also be supported to manage their own health through core 
health services and the provision of high quality primary care services. 
Population health management capabilities and capacity are being 
developed, and services are being designed to meet the needs of 
communities with the greatest needs. This will enable prioritisation of 
services which have the biggest potential to decrease inequalities and 
help change the culture of the NHS to recognise prevention as a core 
responsibility of staff all support prevention. 
 
The following provides highlights for each of the prevention priorities. 
In appendix 1 we detail the challenge, what we are doing to address it, 
and the expected benefits. 
 
Tobacco Dependence 
Tobacco dependence is the single biggest cause of preventable 
illness, and the prevalence rate for smoking in adults in Rotherham has 
recently increased to 18.9%, the highest since 2015, and it is higher 
than the England average of 14.4%. It accounts for half of the health 
gap between the poorest and most affluent communities, as well as 
being a major contributor to the 15 – 20 years gap in life expectancy 
between people with a severe mental health illness and the general 
population. 
 
Tackling tobacco dependence in Rotherham involves: 

 Providing the Public Health commissioned smoking cessation 
service for adults within the Get Healthy Rotherham (GHR) 
Integrated Lifestyle wellness service. 

 Partnership working between Public Health and TRFT to reduce 
the prevalence of women smoking at time of delivery to 16% or 
less by end of 2022. 

 Systematic implementation of the QUIT programme, to treat 
tobacco dependency of patients in secondary care (acute and 
mental health trusts) and provide ongoing support 

 Trading standards working across Rotherham to enforce legislation 
on smokefree public places and standardised packaging, as well as 
ensuring reduction of access to illicit tobacco and preventing the 
sale of tobacco products to children. 

Obesity 
Tackling the high levels of overweight or obesity in our society is 
important for preventing a number of conditions, such as type 2 
diabetes, coronary heart disease, stroke and some types of cancer, as 
well as psychological problems. In Rotherham 24.2% of 4-5 year olds, 
37.1% of 10-11 year olds, and nearly two-thirds of Rotherham adults 
are overweight or obese. 
 
Reducing the high prevalence of overweight and obesity in Rotherham 
requires a whole-system approach across the borough: 

 Development of a local ‘Healthy Weight for All’ Plan to promote 
healthy weight and reduce obesity across all ages, by all NHS 
partners and council  

 Adoption of the Local Authority Declaration on Weight to create 
healthy environments for local people. 

 Development of a local plan by the Rotherham Activity Partnership 
(RAP) to get the population of Rotherham more engaged in 
physical activity 

 WHAM (weight, health and attitude management service), the 
public health commissioned child weight management service 
delivered by the 0-19 Service at TRFT. 

 The Get Healthy Rotherham weight management support offer in 
partnership with Slimming World. 

 Implementing new Supplementary Planning Document for health 
and inequalities, including restrictions on new fast-food takeaways 
near schools and colleges. 

 All partners reviewing food provision in council buildings, hospitals, 
leisure centres and schools, to ensure consistenthealthy weight 
messages are given in all settings to the public and the workforce. 

 NHS partners promoting physical activity within clinical services 

 All partners developing active travel plans 

 Promotion of workforce health so staff can act as champions of 
health to the public 

 
 
 
 

P
age 85



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

33 
 

Alcohol 
Long-term alcohol misuse is associated with an increased risk of high 
blood pressure, stroke, liver disease, pancreatitis and a number of 
cancers, as well as harms from accidents, poor mental health, 
violence, antisocial behaviour, impacts on education and employment, 
family break-up and divorce, domestic abuse, financial problems and 
homelessness. 
 
Rotherham’s rate of hospital admissions related to alcohol is 
significantly higher than England with over 1,800 people admitted in 
2017/18. 
 
A number of actions to tackle excess alcohol consumption and treat 
alcohol dependence are being undertaken:: 

 Alcohol partnership events are being held and a rapid alcohol 
health needs assessment was undertaken to identify the key 
priorities for action. 

 The Challenging, Leadership and Results (CLeaR) assessment for 
responsible drinking has been completed to inform work on 
responsible drinking and the licensing process. 

 Get Healthy Rotherham provide brief interventions to individuals 
identified as having high levels of alcohol consumption 

 The Change Grow Live (CGL) supports problem drinkers with 
alcohol treatment services 

 The Alcohol Care Team in TRFT to reduce emergency attendances 
and admissions bed days, readmissions and ambulance callouts. 

 
Air Pollution 
Air pollution is strongly associated with major diseases that pose a 
great health and economic burden, including childhood asthma, 
coronary heart disease, stroke, and lung cancer. Poor air quality is 
estimated to be responsible for 4.1% of mortality in Rotherham. Air 
quality is good in most of Rotherham but there are areas of elevated 
air pollution which have been declared as Air Quality Management 
Areas (AQMA). 
 
 

A number of actions need to be undertaken which will feed into the 
wider work to tackle the climate emergency: 

 Implementation by the Council of a range of measures as part of 
Air Quality Action Plans to work towards achieving compliance with 
the air quality objectives identified in the AQMAs. 

 Production of a plan with a range of targeted measures to reduce 
emissions from vehicles and achieve compliance with the 
European Union Ambient Air Quality Directive in the shortest 
possible time as required by the Government. 

 Supporting strategies for improvements to air quality and reduce 
inequalities in health via the Rotherham Local Plan by the 
promotion of walking, cycling and the provision of open spaces and 
recreation facilities. 

 Use of Ultra Low Emission Vehicles to replace conventionally 
fuelled ones for undertaking Council and NHS business, with 
provision of public Electric Vehicle (EV) charging points in car 
parks across the borough, country parks, hospital car parks and 
leisure centres. 

 Supporting the work of the Rotherham Activity Partnership to tackle 
air pollution by encouraging active travel as part of being more 
physically active. 

 Reduced business mileage by active travel and use of technology 
for virtual meetings and appointments 

 Phasing out primary heating from coal and oil fuel in NHS premises 
 
Anti-Microbial resistance 
The overuse of antimicrobials is leading to increasing resistance to 
antibiotics that is spreading worldwide. Antimicrobial resistance (AMR) 
makes treating infections caused by multi-drug resistant organisms 
increasingly difficult, which is both costly and a safety risk. Of particular 
concern is the potential for levels of AMR to rise quickly, which 
reinforces the need for proactive control measures to prevent the rapid 
development of resistance. 
 
A number of actions are being undertaken: 

 TRFT and the CCG have been active participants of the national 
surveillance scheme for Healthcare Associated Infections and 

P
age 86



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

34 
 

antimicrobial stewardship to monitor performance around antibiotic 
prescribing rates. 

 RMBC, CCG commissioners and the CQC continually monitor and 
seek assurance that patient safety and service quality are 
maintained for Infection Prevention and Control in the public and 
independent sectors who deliver regulated services. 

 Through medicines management actions are being undertaken to 
optimise the use of antibiotics, reduce unintentional exposure to 
them and the requirement for them, and benchmarking against 
surrounding areas 

 Engagement with the UK wide Antibiotic Guardian campaign to 
raise awareness and to stimulate behaviour change in members of 
the public, healthcare professionals and other local stakeholders. 
 

Stronger Action on Health Inequalities 
Health inequalities are the preventable, unfair and unjust differences in 
health status between groups, populations or individuals that arise 
from the unequal distribution of social, environmental and economic 
conditions within societies, which determine the risk of people getting 
ill, their ability to prevent sickness, or opportunities to take action and 
access treatment when ill health occurs. This is exemplified by life 
expectancy for men and women in Rotherham being below the 
England average, and differences in life expectancy between the 
richest and poorest areas within Rotherham. 
 
This necessitates stronger action from all partners across the life- 
course. The NHS Long Term Plan emphasises a need to commit to 
progressively increase the NHS focus on prevention and ensure that 
reducing health inequalities is central to any local system plans agreed 
in partnership with local authorities. A particular focus should be on the 
most vulnerable in society. 
 
Actions to address health inequalities should be at both the individual 
level, such as improvements to knowledge around services and self- 
management abilities, and at the community or population level, such 
as those to address the underlying social determinants of health. Care 
needs to be taken to ensure that any actions to improve health and 

wellbeing do not unintentionally exacerbate health inequalities. The 
refreshed Joint Strategic Needs Assessment should inform strategies 
to tackle the leading causes of morbidity and mortality, and create 
sustainable, place-based health and care across partners in 
Rotherham and reduce inequalities for all ages. 
 
Improving the health of the worst off in society and reducing co- 
morbidities as a result of tackling the underlying causes of ill health is a 
key part of reducing the overall burden on the health and social care 
system. Across the UK, of all the potential years of life lost due to 
inequality, half come from the most deprived fifth of the population, but 
a further quarter come from people in middle socioeconomic deciles. 
Improving inequalities across the whole of society will therefore lead to 
better outcomes for all. 
 

5 Personalised Care 

Personalised care means people have a say in how their care is 
planned and delivered, based on ‘what matters’ to them, their 
individual needs and preferences. 

 
Nationally it will benefit up to 2.5 million people by 2024 and provide 
the same choice and control over their mental and physical health as 
they have become to expect in every other aspect of their life.    
 
The NHS Long Term Plan set out key commitments and actions to 
be delivered by 2023/24 as: 
1. Personalised Care will benefit up to 2.5 million people giving them 

the same choice and control over their mental and physical health 
that they have come to expect in every other aspect of their life; 

2. Over 1,000 trained social prescribing link workers will be in place 
by 2020/21 rising further by 2023/24, with the aim that over 
900,000 people are able to be referred to social prescribing 
schemes by then. Social prescribing link workers connect people to 
wider community support which that can help improve their health 
and well-being and to engage and deal with some of their 
underlying causes of ill health. 

P
age 87



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

35 
 

3. 200K people will have a personal health budget so they can control 
their own care, improve their health experiences and experience 
better value for money services over a “one size fits all” approach; 

4. 750,000 people have a personalised care and support plan to 
manage their long term health conditions; 

5. Develop the skills and behaviours of 75,000 clinicians and 
professionals through practical support to use personalised care 
approaches in their day-to-day practice 

6. That we deliver universal implementation of the Comprehensive 
Model of Personalised Care across England, which fully embeds 
the six standard components.  

 
Rotherham ICP supports the national view that individuals should be 
encouraged to support their own health care, endorsing the six 
standard components within the Comprehensive Model for 
Personalised Care: 
1. shared decision making   
2. personalised care and support planning  
3. enabling choice  
4. social prescribing  
5. supported self management  
6. personal health budgets  
5.1.1 Enabling Patient Choice 
Patient choice is at the heart of the NHS and there are a range of 
choices that patients should expect to be offered in the services they 
use.  The Choice Framework, published by the Department of Health, 
sets out the nine main types of choices that should be available to 
patients, some of these choices are legal rights, while some are 
subject to specific exceptions. 
 
NHS England established a major programme of work to drive forward 
patient choice and set a vision for 2020, with initial priorities of: 
strengthening choice in elective services, enhancing the choice 
available in maternity services, improving choice in end of life care, 
securing choice in the new care models. 
 

Rotherham ICP recognises that Patient Choice is fundamental 
to delivery of a truly patient-centred health service by empowering 
people to get the health and social care services they want and need.  
 
The NHS Long Term Plan continues the commitment to patient choice, 
and Rotherham partners will continue support and enhance patient 
choice through their commissioning and delivery of services. 
5.1.2 Social Prescribing 
Funded through the Integrated Better Care Fund, Rotherham has two 
award winning social prescribing schemes running, one for people with 
long term conditions who are referred through their GP to Voluntary 
Action Rotherham (VAR), and one to help patients under the care of 
RDaSH with a mental health diagnosis to be supported out of long 
term statutory mental health services.  The mental health scheme has 
been so successful that spare capacity has been converted into a pilot 
for 3 months to allow Primary Care Networks (PCN) nominated GP 
practices to refer patients with low level mental health issues into the 
scheme as part of the care navigation model.  This changes the model 
of care into a preventative model, upstreaming the access to “before a 
crisis” rather than after.  
 
During winter 2018, social prescribing advisors based at VAR were 
retrained to deliver personal health budgets (PHB) as part of their 
social prescribing work, this work has been completed, so now every 
patient with a social prescription receives a PHB.  Work is ongoing with 
NHS England/Improvement to allow these social prescription PHB’s to 
be included in our figures.  
 
There is a further pilot as part of their social isolation work in the south 
of the borough, for any professional (social worker, district nurse, 
police etc) who comes across someone who is socially isolated to 
make a referral into VAR for social prescribing.  This has only just got 
underway but we are hoping this cross place working will be really 
beneficial and if the expected outcomes are proven then this could be 
rolled out across the borough.  
 
In the spring, NHS England published a new ambition and model for 
the expansion of social prescribing through PCNs.  Rotherham’s six 

P
age 88

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-nhs-choice-framework/the-nhs-choice-framework-what-choices-are-available-to-me-in-the-nhs
https://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/pe/choice-guide/elective-care/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/pe/choice-guide/change-programmes#maternity
https://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/pe/choice-guide/change-programmes#maternity
https://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/pe/patient-choice/change-programmes/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/pe/choice-guide/change-programmes#ncm


 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

36 
 

PCN Clinical Directors have taken this initiative forward, utilising the 
framework of the GP Federation with a contract to VAR to host the six 
new social prescribing link workers on their behalf.  
5.1.3 Personal Health Budgets (Self Care/Self Management) 
We strongly believe that taking a person centred approach and 
empowering patients to take control of their own health care will add 
value to patients experience and support delivery of care within the 
community setting. Our leading national work on Social Prescribing 
has demonstrated this.  Section 4.6, prevention, sets out more of our 
aims.   
 
Where clinically appropriate we will encourage individuals to enter into 
arrangements for PHBs across our place, with a focus on self care and 
self management.  Individuals and community stakeholders need to be 
involved in the co-production and co-design of services, reflecting on 
what works well, what does not work so well and how improvements 
can be made to enable people to self care. 
 
We plan to grow our well established Social Prescribing service, see 
6.1.2, which empowers those individuals living with long term 
conditions to gain support to manage their own care in the community.  
 
Personal Health Budgets (PHB) are well established in Rotherham and 
we aim to increase the numbers of people with a PHB in line with the 
agreed South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw targets and the national 
expectation.  

 
In addition, we will continue to promote the Rotherham Health Care 
Record and the Rotherham App, allowing people to take control of their 
own care.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6 Primary Care 

In 2018/19, general practice provided over 1.5 million appointments in 
Rotherham. General practice is essential to Place Plan delivery and is 
undergoing significant change.  In January 2019, as part of the NHS 
Long term plan, a five year framework for GP contractual reform was 
produced ‘Investment and Evolution’ this contains significant change 
for primary care over the next 5 years. The key priorities for Rotherham 
are:  

 

 The creation of Primary Care Networks (PCNs) – the purpose of 
the networks is to enable practices to work at scale (without the 
requirement to merge), enabling improved quality and consistency 
of service. In Rotherham, six PCNs are now in place supporting 
populations of between 30 and 50 thousand people.  Each has a 
Clinical Director who are meeting regularly and establishing 
excellent links across the Rotherham Place.  Each Network has 
submitted a development plan to aid its development and 4 out of 6 
networks have additional pharmacist roles in place and are just 
implementing additional social prescribing support which 
compliments the existing infrastructure. The Clinical Directors will 
be actively involved in shaping services, for example the revised 
respiratory pathway and delivery of the primary care strategy.  The 
Clinical Directors will also work with the primary care team to 
understand how the expected new national service specifications 
can be implemented to improve care in Rotherham.   

 

 Improving access – Rotherham already provides 7 day extended 
access for the whole population and the number of hours available 
will increase again over the next year to support accessibility for 
the working population and also avoid wherever possible primary 
care attendance at the Urgent and Emergency Care Centre.  The 
NHS Long Term Plan envisages PCNs joining up the delivery of 
urgent care in the community and work is already ongoing between 
providers to make this happen. Practices now have to show 25% of 
their appointments online and work is ongoing to increase this to 
40%. Rotherham Health App is a digital platform (which can be 
used on smart phones, tablets or computers) providing patients 

P
age 89



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

37 
 

with a symptom checker, access to their medical records and the 
ability to order repeat prescriptions, book relevant appointments, 
facilitate online consultation and video consultations.  The App is 
being developed at Rotherham place to incorporate wider health 
and social care requirements e.g. cancelling secondary care 
appointments, organising maternity care, enabling telehealth and 
supporting RMBC single point of access.   

 

 Delivery of new services to achieve NHS long term plan 
commitments - The CCG will work with the PCNs to deliver seven 
national ‘network service specifications’ and their subsequent 
delivery.  Five of the seven commence by April 2020: 
o Structured medication reviews 
o Enhanced health in care homes 
o Anticipatory care (with community services) 
o Personalised care 
o Supporting early cancer diagnosis 
o The remaining two, cardio-vascular disease case finding and 

locally agreed action to tackle inequalities will commence 2021. 
 

By 2020 there will be a new Network Dashboard covering 
population health, urgent and anticipatory care, prescribing and 
hospital use. A national network investment and impact fund will 
start in 2020 which is intended to help networks make faster 
progress against the dashboard and NHS LTP goals. 

 

 Developing the primary care workforce – working with practices 
and PCNs to consider alternative roles and support the training of 
new primary care practitioners e.g. newly qualified nurses, student 
nurses, apprentices, care navigators. Care navigators are now in 
place across all practices ensuring patients are navigated to the 
most appropriate service or clinician.  Physiotherapy First has been 
rolled out to all practices, enabling patients with musculo- skeletal 
issues to be assessed more quickly by an experienced 
physiotherapist, it is understood that this is releasing GP and nurse 
capacity in practices by at least 10% improving access for other 
conditions. 

 Continuing to develop the Federation arrangements in 
Rotherham to strengthen general practice – Connect Healthcare 
are a member of the ICP and as such sit on the Rotherham Place 
Board to ensure primary care has a voice in place.  They are 
supporting collaborative arrangements for out of hours with 
secondary care and already provide extended access in 4 locations 
in Rotherham. The Federation also host a number of additional 
roles on behalf of the PCNs and are support the network 
development programme. 

 

 Population health management – Work is being undertaken in 
relation to segmentation of population health data to better inform 
place and primary care networks of their population requirements. 
The CCG will continue to expand the GP led, multidisciplinary, 
case management of patients in Rotherham at highest risk of 
admission to hospital through the continuation and expansion of 
the GP Case management programme.  This includes maximising 
the visibility of case management plans to other clinicians.  These 
arrangements will be reviewed once more detail is available in 
relation to a network specification which is being developed 
nationally. Locally a scheme has been developed with PCN 
directors to support networks to identify gaps in their population 
health requirements and develop support to meet these 
requirements locally e.g. if diabetes is a particular issue the 
network would be able to put in place services beyond the current 
CCG funded arrangements, for example, additional specialist 
nursing time or additional patient education to support 
improvement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 90



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

38 
 

7 Planned Care 

The delivery of high-quality and sustainable elective care continues to 
be a key priority across Rotherham Place.  
 
Historically, Rotherham has performed well in regard to planned care 
delivery and has a track record of delivering the 18 week wait 
standard, with outstanding performance across diagnostics. To build 
on this success, Rotherham partners will continue to work together to 
transform how we deliver planned care, how we share and roll out 
good practice and how we develop our care pathways to be as 
effective as possible. 
 
We aim to support the ambition set out in the NHS Long Term Plan 
that nationally the NHS will avoid 1/3rd of face-to-face outpatient 
appointments within five years.  Supporting this change will require a 
cultural shift across Rotherham with a step change towards self-care, 
digital solutions and enablers, and a shift of activity away from the 
secondary care sector. 
 
We have made strong progress to date on our digital agenda. We have 
implemented a virtual fracture clinic to support our patients, 
teledermatology has been rolled out to all GP Practices and we have 
developed a digital offer for patients as part of our Rotherham Health 
App which enables online and digital consultations to take place. In 
Speech and Language Therapy we have started to deliver video follow 
up clinics for voice therapy patients and are already exploring how this 
system can be expanded to other areas. We have also implemented 
clinical referral thresholds to help standardise planned care across the 
system and have rolled out Advice and Guidance to all GP practices to 
enable specialist advice to be provided locally.  
 
However, all partners recognise that there is significant further work 
required as we continue to develop and transform our planned care 
services. The implementation of clinical protocols across Rotherham 
will allow for a further reduction in unnecessary follow up appointments 
which will be supported by our ambition to improve clinical triage of 
referrals, helping to make sure the right patients get the right treatment 

at the right time. Work will also take place with specific services where 
a step change reduction in face-to-face outpatient consultations can 
take place while improving the quality of service offered. Initially this 
will include Dermatology and Ophthalmology.  
 
We will continue to make improvements to our surgical pathways to 
enable an increasing amount of patients to be treated as day cases.  
We will also continue to work collaboratively across partners to expand 
access, through initiatives such as direct access to Musculo Skeletal 
First Contact Practitioners and our integrated community approach 
using the principle of every contact matters, to offer better access to 
services closer to, or even in, the patient home.  
 
All partners in Rotherham accept that to continue to deliver high 
quality, safe and sustainable planned care across Rotherham we must 
continue to work together with an increasing focus on proactive and 
preventative care, a move of activity out of the acute setting and an 
increasing use of digital technologies.  
 

8 Major Health Conditions 

Performance in all major health conditions has improved significantly 
over the last decade, but there is still a degree of unmet need and 
unwarranted variation for the biggest killers and disablers of the 
population.   
 
The NHS long term plan sets out two clear areas for further progress 
on care quality and outcomes 1) enabling a strong start in life for 
children and young people (see section 9.1); and 2) providing better 
care for major health conditions.  
 
Our plan builds on the requirements of the NHS five year forward view 
and extends to providing better care for major health conditions such 
as cardiovascular and respiratory conditions, learning disability and 
autism, among others.  
 

P
age 91



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

39 
 

8.1.1 Research and Innovation 
We recognise that research and evaluation provides the essential 
evidence we need to transform services and improve outcomes.  
Understanding what works well and what does not and applying this to 
decision-making.  
 
Patients can benefit with breakthroughs enabling prevention of ill-
health, earlier diagnosis, more effective treatments, better outcomes 
and faster recovery.  Linking genomics, clinical data and data from 
patients provides routes to new treatments, diagnostic patterns and 
information to help patients make informed decisions about their care, 

examples include personalised medicine and shared decision 
making. 
 
Rotherham partners will continue to support Research and Innovation 
work at Regional, ICS and national level.   
8.1.2 Cancer 
Rotherham, like other areas has increasing cancer prevalence, with 
restricted capacity to deliver significant workforce issues across 
specialties particularly histopathology, dermatology, urology and 
gastroenterology.  
 
The increase also impacts on primary care which is also challenged 
with capacity issues. 
 
We have implemented risk stratified pathways in urology and lower GI 
to release capacity in secondary care, and work is underway in relation 
to primary care with support from the GP Federation lead nurse and 
the appointment of a Macmillan GP. 
  
We have also implemented straight to test for colonoscopy, straight to 
MRI for urology, and undertaken significant pathway work with all 
specialties including the implementation of a breast lump pathway, 
testicular lump pathway and vague symptoms pathway to enable 
achievement of 7, 28 and 62 day targets. 
 

Faecal Calprotection Testing and Faecal Immunochemical Test (FIT) 
testing for symptomatic and non-symptomatic has been rolled out in 
accordance with national policy. 

 
We will continue our pathway work particularly in the challenged 
specialties.  The Macmillan GP and workers from within the Living With 
And Beyond Cancer team are working in general practice to ensure 
appropriate referrals, learning for significant events and improved 
consistency in cancer care reviews. We hope to be chosen to pilot a 
version of cancer support workers in primary care.   
 
Work is underway with multi-disciplinary teams in secondary care to 
ensure that patients, as appropriate, have more discussion time and to 
enable patients to commence treatment quicker. 
 
Our aim is for improved patient pathways and shortened treatment 
times to enable the achievement of 7, 28 and 62 day targets, and to 
improve consistency in primary care management of patients living 
with cancer and those in remission and to enable care for patients in 
their own community and not in secondary care. 
8.1.3 Cardiovascular Disease 
In the management of Atrial Fibrillation (AF) Rotherham appears to 
under diagnose the condition, in the treatment of AF Rotherham’s rate 
of anticoagulation (89.89%) is slightly below the average for England 
(90.04%) and that of neighbouring CCGs.  However, Rotherham’s rate 
of hospital admissions for stroke where AF is a secondary diagnosis is 
below the Yorkshire and Humber average. 
. 
The GRASP AF tool has been promoted to all practices and its use 
forms part of the CCGs Quality Contract.  AF management has been 
compared to pathways in neighbouring CCGs where it was found that 
management is more secondary care based. 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 92



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

40 
 

Analysis of prescribing data shows no evidence that Rotherham is not 
utilising the Direct Acting Anticoagulants (DOACs).  The well 
established CCG/Secondary care anticoagulation working group will 
continue to review all aspects of anticoagulation management. 
 
The CCG prescribing incentive scheme incorporates a series of 
coronary heart disease (CHD) criteria, where the evidence base 
proves that pharmacological intervention results in improved mortality 
or event reduction. The CCGs performance improves year on year 
whilst the variability between practices decreases. 
 
Rotherham has the second highest prescribing rate for cholesterol 
lowering drugs in Yorkshire and Humber and comparative data 
indicates that cholesterol is well managed. 
 
We will continue to support the joint South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw 
ICS agenda regarding CHD prevention, diagnosis and treatment and 
continue to support the reduction in practice variability regarding 
evidenced based prescribing interventions. 
 
Our aim is for improved CHD related mortality, reduction in CHD 
events and reduction in hospital admissions. 
8.1.4 Stroke Care 
There are significant workforce challenges in this specialty in the 
medical and nursing workforce, and Rotherham has been challenged 
significantly in relation to achieving the Sentinel Stroke National Audit 
Programme (SSNAP) requirements. 
 
Centralisation of hyper-acute stroke services has commenced and the 
new pathway is working well to date.   
 
Rotherham has high performing early supported discharge from the 
acute stroke unit enabling patients to be rehabilitated quickly in their 
own environments.   
 
 

We will continue to review the stroke pathway to ensure early 
supported discharge levels are sustained and to ensure the SSNAP 
requirements are improved and sustained.   
 
Work will continue with with partners to ensure stroke patients who 
would benefit from medical thrombectomy are transferred quickly to 
Sheffield who deliver this on behalf of South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw. 
 
Our aim is for patients to receive consistent care across South 
Yorkshire and Bassetlaw at all times of the week and to ensure 
patients are rehabilitated more quickly in their own environments 
instead of using ‘false’ environments to support rehabilitation. 
8.1.5 Diabetes 
There is increasing prevalence of Type 2 diabetes linked to obesity 
levels, inconsistent engagement of primary care in diabetes 
management and challenges within the acute workforce unit to support 
community arrangements. This can lead to limited support for patients 
to manage their own conditions. 
 
We have implemented the Super Six model across Rotherham, which 
began to show some ‘buds’ of improvement with early success of the 
Diabetes Remission Course in reversing type 2 diabetes.  
 
There has been large scale education and training in the Primary Care 
workforce to improve treatment targets, including competency 
packages for Practice Nurses. We have implemented a dedicated 
advice line for Primary Care and held targeted workshops/education 
with hard to reach and BME patients with diabetes. 
 
Year 3 of the National Diabetes Prevention Programme (NDPP) has 
been implemented and we have reviewed our multidisciplinary footcare 
offer within Rotherham. 
 
 
 
 

P
age 93



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

41 
 

A further review of the diabetes pathway is being undertaken to identify 
how further improvements can be made to the pathway to increase 
compliance with the treatment targets.  
 
We plan to increase the roll-out of the Remission programme which 
has delivered excellent success, increasing the numbers who attend 
the NDPP to reduce the numbers who eventually are medicated. 
 
A wide range of audits are being conducted across the general 
practices to establish where HbA1C management can be improved. 
The results of this audit will identify areas for individual practice 
improvement and also inform how the CCGs community diabetes 
service will develop in the future. 
Our aim is to improved diabetes control for patients with Type 1 and 
Type 2 Diabetes and reduce the number of patients with type 2 
diabetes requiring medication for this condition.   
8.1.6 Respiratory Disease 
The Right Care programme highlighted that we have high cost 
respiratory services, high admission levels and poorer outcomes for 
our patients than our counterparts across the ICS. 
 
Non elective admission levels are high particularly for chronic lower 
respiratory, especially COPD.  Asthma, influenza and pneumonia were 
also highlighted as areas where Rotherham admitted more non-
electively than the Right Care peer group. 
 
We also have the 2nd highest cost per patient for oxygen in the 
Yorkshire and Humber Region. 
 
Improvements have been made from the latest refresh of Right Care 
data. These include: 

 A respiratory support unit opened at TRFT to provide more 
structured care particularly for non-invasive ventilation 

 We have undertaken a review of respiratory services and are 
entering an engagement phase  

 Pulmonary rehabilitation is already well attended in Rotherham. 
 

We will enhance our model of respiratory care provision with increased 
community and primary care involvement and increased nurse 
respiratory support into the acute unit to prevent/shorten admission to:  

 Provide a single, integrated pathway for respiratory patients to 
ensure a more consistent approach to primary care management 

 Improve diagnosis across Rotherham 

 Improve the management of respiratory patients including self 
management and provide digital options, for example, myCOPD / 
Rotherham Heath App 

 Reduce the risk of admission to hospital 

 Expedite discharge home for those who do require admission, with 
nurse support from the community team based in an acute setting 

 Improved experience for this cohort of patients and their families 

 Optimise breathing space for outpatient respiratory particularly 
pulomonary rehab and patient education to improve patient self 
management of their condition.  

 Care pathways will integrate with TRFT, with more specialist care 
at Sheffield where appropriate, but with the aim to deliver as much 
care as possible closer or in the patients own home.  

 Uniform prescribing so that the same treatments particularly in the 
form of inhaler therapy are used in primary and secondary care. 

 
Our aim will be to upskill staff across primary and community care to 
better support patients and improve outcomes.  All respiratory patients 
accessing care at the hospital will be known to the community team 
and all patients who are on home oxygen will receive a follow up to 
ensure they are on the correct prescription. 
 
We will provide more comprehensive assessment and screening and 
increased referral rates to pulmonary rehabilitation will improve patient 
outcome.  Patients will be able to go home earlier and recovering care 
will be at home in line with the NHS Long Term Plan. 
 
We will support patients to self-manage, to understand their conditions, 
what to do to manage their exacerbation and support to manage 
anxiety and depression of the disease.  
 

P
age 94



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

42 
 

9 Transformation Workstreams 

As previously described, our approach has been to identify five closely 
interlinked transformation workstreams to maximise the value of our 
collective action and transform our health and care system. 
 
These workstreams will be taken forward through three transformation 
groups; children and young people, mental health, learning disabilities 
and neurodevelopmental care and urgent and community care.  The 
following pages provide further information for each of these 
workstreams and set out the priorities each have chosen to take 
forward collectively over the next two years. 

9.1 Children and Young People 
Overview  
Children and young people are a key priority for partners in 
Rotherham.  The evidence is clear that healthy foundations in the early 
years are important to lifelong wellbeing that will increase the health, 
happiness and prosperity of the Rotherham population. 
 
Our commitment to supporting children and young people is set 
against a context of increasing levels of demand across several key 
areas.  The number of Looked After Children in Rotherham is high but 
remains stable; the number of requests for Education, Health and Care 
plans for children with special educational needs and disabilities 
continues to rise, as does the rate of referral for assessments for 
neurodevelopmental diagnosis. The number of children with chronic 
health conditions is increasing and rates of obesity for children at age 
11 are higher than in other parts of the country. 
 
Children and families access health and social care, treatment and 
education in a range of different ways; they go to nursery and school, 
see GPs and community nurses.  They may receive help and support 
from the local authority’s early help and social care pathway, go to 
minor injury units, pharmacists, walk-in centres or children’s 
assessment units. They may call 111 or 999.  Rotherham is one of five 
district hospitals providing paediatric services with a specialist neo-
natal department at Sheffield Teaching Hospitals and a specialist 
tertiary centre, Sheffield Children’s Hospital.   

From the moment that they are conceived, children need help and 
support to stay safe and thrive.  As local partners it is our responsibility 
to ensure that pathways to the right care and support are easy to 
access and high quality. 
 
Strong partnership working is a way to support children to thrive and 
achieve positive outcomes in all aspects of their lives.  Each of our 
priorities requires us to take partnership working to the next level, 
developing integrated pathways, joint commissioning arrangements 
and a shared view of our performance. Each priority will focus on a 
distinct cohort of children whose needs and vulnerabilities require fully 
integrated pathways to enable them to achieve positive outcomes 
without the barriers of organisational silos or funding restrictions.  
Whilst the priorities are not necessarily part of a single integrated 
pathway, they are sometimes overlapping and interdependent.  
 
Our work in Rotherham will also take account of wider developments in 
South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw, where the Integrated Care System 
has been working to create a single clinical network for hospital 
paediatrics. 
 
The core network includes paediatricians from each hospital alongside 
colleagues from GP practices, emergency care, children and 
adolescent mental health and the ambulance services.  There are 
close links to public health, commissioners, hospital management, and 
public and patient engagement teams. 
 
Our key areas of focus are on some of our most vulnerable groups of 
children, from conception to their third birthday, children who are 
looked after and have special educational needs and disabilities.  We 
will work together to support children and young people to have good 
mental health and to feel supported as they grow to adulthood.  We will 
make pathways to support as simple as possible, we will be 
accountable to each other and to children whose voice, individually 
and collectively, will guide our work. 
 

P
age 95



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

43 
 

Across all transformation workstreams, we have identified the data 
sets that will bring most benefit to our services and support our 
transformation workstreams are: 

 Community data  
 Troubled Families data 
 Primary Care data 
 Mental Health data 

  
Our transformation leads and service representatives will continue to 
work with colleagues to define the data sets and in ensuring the best 
use of the Population Health Management (PHM) tool to support our 
transformation priorities.  
 
Looking forward our priorities will be: 

1. The First 1001 Days 
2. Special Educational Needs and Disabilities 
3. Looked After Children 
4. Children and Young People’s Mental Health and Emotional 

Wellbeing 
5. Transitions to Adulthood 

 
Priority 1: The First 1001 Days 
The first 1001 days from conception to age two is a critical stage and 
period of rapid growth.  During this time babies’ growing brains are 
shaped by their experiences, particularly the interactions they have 
with their parents and other caregivers.  What happens during this time 
lays the foundations for future development.  Every aspect of a baby’s 
environment influences its physical, emotional and social development.  
In an environment that allows the child to develop in the most optimal 
way, with emotional wellbeing, capacity to form  and maintain 
relationships, healthy brain development and language development 
leading onto cognitive development, school readiness and lifelong 
learning will enable the child to contribute to society and also improves 
their life chances. 
 
 
 
 

The evidence shows that:  

 Ensuring that the brain achieves its optimum development and 
nurturing during this peak period of growth is therefore vitally 
important and enables babies to achieve the best start in life.  

 From birth to age 18 months, connections in the brain are created 
at a rate of one million per second! The earliest experiences shape 
a baby’s brain development and have a lifelong impact on that 
baby’s mental and emotional health.  

 A foetus or baby exposed to toxic stress can have their responses 
to stress (cortisol) distorted in later life. This early stress can come 
from the mother suffering from symptoms of depression or anxiety, 
having a bad relationship with her partner, or an external trauma 
such as bereavement.  

 International studies show that when a baby’s development falls 
behind the norm during the first year of life, it is then much more 
likely to fall even further behind in subsequent years, than to catch 
up with those who have had a better start.  

 Attachment is the bond between a baby and its caregiver/s. There 
is longstanding evidence that a baby’s social and emotional 
development is strongly affected by the quality of their attachment.   

 Babies are disproportionately vulnerable to abuse and neglect. In 
England they are seven times more likely to be killed than older 
children. Around 26% of babies (198,000) in the UK are estimated 
to be living within complex family situations, of heightened risk 
where there are problems such as substance misuse, mental 
illness or domestic violence. 36% of serious case reviews involve a 
baby under one. 

 
The best chance to turn this around is during the 1001 critical days. At 
least one loving, sensitive and responsive relationship with an adult 
caregiver teaches the baby to believe that the world is a good place 
and reduces the risk of them facing disruptive issues in later life.  
Every child deserves an equal opportunity to lead a healthy and 
fulfilling life, and with the right kind of early intervention, there is every 
opportunity for secure parent infant attachments to be developed.  
From cross party manifesto www.1001criticaldays.co.uk 
 

P
age 96

http://www.1001criticaldays.co.uk/


 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

44 
 

Our Progress 
During the first Place Plan, the 0-19 Healthy Child pathway was an 
area of focus.  The work supported the transformation agenda for the 
0-19 Service.  The service has undergone a significant re-design and 
continues to try and balance the requirements of the Healthy Child 
Programme (with prevention at its heart) and the need to meet high 
levels of presenting need.   
 
Our Plan 
A systematic approach to improving support for children, parents and 
families during this vulnerable period which requires a long-term and 
co-ordinated response is needed. 
 
As outlined in the House of Commons Health & Social Care 
Committee, First 1001 days of life, February 2019: 
High quality local services for children, parents and families should be 
founded on the following six principles: 

 Proportionate universalism, so services are available to all but 
targeted in proportion to the level of need 

 Prevention and early intervention 

 Community partnerships 

 A focus on meeting the needs of marginalised groups  

 Greater integration and better multi-agency working; and 

 Evidence based provision 
 
In Rotherham we will develop, jointly with all stakeholders and 
partners, a clear and ambitious plan to improve support for children, 
parents and families in the first 1001 days which will reflect these 
principles and set out key actions.  
 
A partnership Steering Group will be developed to provide strategic 
leadership, management and co-ordination of this priority and reports 
to the Place Board and associated governance. 
 
Key Outcomes 
Children in Rotherham are healthy in the first 1001 days and have 
good foundations for lifelong wellbeing. 

Milestones (note: final milestones will be confirmed for the performance report and 

appear in the published version of the plan) 

 Local leadership and governance in place to deliver on the first 
1001 days – Q1 2020 

 Carry out a scoping exercise and gap analysis to identify services 
already contributing to the first 1001 days and what we need to 
develop – Q3 2020 

 Development of a local action plan to deliver on the first 1001 days 
– Q3 2020  

 To explore realigning commissioning pathways and commissioning 
arrangements in relation to 0-19 services – Q4 2022  
 

KPIs (note: final KPIs will be confirmed for the performance report and appear in the 

published version of the plan) 

 Increase breastfeeding prevalence at 6-8 weeks 

 Increase the proportion of children aged 2-2 half years receiving 
ASQ-3 as part of the Healthy Child Programme or integrated 
review 

 Reduce percentage of women smoking at time of delivery   
 

Priority 2: Special Educational Needs and Disabilities 
The Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) Code of 
Practice Statutory Guidance (2015) sets out how local areas will work 
together to ensure that children and young people with special 
educational needs and disabilities are identified early, have their needs 
met and achieve positive outcomes. 
 
Partners from the local authority, Rotherham schools and colleges and 
all health partners work together to ensure that outcomes for children 
with SEND are positive.  The SEND Strategic Board is established and 
has recently agreed a clear set of outcomes that will help us to assess 
if our work together is making a difference.   
 
Our Progress 
A SEND Sufficiency Strategy has been agreed for both health and 
education.  New arrangements are in place to add capacity to the 
health system, including speech and language, special school nurses 

P
age 97



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

45 
 

(to add training capacity) and occupational therapy resources to enable 
the delivery of a new sensory model. 
 
New special school places have been created, and a further 111 
school places in the borough will be developed by September 2020 
 
New arrangements are in place to deliver specialist equipment to 
children and young people; a process is in place to agree funding and 
waiting lists have reduced significantly 
 
Co-production arrangements are in place and the VOICES Day held in 
November 2019 will ensure that the new SEND strategy embeds the 
principles of co-production into planning and identifies our ambition for 
the next 3 years. 
 
Our Plans 
The SEND Strategic Board will continue to monitor the progress made 
towards the delivery of projects that will deliver the identified outcomes.  
The focus will be on joint commissioning arrangements and ensuring 
that clear pathways are in place to support children with SEND to be 
healthy, fulfil their educational potential and prepare well for adulthood. 
 
Key Outcomes 

 All children and young people in Rotherham with SEND to enjoy 
good physical and mental health 

 All young people in Rotherham with SEND are well prepared and 
supported to exercise choice and control to enable them to enjoy 
fulfilling lives  

 All Children and Young People in Rotherham with SEND and their 
families have their voices heard and this makes a difference to their 
experiences and outcomes   

 All children and young people in Rotherham with SEND have 
positive opportunities to make progress in a person-centred way 

 
 
 
 

Milestones (note: final milestones will be confirmed for the performance report and 

appear in the published version of the plan) 

 The Rotherham Sensory Model is implemented and embedded. 

 Roles and responsibilities to support children with Special 

Educational Needs and Disabilities in school are clearly understood 

 A graduated response is in place and supported by a clear 

commissioning framework for all of the following areas: 

o Dyscalculia 
o Dyslexia 
o Dyspraxia 
o Hearing Impairment 
o Moderate Learning Difficulties 
o Physical Needs 
o Social Communication Autism Spectrum 
o Social Emotional and Mental Health 
o Visual Impairment 

 
KPIs (note: final KPIs will be confirmed for the performance report and appear in the 

published version of the plan) 

 % of services are delivered in the required time period (18 weeks) 
(SALT (Speech and Language Therapy), OT (Occupational 
Therapy), PT(physio Therapists)  

 % of Education, Health and Care Plans completed within the 
statutory timescale (20 weeks) 

 
Priority 3: Looked After Children 
This area of work has previously been overseen by the Corporate 
Parenting Board.  It is positive that Place Plan partners will have 
oversight of key opportunities to work together to support Looked After 
Children (LAC). 
 
The LAC Physical and Mental Health Needs group is an existing group 
that will drive forward this scheme of work, having already made 
significant progress in improving the percentage of LAC Initial Health 
Assessments completed within timescale. 
 
 

P
age 98



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

46 
 

Our Plans 
The Local Authority are the corporate parents of Rotherham’s Looked 
After Children.  As parents we want our children to achieve the best 
possible outcomes in all areas of their lives.  We want our children to 
do well at school, be healthy and have the skills they need to be 
successful for the rest of their lives. 
 
The children in our care may have additional vulnerabilities due to their 
earlier childhood experiences; they must have a service offer that is 
accessible and meets their needs.    
 
Place Plan partners can make a difference to the lives of Looked After 
Children by ensuring that their health needs are met, and that the 
service offer is engaging and integrated with the education and social 
care offer, regardless of how hold they are and where they live.  Our 
joint responsibilities are set out in the Childrens Act. 
 
There is an opportunity to work together to ensure we meet our 
responsibilities and support children to succeed. 
 
The number of Looked After Children in Rotherham is higher than that 
of statistical neighbours, creating additional demand pressures across 
the system. This pressure is particularly acute in terms of identifying 
and supporting the right placements for children, and in assessing and 
meeting their health needs.  This scheme of work will focus on being 
able to support children and young people within family-based settings 
wherever possible, or in local residential provision.  To achieve this will 
require local placements that are supported by the right education 
offer, and access to support for their psychological and therapeutic 
needs.   
 
There will also be a focus on working together to ensure that Health 
Needs Assessments are high quality and timely through clear 
commissioning arrangements.  There is also an opportunity to explore 
how to meet the needs of adolescents.  Approximately 20% of the 
shortfall in Health Needs Assessments is due to adolescents refusing 
the opportunity to access them. As a result they are at risk of not 
having their health needs best met including advice on alcohol, 

tobacco and safer sex which may lead to them being vulnerable to ill-
health as an adult. 
 
Key Outcomes 
Looked After Children live in stable placements and their education 
and health needs are understood and met. 
 
Milestones (note: final milestones will be confirmed for the performance report and 

appear in the published version of the plan) 

 Refreshed commissioning arrangements are in place to complete 
LAC health assessments. 

 A review of therapeutic services includes key recommendations to 
support the social, emotional and mental health needs of Looked 
After Children. 

 
KPIs (note: final KPIs will be confirmed for the performance report and appear in the 

published version of the plan) 

 % of LAC in a Family Based Setting 

 % of LAC Health Assessments taken place in time 

 Placement stability - % of children with less than three placement 
moves in previous 12 months. 

 
Priority 4: Children and Young People’s Mental Health and 
Emotional Wellbeing 
There is intense focus on meeting the needs of children and young 
people who need support to have good social, emotional and mental 
health.  This terminology is used to describe children who have 
diagnosed mental health problems but is equally applied to those 
whose behaviour is triggering concerns about their overall wellbeing.   

Such a wide range of need cannot be met by a single organisation or 
be described using a simple pathway.  There is a requirement for the 
whole system to mobilise to ensure that need is identified and met 
appropriately and as early as possible.  The goal is that children and 
young people, parents and carers, and practitioners should experience 
no wrong door when it comes to meeting the needs of children who 
need support with social, emotional and mental health needs. 

P
age 99



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

47 
 

Progress  

 The locality advice and consultation model is increasingly well 
established; includes effective links with Early Help 

 Trauma-informed care becoming established through joint work 
with Operation Stovewood 

 100% of referrals are assessed within 6 weeks 

 100% of referrals are receiving treatment within 6 weeks 

 Rotherham was successful in its joint bid with Doncaster for Wave 
1 of the Mental Health in Schools Trailblazer 

 
Our Plans 
There are three key areas that require our focus in this scheme of 
work; these are: 
 

 To improve the pathway for children and young people who need 
support with neurological development 

 To provide seamless pathways and meet need as early as possible 
with the right service through implementation of the mental health 
trailblazer and dissemination of learning across the system 

 To understand and meet the needs of the children’s workforce to 
respond to children who need support with their mental health and 
emotional wellbeing. 

 
Key Outcomes 
TBC 
 
Milestones (note: final milestones will be confirmed for the performance report and 

appear in the published version of the plan) 

TBC 
 
KPIs (note: final KPIs will be confirmed for the performance report and appear in the 

published version of the plan) 

TBC 
 
 
 
 
 

Priority 5: Transitions to Adulthood 
There is a need to put in place clear arrangements for children with 
long-term conditions who are reaching adulthood.  Transitional 
arrangements are also high on the national agenda and have been 
identified as one of the six key priorities identified by the National 
Clinical Director for Children and Young People.   
 
The long-term conditions of asthma, epilepsy and diabetes (for those 
under 19 years of age) are key priorities.    
 
A report by the Care Quality Commission (CQC) in June 2014 found 
that young people who have physical disabilities or illnesses do not 
always receive the care and support they need when they move on to 
adult care services and transitional arrangements will be scrutinised as 
part of the Care Quality Commission.   
 
Progress 
In the last Place Plan the focus was on Preparation for Adulthood; this 
is the terminology that is applied specifically to children and young 
people with special educational needs and disabilities.  Progress was 
made through the creation of a data portal that identifies children with 
additional vulnerabilities who will require support in adulthood, and 
through the increase in local education opportunities for children over 
the age of 16, including the introduction of a supported internships. 
 
Our Plans 
Adult and children’s services across the health system have identified 
gaps within their transitional arrangements, including services for 
people with diabetes, neurodevelopmental conditions, physical 
disability, asthma, epilepsy and complex and multiple health 
conditions.  There is need put in place clearer arrangements to ensure 
that transitional arrangements are compliant with National Institute for 
Clinical Excellence (NICE) guidance (transition from children’s’ to 
adults’ services for young people using health or social care services, 
Feb 2016). 

P
age 100



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

48 
 

The primary task will be to define the scope of the work and put in 
place a clear work plan that sets out how we will work together to 
improve local arrangements. 
 
Key Outcomes 
TBC 
 
Milestones 
TBC 
 
KPIs 
TBC 

9.2 Mental Health, Learning Disabilities and 
Neurodevelopmental Care 

Our success  
Improving the care and support we offer for people in the areas of 
Mental Health, Learning Disability and Neurodevelopmental Care has 
been a priority for Rotherham Place partners over the period of our 
previous place plan, we have delivered the following improvements 
across the Rotherham Place:  
 

 Introduced 24 /7 Adult Mental Health Liaison services, which 
was  launched in January 2019 (Mental Health  5 Years Forward 
View Core 24 standard achieved) 

 Implemented the Rotherham Suicide Prevention Strategy, rolling 
out Safe-talk and self-harm training, introduced small grants 
schemes to work with men’s groups. Commissioned a Listening 
service to support families bereaved by suicide and also launched 
our very successful Be the One campaign reaching over 1 million 
people.  

 Launched an Enhanced Perinatal Mental Health Service  in  May 
2019 ( developed in partnership with partners from Sheffield CCG, 
Doncaster CCG, SHSC and RDaSH / NHS England Perinatal 
funding secured in 2018/19) 

 Worked with partners from across the South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw Integrated Care System to secure funding for 
Individual Placement and Support (IPS).  

 In partnership worked with RDaSH and South Yorkshire Police to 
successfully pilot the Police Street Triage over the Christmas 
period 2018/19  

 In partnership with Crossroads the CCG has enhanced support for 
those caring for people with mental health problem. These include: 
o Mental Health Carers Support pilot launched  
o Carer Awareness Training for Primary Care  
o Development of a Carers Hub 
o Development of a series of workshops 

 
Rotherham has developed programmes to support delivery of 
Transforming Care, this has resulted in: 

 Agreed to commission an All Age Neurodevelopmental pathway 
which will be rolled out in February 2020.  

 Successfully delivered the agreed number of discharges with the 
Sheffield, Doncaster, Rotherham, North Lincolnshire (SDRNL) 
Transforming Care Partnership in 2018/19.  

 Introduced a Learning Disabilities Mortality Review (LeDeR) group 
to coordinate reviews where deaths of people with a learning 
disability have occurred.  

 Created a ‘data warehouse’ to enable better and more effective 
planning for young people in Rotherham’s preparing for adulthood 
cohort. 

 
Mental Health transformation leads have engaged on the development 
of the Population Health Management (PHM) Tool which will be 
available from 2020.  It has been agreed that the mental health 
transformation workstream will be the priority focus for first use of the 
PHM tool. 
 
Across all transformation workstreams, we have identified the data 
sets that will bring most benefit to our services and support our 
transformation workstreams are: 

 Community data  
 Troubled Families data 
 Primary Care data 
 Mental Health data 

P
age 101



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

49 
 

Mental Health service representatives will take an active role in 
defining the data sets and in ensuring the best use of the PHM tool to 
support our mental health priorities.  
 
Looking forward the priorities identified are:   
1. Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT) service  

(referred to as ‘ Adult Common Illness (IAPT)’ in the NHS  Long 
Term Plan)  

2. Dementia diagnosis and post-diagnostic support  
3. Adult Severe Mental Illnesses (SMI) in the Community  
4. Mental Health Crisis and Liaison  
5. Suicide prevention  
6. Better Mental Health for All, including loneliness  
7. Improving residential, community and housing support for people 

with Mental Health and/or Learning disability   
8. Delivering the NHS Long Term Plan for people with a learning 

disabilities and / or autism (this includes Transforming Care)  
9. Delivery of My Front Door transformation programme  
10. Delivery of Autism Strategy and Neurological Pathway 
 
Priority 1: Delivering improved outcomes and performance in the 
Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT) service   
Mental health issues are impacting more significantly on people in 
Rotherham than the nationally recognised issue. The most recent data 
from Public Health indicates that:  

 In 2017/18 13.4% of adults over 18 in Rotherham had depression 
compared with an England average of 9% 

 In 2017 the estimated prevalence of common mental health 
disorders in those aged 65 and over in Rotherham was 11.6% 

 For self-reported emotional wellbeing, in 2017/18 Rotherham 
residents reported high levels of; low satisfaction with life, low 
happiness and high anxiety. These rates were higher than the 
average for England and for the Yorkshire and Humber region as a 
whole 
 

The number of people over 65 is projected to increase by 18% over the 
next ten years (2016 to 2026), from 50,500 to 59,700. Almost all of this 

growth will take place in people aged over 70 years.  This will mean an 
increase in the number of people with long term conditions such as 
heart disease, diabetes, dementia and cancer. To optimise the 
physical health care of patients with long-term conditions, it is essential 
that their mental health and wellbeing are addressed at the same time. 

 Sustained the IAPT waiting time access targets (75% with 6 weeks, 
95% within 18 weeks) 

 Developed a perinatal IAPT pathway  

 Workforce development improved by: 
o 3 psychological wellbeing practitioner (PWP) and 3 Cognitive 

Behaviour Therapy (CBT) trained in long term conditions 
o 2 trainee CBT 
o 3 trainee PWP 
o Veteran lead established 

 Delivered the Mental Health Forward View and Long-term Plan 
‘Adult Common Mental Illnesses (IAPT)’ ambitions. 

 
Our Plan  

 We will reduce IAPT CBT waiting times 

 Expand and develop the Rotherham IAPT workforce   

 Improve access to IAPT services (Core and LTC)  across 
Rotherham, by developing the local digital offer, as well as 
establishing stronger links with workplaces and initiatives, such as 
the ‘Be Well at Work’ 

 Improve access for older people to IAPT services (core and LTC) 

 Sustain the MH 5 Year Forward access standards (6 weeks – 75% 
/ 18 weeks – 95%) 

 
Milestones (note: final milestones will be confirmed for the performance report and 

appear in the published version of the plan) 

 Identify and agree workforce development for both Core and LTC 
IAPT (including training requirements), in line with the requirements 
of the Long-term Plan – Q4 19/20 

 Reduction in the IAPT CBT waiting times – Q4 20/21 

 Delivery of Mental Health 5 Year Forward  2019 /2020 target – Q4 
20/21 

 

P
age 102

https://www.healthylearningdoncaster.co.uk/services/resources/be-well-at-work


 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

50 
 

KPIs (note: final KPIs will be confirmed for the performance report and appear in the 

published version of the plan) 

  75% of people referred to IAPT commencing treatment within 6 
weeks of referral 

 % Compliance of those who have entered (i.e. received) treatment 
as a proportion of people entering treatment with anxiety or 
depression 

 % of people who have completed treatment having attended at 
least 2 treatment contacts and are moving to recovery 

 
Priority 2: Improving Dementia diagnosis and support 
Dementia is a growing challenge. As the population ages and people 
live for longer, it has become one of the most important health and 
care issues facing the world.  Currently, it is estimated that in 
Rotherham around 3,109 people have dementia, which is projected to 
rise to nearly 4,500 by 2025. 
 
Dementia mainly affects older people, and after the age of 65, the 
likelihood of developing dementia roughly doubles every five years. 
However, for some dementia can develop earlier, presenting different 
issues for the person affected, their carer and their family. 
 
There are around 4,000 carers of people with dementia in Rotherham. 
It is estimated that one in three people will care for a person with 
dementia in their lifetime. To support this: 

 Dementia diagnosis rates continue to remain high (85% against 
national target of 67%) 

 Expansion of Carers clinics across Rotherham 

 Developed of a programme of training sessions to support people 
with dementia and their unpaid carers 

 Development of the  Crossroads Carers Hub has commenced 

 Delivered the Prime Minister’s 2020 Dementia Challenge / NICE 
compliant service.  

 
 
 
 

Our Plan  

 We will re-design our diagnostics pathway to maintain Rotherham’s 
high dementia diagnosis rate 

 We will improve the offer of support to those caring for someone 
with dementia (NICE Compliant) 

 We will work with Dementia Carers Resilience Service to extend 
the carer offer. 

 We will improve the offer of post diagnostic support to people living 
with dementia and their carers 

 Primary care workforce development – to improve the  
understanding of how to support carers  

 We will improve and timely access to services closer to home 
 
Milestones (note: final milestones will be confirmed for the performance report and 

appear in the published version of the plan) 

 NICE compliant dementia diagnostic pathway to be agreed – Q1 
20/21 

 NICE compliant dementia post-diagnosis pathway to be agreed – 
Q1 20/21 

 To implement the new dementia pathway across the Rotherham 
place – Q4 20/21 

 To rollout a programme of training sessions to support people with 
dementia and their unpaid carers – Q4 20/21 

 
KPIs (note: final KPIs will be confirmed for the performance report and appear in the 

published version of the plan) 

 Dementia diagnostic rates % (national target 67%) 

 % diagnosed within 6 weeks of referral by march 2021 

 % of GP practices achieving 62% of post diagnostic support plans 
recorded in last 12 months 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 103



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

51 
 

Priority 3: Adult Severe Mental Illnesses (SMI) Community Care  
There is an estimated 2389 people in Rotherham that have a Severe 
Mental Illness (SMI). On average men living with severe mental illness 
die 20 years earlier, whilst women living with a severe mental illness 
die 15 years earlier. Public Health England research and analysis 
indicates that people with severe mental illness experience the 
following physical health inequalities. People with SMI in England: 
 die on average 15 to 20 years earlier than the general population  
 have 3.7 times higher death rate for ages under 75 than the general 

population  
 experience a widening gap in death rates over time 

 
It is estimated that for people with SMI, 2 in 3 deaths are from physical 
illnesses that can be prevented. This disparity in these health 
outcomes is partly due to this cohort of patients not being offered 
appropriate or timely physical health assessments.  
 
Furthermore, this cohort of people is more likely to experience 
difficulties gaining employment. 
 
Our Plan  

 Working in partnership with primary care and RDaSH the CCG has 
developed a Severe Mental Illness Local Enhanced Service 
(LES), including a local Shared Care Protocol 

 Improve access and increase uptake in physical health check for 
individuals on the SMI registered (increase life expectancy /reduce 
inequalities) 

 Increase in support available to help people with a severe mental 
illness access employment (Reduction in the employment 
inequalities) - to be delivered by IPS programme 

 Increase in the number of people living with a severe mental  
illness receiving a comprehensive annual physical health check 

 To ensure that primary care staff teams feel confident in actively 
supporting people with severe mental illness to access relevant 
physical health screenings and interventions.  

 To improve and ensure early access to specialist NICE compliant 
early intervention in psychosis provision. 

 Improved recovery outcomes  

 Increase in support for the families of people with psychosis 
 
Milestones (note: final milestones will be confirmed for the performance report and 

appear in the published version of the plan) 

 Oversee full implementation by ALL GP practise of the Severe 
Mental Illness Local Enhanced Service (SMI LES) and Shared-
Care protocol – Q3 20/21 

 Achieve Level 3 Early Intervention Psychosis NICE concordance 
standard – Q3 20/21 

 Support the delivery of the ICS Individual Placement Support 
programme  - Q4 20/21 
 

KPIs (note: final KPIs will be confirmed for the performance report and appear in the 

published version of the plan) 

 60% of people on the SMI register receive an annual health check 

 % of people receiving a NICE-recommended package, with a 
specialist Early Intervention Psychosis (EIP) service in 2 weeks  

 
Priority 4: Mental Health Crisis and Liaison 
It is known that the experience of one person and their perception of a 
mental health crisis is as unique and individual, as the person and 
what for one person may feel manageable may for another person feel 
completely devastating or overpowering. 
 
A mental health crisis may take a number of forms including, but not 
limited to, anxiety or panic attacks, psychotic experiences such as 
hallucinations, feelings of paranoia, relapse of a serious mental illness 
or thoughts of suicide or acts of self harm. We know that: 
 People have reported contact with at least three different services 

when experiencing a mental health crisis.  
 People with a mental health problem are almost five times more 

likely to be an emergency inpatient admission than someone 
without mental ill health. 
 
 
 

P
age 104

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/severe-mental-illness-smi-physical-health-inequalities/severe-mental-illness-and-physical-health-inequalities-briefing


 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

52 
 

We want to improve people’s experience at the time of crisis, offering 
high quality timely care and support.  
 
Successes in 2019/20 
• Pilot work ongoing to allocate mental health worker into safer 

neighbourhood teams to support Police colleagues and service 
users in crisis 

• 24 /7 Adult Mental Health Liaison service  launched January 2019 
(Mental Health  5 Years Forward View Core 24 standard achieved) 

• Expansions of the crisis resolution /home treatment team 
 
Our plan 
• We will expand services for people experiencing a mental health 

crisis  (timely access to support in a crisis) 
• Continue to ensure that the Rotherham Mental health Liaison 

Service continues to meet the core 24 standards for adults and 
older people 

• Delivery of the Mental Health Forward View and Long-term Plan 
‘Mental health Crisis Care and Liaison’ ambitions  

• Reduced inappropriate out of area placements for acute mental 
health care  

• Worked with partners from across the SY&B ICS to develop section 
136 and places of safety provisions 
 

Key Outcomes 

 Increase the offer of support for people in crisis and their unpaid  
carers 

 Enhance social care input in the mental health wards (reduction in 
Delayed Transfers of Care)  

 Improve care act compliance  

 Workforce development  

 Improved recovery outcomes for people experiencing a crisis 
 
 
 
 
 

Milestones (note: final milestones will be confirmed for the performance report and 

appear in the published version of the plan) 

 Workforce development training (PITT) – Q3 19/20 

 Establish a social worker co-ordinator post to operate across the 
mental health wards – Q4 19/20 

 Review of the social care delivery model (increase social care 
capacity / improve care act compliance)- Q3 20/21 

 Workforce development of the Crisis Resolution and Home 
Treatment Teams (CRHTT) and increase social care capacity – Q4 
19/20 

 Establish a CRHTT service that operates in line with best practice – 
Q4 20/21 

 Maintain Mental Health Liaison (Core 24 compliant) service – Q4 
19/20 

 Develop at least one alternative crisis service to hospital admission 
– Q3 20/21 

 Reduction in the number of out of area placements- Q4 20/21 
 
KPIs (note: final KPIs will be confirmed for the performance report and appear in the 

published version of the plan) 

 Referrals who require a face to face assessment who were seen 
within 4 hours % compliance for both MH Liaison and Crisis  

 72 -hour follow-up post discharge (CQUIN data) 

 Urgent and emergency MH response within 1 hour of receiving an 
urgent referral (core 24)   

 Urgent and emergency MH response within 1 hour of receiving an 
urgent referral (CRHTT) 

 Reduction in the number of inappropriate out of area placements 

 Reduction in the number of mental health delayed transfers of care  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 105



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

53 
 

Priority 5: Quality provision (residential, community and housing 
support)   
Many mental health problems can be treated successfully. However 
some people are left feeling anxious about recurrence or relapse and 
others continue to experience symptoms. Despite the de-
institutionalisation agenda for people at the acute end of provision, 
many people with long-term health problems continue to anticipate 
discrimination and health services remain a central part of people’s 
day-to-day life. Significant cohorts of people with mental ill-health also 
remain in long-term inappropriate residential care settings. A recovery 
model is needed to support people back into an independent life. 
 
Recovery happens in life, not in the health system. This means 
providing help to people as they engage or re-engage in everyday 
activities and mainstream participation. We now know a lot about the 
types of support which help Recovery. Focus to continue on: 
• increasing control (e.g. by reducing coercion and restraint; 

pushing forward the development of Recovery-oriented services);  
• agency (e.g. by supporting the use of personal budgets, self-

management and patient activation) ; and 
• opportunity (e.g. by addressing health inequalities and working to 

create a Recovery-oriented society).  
 
Whilst the Place Plan is aligned with the NHS Long Term plan, funding 
constraints have meant that the majority of resources have been 
targeted at reactive services rather than preventative or early 
intervention work. Notable exceptions include the Working Win work 
programme supporting people with mental ill-health into work and 
proactive interventions to support the place strategy for  suicide 
prevention.  These upstream approaches have demonstrated positive 
progress in tackling health inequalities and the wider determinants of 
mental ill-health. 
 
The development of a recovery pathway would include the scoping of 
the current system to identify areas of good practice, challenges and 
opportunities. There are already pockets of good practice in the Place 
and wider work-streams that have a positive  impact on recovery. The 

initial scoping would seek to map out the current system landscape 
and the underlying causes of mental-ill health.   
 
For example, SY&B ICS work is underway looking at those people with 
complex lives, street homelessness and people at risk of 
homelessness. Local housing providers have identified childhood 
trauma as a key underlying risk factor for this cohort and other people 
covered by the Homelessness Reduction Act 2018. 
 
Our Plan  

 Develop a recovery pathway (mental health community provision) 

 Reduced length of stay within residential care settings  

 Smoother transition between services (e.g. CAMHs and Adult 
Mental Health Services)  

 Increase in employment and economic activity 
 

Milestones (note: final milestones will be confirmed for the performance report and 

appear in the published version of the plan) 

 Scoping the current system to identify challenges and opportunities 
within a recovery model – Q3 20/21 

 Co-production of a vision for recovery – Q3 20/21 

 Service transformation model to be agreed – Q1 21/22 
 
KPIs (note: final KPIs will be confirmed for the performance report and appear in the 

published version of the plan) 

 Length of stay in setting 

 Number of people with mental ill-health receiving re-enablement 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 106



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

54 
 

Priority 6: Suicide prevention 
Suicides are not inevitable. They are often the end point of a complex 
history of risk factors and distressing events, the prevention of suicide 
has to address this complexity. This can only be done by working 
collaboratively across all sectors within Rotherham. 
 
Suicide Prevention is a high priority in the borough. There are strong 
governance arrangements with links to the Health and Wellbeing 
Board and the Place Board.   
 
Rotherham suicide rates for 2016-18, the 3-year directly age-
standardised rate (DSR), are above the rate for England (9.6 per 100 
000) and the Yorkshire and Humber Region (10.7 per 100 000).  After 
a small decrease between 2013-15 and 2014-16, the 3-year directly 
age-standardised rate (DSR) increased from 13.9 to 15.9 deaths per 
100,000 between 2014-16 and 2015-17. The latest data for 2016 – 
2018 shows that this has now dropped to 13.1 deaths per 100,000 a 
decrease of nearly 18%.  
 
Rotherham has had an active suicide prevention group since 2013, 
with action plans to address suicide prevention. Rotherham has 
developed some excellent joint working between statutory partners and 
the voluntary sector.  
 
A symposium in June 2019 provided an opportunity for Rotherham 
partners to hear about national research and best practice in relation to 
suicide prevention. It acted as a self-assessment of the Rotherham 
Suicide Prevention and Self Harm Action Plan. Following the 
symposium the action plan was refreshed, key actions are: 

 Rotherham’s suicide prevention campaign ‘Be the One’, which 
launched September 2019, www.be-the-one.co.uk 

 Delivery of NHSE year 2 suicide prevention funding 

 Delivery of ICS wide suicide prevention activity 

 Implementation of Rotherham Suicide Prevention and Self Harm 
Action Plan 

 
 

Our Plan  

● Continue to focus on people under the care of mental health 
services. 

● Better information/support to those children, young people and 
adults bereaved or affected by suicide. 

● Focus support on people who self-harm. 
● Focus support on men and primary care. 
 
Milestones (note: final milestones will be confirmed for the performance report and 

appear in the published version of the plan) 

 Delivery and evaluation of Year 2 NHSE funded projects – Q4 
19/20 

 Delivery of Self-harm train the trainer – Q4 19/20 

 Delivery of self-harm awareness training programme to commence 
– Q1 20/21 

 Delivery of 20/21 actions within local plan – Q4 20/21 

 Evidence of impact of the Be the One campaign – Q4 20/21 

 Delivery and evaluation of Year 3 NHSE funded projects – Q4 
20/21 

 
KPIs (note: final KPIs will be confirmed for the performance report and appear in the 

published version of the plan) 

 To reduce the suicide rate by 10% from the 2016-2018 baseline 
(15.9 per 100,000) 

 % of people trained as self-harm train the train the trainers (against 
target – 15 places commissioned per course ) 

 Number of people attending self-harm T-T 
 

Priority 7: Better Mental Health for All and Loneliness 
Rotherham place partners joined together to promote the Five Ways to 
Wellbeing campaign in Rotherham.  This campaign is about getting 
people of all ages to look after their mental health. It is applicable to 
people without a mental health problem and for people who have a 
mental health condition.  It is an asset based approach encouraging 
people to access things around them so it does not need to cost 
money. 

 

P
age 107

http://www.be-the-one.co.uk/


 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

55 
 

There are a range of resources available, including a toolkit and 
presentation which are available on the Council’s website 
www.rotherham.gov.uk/health. This includes a film to launch the 
campaign which can be viewed at www.rotherham.gov.uk/health  

 
We all have mental health, just like we have physical health and it’s 
important that we take steps to look after it. The following steps, known 
as the ‘Five Ways to Wellbeing’ are easy and can be incorporated into 
our daily lives almost straight away. 

 

Be Active: Regular physical activity is associated with lower rates 
of depression and it doesn’t have to be intense to make a 
difference. Do as much or as little as you can – you could try 
walking, dancing, running, cycling or gardening. 

 

Connect: People who are connected with family, friends or 
people living in their community are happier, physically healthier, 
live longer and generally have fewer problems mental health 
problems. To connect with others, you could join a group, help a 
friend, family member or colleague or try volunteering. 

 

Give: It has been proven that people who offer an act of kindness 
once a week over a six-week period report an improvement in 
their wellbeing. Giving could be smiling at someone and saying 
thank you. It could be volunteering within the local community or 
doing something nice for a colleague or friend. 

 

Keep Learning: People should never stop learning. Learning 
throughout life enhances self-esteem, increases confidence, 
encourages social interaction and generally leads to people 
having a more active life. Why not learn a new skill like cooking, 
playing an instrument, fixing a bike, photography or painting. 

 

Take Notice: Life can be very busy with little time to stop and 
reflect. Studies have shown that when people are aware of what is 
taking place in the present it directly enhances well-being. People 
worry less about the future and what has happened in the past 
and can see what really matters, allowing them to make positive 
choices. Stopping and observing; spending time with friends and 
family; enjoying nature; and taking a different route home from 
work or the shops noticing what is different are all ways to take 
notice. 

 
 

Milestones (note: final milestones will be confirmed for the performance report and 

appear in the published version of the plan) 

 Evidence of integration of Five Ways messages within provider and 
commissioned services – Q4 19/20 

 Evidence of impact- case studies – Q1 20/21 
 

KPIs (note: final KPIs will be confirmed for the performance report and appear in the 

published version of the plan) 

 Self-reported wellbeing PHOF; ONS Annually It is a measure of 
overall wellbeing in the community 

 
Loneliness 
Loneliness is a bigger problem than simply an emotional experience. 
Research shows that loneliness and social isolation are harmful to our 
health: lacking social connections is a comparable risk factor for early 
death as smoking 15 cigarettes a day, and is worse than well-known 
risk factors such as obesity and physical inactivity. Loneliness 
increases the likelihood of mortality by 26%. While many think of 
loneliness as a social issue, it also affects people’s physical and 
mental health and wellbeing.  Loneliness affects people of all ages. 
Numerous pieces of research, including the Government’s National 
strategy, have suggested that a whole life course approach should be 
taken when attempting to tackle loneliness. Traditionally people have 
assumed that it was exclusively the elderly that suffered loneliness, 
however research by the Office for National Statistics (ONS) has found 
that, while this demographic group are still significant when it comes to 
loneliness, there are other demographic groups, including young 
people, who experience loneliness. 
 
Data on older people living alone (aged 65+) from the 2011 Census 
and for the percentage of adult social care users who had as much 
social contact as they would like (2018/19) shows Rotherham values 
were around England average. 

 
Specific loneliness measures are to be included in the Public Health 
England Public Health Outcomes Framework with data predicted to be 
published in November 2020. 

P
age 108

http://www.rotherham.gov.uk/health
http://www.rotherham.gov.uk/health


 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

56 
 

Milestones (note: final milestones will be confirmed for the performance report and 

appear in the published version of the plan) 

 To launch the partnership action plan – Q1 20/21 

 Implementation and delivery of 20/21 loneliness action plan – Q4 
20/21 

 To pilot Making Every Contact Count in south of borough and make 
recommendations for future rollout March 2020 – Q4 19/20 

 Expand MECC and loneliness across the borough – Q4 20/21 

 Establish loneliness data baseline – Q3 20/21 
 
KPI (note: final KPIs will be confirmed for the performance report and appear in the 

published version of the plan) 

 UCLA Loneliness measure 

 How often do you feel that you lack companionship? 

 How often do you feel left out? 

 How often do you feel isolated from others? 

 How often do you feel lonely? 
 

Priority 8: Delivering the NHS Long Term Plan for people with a 
learning disabilities and / or autism (this includes Transforming 
Care)  
The Transforming Care Programme (TCP) aims to transform services 
and support for children, young people as well as adults with a learning 
disability and/or autism who display behaviour that challenges, 
including those with a mental health condition.  The programme was to 
close in March 2019, but has been in effect extended and integrated 
into NHS England’s Long Term Plan.  
 
Since 2015 and the publication of Building the Right Support1 the TCP 
had two objectives that CCGs, local authorities and partners work 
together to: 
1. Reduce both the need and reliance on hospital beds for people 

with a learning disability and / or autism (children and adults)  
2. Transform both the approach, services and systems to ensure that 

people with a learning disability and / or autism have access to the 

                                                           
1
 https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/10/ld-nat-imp-plan-

oct15.pdf  

best support to prevent mental health and or challenging behaviour 
issues developing and remain at home and in the community.     

 
The national TCP has expanded to include: 

 Creation of dynamic risk registers for both adults with a learning 
disability and / or autism and children and young people with a 
learning disability and / or autism.  

 Care and Treatment Reviews (CTR’s) and Care, Treatment and 
Education Treatment Reviews (CETR) 

 Learning Disability GP Health Checks.  

 Learning Disabilities Mortality Review (LeDeR) Programme - 
stopping people dying earlier than they should. 

 STOMP-STAMP (Stopping over medication of people with a 
learning disability, autism or both-Supporting Treatment and 
Appropriate Medication in Paediatrics) - making sure that if people 
with a learning disability need medication, that they get the right 
medication, at the right time and for the right reason.  
 

The NHS Long Term Plan retains the priority to transform and improve 
the health and care outcomes for people with a learning disability.  The 
Plan still retains all the objectives developed under the Transforming 
Care Programme and it proposes the following additional 
developments: 

 Reduction in reliance on inpatient care for people with a learning 
disability and/or autism (CCG-funded) to 18.5 inpatients per 
million adult population by March 2020.  

 At least 75% of people on the learning disability register should 
have had an annual health check. 

 CCGs are a member of a Learning from Deaths report (LeDeR) 
steering group and have a named person with lead responsibility. 

 There is a robust CCG plan in place to ensure that LeDeR reviews 
are undertaken within 6 months of the notification of death to the 
local area.  

 CCGs have systems in place to analyse and address the themes 
and recommendations from completed LeDeR reviews.  

P
age 109

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/10/ld-nat-imp-plan-oct15.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/10/ld-nat-imp-plan-oct15.pdf


 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

57 
 

 An annual report is submitted to the appropriate board/committee 
for all statutory partners, demonstrating action taken and 
outcomes from LeDeR reviews.  
 

This priority seeks to ensure timely delivery of both local and national 
priorities for the ongoing transformation of outcomes for people with a 
learning disability and autism  
 
Key Outcomes 
The priorities will meet the aspirations that people with a learning 
disability and/or autism: 

 All children, young people, adults and their families are at the 
centre of everything we do.  

 Focus on people’s strengths to overcome barriers. 

 Guidance, information and support are easily available. 

 The right support at the right time and making every contact count. 

 Increasing awareness of both learning disability and autism across 
Rotherham. 

 Supporting individuals to live the life they choose. 
 
Milestones (note: final milestones will be confirmed for the performance report and 

appear in the published version of the plan) 

 RMBC and CCG to agree process for funding learning disability 
joint placements – Q4 19/20 

 Commissioning solutions to be in place to meet individual 
trajectories – Q4 19/20 

 Continue to reduce reliance on inpatient care for adults aged 18 
and over with a learning disability, autism or both so that by March 
2020 there is no more than 3 people detained – Q419/20 

 Ensure no more than 3 people are detained  in hospital at one time 
– Q4 20/21 
 
 
 
 
 

KPIs (note: final KPIs will be confirmed for the performance report and appear in the 

published version of the plan) 

 % of people receiving CTR prior to a planned admission to an 
Assessment and Treatment Unit or mental health inpatients: adults  

 % of  patients in an Assessment and Treatment Unit receive a Care 
and Treatment Review (CTR) every 6 months 

 Reduce the number of people admitted in line with the South 
Yorkshire and North Lincolnshire LD TCP trajectory (local 
reporting) 

 Number of people with LD admitted to ATU (maintain at 3 or less) 
 

Priority 9:  My Front Door:  Learning Disability Transformation 
ICP partners and people with a learning disability, autism or both want 
individuals to have the same quality of life as everyone else.  They also 
want everyone to have the opportunity to realise their dreams and for 
people to access a wider range of support that is part of their local 
community - where people can access employment opportunities, build 
friendships and travel as independently as possible around the 
borough. 
  
There are an estimated 31,604 unpaid carers in Rotherham, of which 
approximately 8009 are older people and of these, 3,760 (39%) are 
providing 50+ of care and support hours per week (Source: POPPI). 
This resource supports people of all age and client group and 
demonstrates a significant contribution to cost avoidance and reduction 
of dependence on formal services. 
 
There are 347 Unpaid Carers, aged 55-69, currently supporting a 
person with a Learning Disability in Rotherham borough.  
 
Rotherham recognises the vital role that carers play in both the 
community and the economy. There is an acknowledgement that more 
can be done to support carers in order to minimise, where possible, the 
impact that caring can have on their health and wellbeing.  
 
 
 

P
age 110



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

58 
 

Family carers of people with learning disabilities have often been 
carers for the lifetime of the person for whom they care. These carers  
have a lifetime experience of caring and supporting, coping with many 
challenges and changes. 
 
The My Front Door Strategy will make sure all people with a learning 
disability have access to community based services that promote 
independence, wellbeing and social inclusion, it: 
 
● is the vehicle for communication and engagement with all our key 

stakeholders.  
● builds on the Learning Disability Strategy and Adult Social Care 

Vision ensuring the information is accessible and relatable to 
individuals, carers and  families. 

● supports potential providers to “buy into” our Learning Disability 
Transformation Programme by pitching their services in real-life 
ways.  

● is our personalised approach to our Learning Disability 
Transformation Programme moving hearts and minds towards a 
positive future. 

● ensures person centred planning and enables our practitioners to 
engage with people in new and different ways. 

● creates a narrative that changes all our thinking from a focus on 
decommissioning services to a focus on the real alternatives and 
opportunities available for individuals 

● will have engagement activities that are co-produced with 
individuals and will enable further consultation on new 
opportunities. 

● develop a new offer to support unpaid carers.   
 
Key Outcomes 

● Each person with a learning disability has a review based on 
person centred approach.  

● A dedicated team of social workers with the support of the existing 
staff will undertake the reviews.  

● All people will have the opportunity to make sure each day in their 
life is meaningful, of value and leads to them having a ‘Good Day’.  

● Doing things which have a purpose, being in ordinary places doing 
things most other people in the community would be doing. 

● More people have the opportunity to participate in paid 
employment. 

● A strength based approach will be taken to develop a range of 
opportunities, including Shared Lives, use of personal budgets, 
develop skills for independent living  provide support when the 
carer needs it and making sure more people have their own front 
door. 

 
Milestones (note: final milestones will be confirmed for the performance report and 

appear in the published version of the plan) 

 Delivery of My Front Door – Q4 19/20 

 Complete annual health check – Q4 20/21 

 Support adults with a learning disability into paid employment  
 
KPIs (note: final KPIs will be confirmed for the performance report and appear in the 

published version of the plan) 

 Proportion of eligible adults with a learning disability having a GP 
health check 

 Proportion of adults with a learning disability who are in paid 
employment 

 
Priority 10: Draft Autism Strategy and Implementation of all age 
Neurological Pathway 
Rotherham has developed a draft autism strategy with an 
accompanying implementation plan. The strategy is all age and has 
connections to the transformation of children and young people’s 
services.   
 
Therefore the focus of activity will be to develop a local adult diagnostic 
pathway and service, aligning to current RDaSH provision in relation 
to: 

 children and young people Autism and attention deficit hyperactivity 
disorder (ADHD) diagnostic and post diagnostic support provided 
through the neurodevelopmental pathway.  

 adult learning disability community health provision.  
 

P
age 111



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

59 
 

Recent reviews and looking at current commissioned activity it appears 
that Rotherham’s autism pathway is fragmented and has created lots 
of  ‘hand off’s’ which could cause delays. This is reflected from 
feedback given at recent engagement events with people with autism.  
Their families have flagged the following issues:  

 the lack of support groups post diagnosis. 

 a gap in the pathway for young people moving into adulthood 
between Children and Adult services   

 Difficulty accessing allied health professional assessments 
(Speech and Language Therapists, Occupational Therapy – in 
particular access to special assessments in relation to Sensory 
Integration2 (SI) 

 
Rotherham’s autism strategy will oversee the delivery of the 
transformation of autism diagnosis and post diagnosis support for 
children and adults.    
 
Key Outcomes   
The all age pathway sees the opportunity to: 

 Develop a local Rotherham based diagnostic service as per NICE 
guidance.  

 Create a single Neurodevelopmental pathway encompassing the 
diagnosis and post diagnosis support of both autism and ADHD in 
children’s and adults 

 Align activity for adult diagnosis and post diagnosis support for 
autism.   

 Develop an enhanced therapy offer using current commissioned 
services in RDaSH    

 Sustain the adult ADHD pathway  
 
 
 
 
 

                                                           
2
 Sensory integration is about how our brain receives and processes sensory 

information so that we can do the things we need to do in our everyday life. 

Milestones (note: final milestones will be confirmed for the performance report and 

appear in the published version of the plan) 

 Complete the development of the Autism Strategy (including action 
plan – Q4 19/20 

 Development of Rotherham based Autism and ADHD diagnostic 
pathway – Q4 19/20 
 

KPIs (note: final KPIs will be confirmed for the performance report and appear in the 

published version of the plan) 

 % people receiving a diagnosis of autism within 18 weeks following 
referral  or/+ 

 Reduction in the number of people waiting over 18 weeks  
 

9.3 Urgent and Community 
Overview 
The case for change and the need for action is clear, services across 
Rotherham, and the wider NHS, are facing growing pressures as 
demand rises and our health and care needs become increasingly 
complex. As our population grows and ages there are increasing 
numbers of people who need our support.  
This is a further pull on already stretched resources and if we do not 
change the services we offer we will not be sustainable and we will not 
be able to provide the level of care that we want the people of 
Rotherham to receive. 
 
In response to these challenges we must look to keep people healthier 
and independent for longer. We need to make interventions earlier in 
pathways, reduce handoffs between services and then support people 
to recover and return to a healthy and independent lifestyle, shifting 
away from emergency activity into planned activity within the 
community closer to the individual’s home or usual place of residence. 
 
We also know that to do this we must work together, partners 
recognise that they cannot resolve these issues as individual 
organisations. A partnership wide approach to the design and delivery 
of health and care services will provide the opportunity to provide 
support across an individual’s whole pathway, stimulate personal 
resilience and help to reduce demand for our services. We must make 

P
age 112



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

60 
 

better use of our resources and our people, supporting them with the 
right infrastructure to allow them to offer more effective care. 
 
In response to these challenges the Urgent and Community Care 
Transformation workstream have identified key actions to create an 
overarching framework.  The framework will guide work over the 
coming years allowing it to quickly identify and deliver key priority 
programmes of work while continuing to work within a consistent 
framework, ensuring that our work is aligned.  The framework is based 
on: 
1. Integrating our Points of Contact across the system for our 

population, patients and professionals to make it easier to enter 
and navigate our system. 

2. Integrating our pathways and interventions to provide joined up 
more effective and efficient care 

3. Working closely with the Rotherham Place enabling groups to 
support the identification of opportunities for improvement and the 
ability of our teams to deliver the right care when working together. 

4. Integrated Community Working to consider what other pathways, 
services and interventions would most benefit from a collaborative 
and integrated approach across Rotherham partners.  
 

A key part of the workstream is to focus on priorities that have a clear 
benefit to the Rotherham population and involve multiple partners 
across Rotherham working together. There will continue to be work 
within urgent and community care that sits outside of this 
transformation workstream and delivered within individual 
organisations, for example A&E performance improvement, but we will 
ensure that its work is aligned with these other developments. 
 
While our initial focus will be the implementation and embedding of the 
redesign of our Intermediate Care and Reablement (ICR) services we 
have set ourselves a clear task to consider what other pathways, 
services and interventions would most benefit from a collaborative and 
integrated approach across Rotherham partners.  Population Health 
data and stakeholder input will be utilised to determine where the 
biggest impact can be made and to identify key interventions, 

pathways and teams which would benefit from integration and 
consequently building a community function from the bottom up.  
 
We must change how we deliver care across Rotherham to realise the 
ambition of earlier intervention, more proactive and preventative care 
and help to make services more sustainable by managing demand into 
high cost services. 
 
The benefits realised from our previous work has made clear the need 
for integrated working across health, social care, voluntary sector and 
other partners. We have also learnt lessons from the Health Village 
pilot and that the approach taken, while positive, is not scalable across 
the whole of Rotherham.  
 
This approach will support our need to reduce the demand for acute 
services, increase our capacity to deliver care in the community and 
closer to the patient’s home and provide better use of limited 
Rotherham resources. This work will also explore how we utilise the 
opportunity that the creation of Primary Care Networks (PCNs) have 
provided to Rotherham. 
 
Across all transformation workstreams, we have identified the data 
sets that will bring most benefit to our services and support our 
transformation workstreams: 

 Community data  
 Troubled Families data 
 Primary Care data 
 Mental Health data 

  
Our transformation leads and service representatives will continue to 
work with colleagues to define the data sets and in ensuring the best 
use of the Population Health Management (PHM) tool to support our 
transformation priorities.  
 
As we move towards greater integration between services we need to 
make sure that the key tools that our teams use continue to be fit for 
purpose. Working closely with the enabling groups within the 
Rotherham Place is critical to providing this. Whether it be the 

P
age 113



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

61 
 

continued development of an integrated health and care record 
through the digital group or helping to ensure we have the right staff 
and skills through our workforce group, they are critical to the success 
of this workstream. 
 
Therefore we must be proactive and clear in what our requirements are 
from these groups, working with them to develop and set their priorities 
through an understanding of what it is we will need and what it is that is 
possible. 
 
Our Success 
We have made considerable progress since the 2018 Place Plan. Of 
the original six priorities, two have been fully completed with work 
continuing to progress against the other four in line with expectations 
and, where applicable, evolved as part of our new priorities.  The 
learning from our work so far has helped guide our current work and 
will continue to do so. 
 
Priority One: Integrated Point of Contact 

 Increased skills and experience within the RMBC Single Point of 
Access (SPA) has resolved more issues at the first point of contact 

 Location of the Care Co-ordination Centre (CCC) with the 
Integrated Rapid Response and therapies team 

 Integration of Mental Health referrals into the CCC  

 Pilot established to transfer staff between the CCC, SPA and 
Mental Health services to enable closer working 

 
Priority Two: Integrated Rapid Response (completed) 

 Separation of planned / unplanned district nursing referrals allowed 
for the creation of a borough wide unplanned hub 

 Creation of additional clinical capacity through a single triage 
function 

 Released 29hours per week of admin time through process 
improvement 

 
 
 

Priority Three: Integrated Discharge (completed) 

 Discharges to the usual place of residence have increased by 7% 
and 5% for the over 85s and 65s respectively 

 Delayed Transfers of Care (DTOCs) reduced from 7.5% in May 
2017 to a low of 1.8% in February 2019 

 An estimated £0.5m saving to the Rotherham System through a 
reduction in acute bed days 

 Implementation of a new single electronic referral system has been 
estimated to save 30mins per patient, time which has been 
reinvested into patient care. 

 Introduction of a community multi disciplinary team (MDT) review of 
all longer stay patients based on the Emergency Care Intensive 
Support Team (ECIST) model of good practice. 

 The team were nationally recognised and received the Health 
Service journal award for Value for Money. 

 
Priority Four: Integrated Locality Working 

 Completion of the ‘Health Village’ locality pilot which brought 
together nursing, therapy, social care and mental health provision 
in a single MDT 

 The introduction of a joint health and social care review of patients 
requiring double handling has freed 91hours of care time per week 
to reinvest into direct patient care  

 Learning from the pilot have informed the development of the ICR 
model (see priority 5) 

 
Priority Five: Intermediate Care and Reablement 

 Early adoption of a home first ethos saved £300,000 in building and 
transport costs by incorporating the Rotherham Intermediate Care 
Centre into the wider reablement team to provide greater at home 
reablement 

 A community led Trusted Assessor pilot working into Urgent and 
Emergency Care Centre (UECC) and AMU has seen a 15% 
increase in patient supported at home and a 5% reduction in 
admissions for referred patients. This was recognised by an Allied 
Health Professional regional workforce award. 

P
age 114



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

62 
 

 ICR Business Case approved by all partners for the redesign of 
services moving away from bed based provision to seeing 500 
more patients within their usual place of residence 

 
Priority Six: Care Home Support 

 Each residential and nursing home has a named linked GP practice 
with a GP or Advanced Nurse Practitioner (ANP) visits at least 
once a fortnight 

 Provision of 24/7 specialist health advice including rapid response 
through the CCC 

 The End of Life Hospice at Home Care Home Pilot has been 
extended. To date this pilot has supported over 1,500 people and 
avoided over 2,000 admissions 

 
Looking forward our main priorities will be: 

 Integration of the Points of Contact across Rotherham 

 Implementation of the ICR reconfiguration.  

 Development of a coordinated approach to care homes support 
 
Further priorities will be developed following the implementation of the 
ICR work and the learning we take from that project. Currently the 
priorities are broad and based around connected pieces of work rather 
than specific projects. As such we have developed priorities to ensure 
that we continue to progress this area and have some flexibility over 
future developments as they begin to emerge. 
 
Priority 1: Integration of the Points of Contact across Rotherham 
There are multiple access points into our health and care services 
across Rotherham. These multiple, often unconnected routes for 
individuals, patients and professionals can lead to confusion, 
duplication and delays through multiple handoffs and multiple referrals. 
 
Our Plan 
This incorporates the original priority – Integrated Point of Contact. 
However, the ambition has been updated to reflect our learning from 
the RMBC Single Point of Access (SPA) implementation and the 
Health Village Pilot. The goal has now moved on from a structural 

change (creating a single entry point) to an operational change 
focusing on how the contact points work together and on developing 
more productive teams delivering trusted assessors, streamlining of 
systems and improved digital communication.  
 
Key Outcomes 

 Promotion of self-care and independent living 

 Reduction in attendances and admission to A&E 

 Timely discharge from hospital and referral into the right community 
service 

 Removal of duplication and points of delay 

 Increased use of digital and automated services 
 
Milestones (note: final milestones will be confirmed for the performance report and 

appear in the published version of the plan) 

 Service Improvement within Care Coordination Centre to facilitate 
further integrated working – Q1 20/21 

 Streamlining access, triage and referral of integrated ICR pathways 
–Q1 20/21 

 
KPIs (note: final KPIs will be confirmed for the performance report and appear in the 

published version of the plan) 

 Number of people provided with information and advice at first 
point of contact (to prevent service need)  

 Proportion of patients who contact CCC who have an outcome as 
‘alternative level of care’ 

 Number of GP urgent admissions to AMU (including those referred 
through CCC)   

 Of the new clients who have had a formal social care assessment 
completed this year, what percentage went on to receive long term 
social care support 
 

 
 
 
 

P
age 115



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

63 
 

Priority 2: Implementation of the Intermediate Care and 
Reablement (ICR) reconfiguration  
The implementation of the ICR project will be the primary focus of the 
Urgent and Community Care workstream through 2019/20 and early 
2020/21.  In 19/20 all affected place partners supported an Outline 
Business Case (OBC) which set out the ambitions for ICR. The OBC 
set out the case to rationalise seven disparate, separate and 
overlapping ICR pathways across health and care into three integrated 
pathways delivered as a single service across Rotherham.  
 
Our Plan 
Investment will be made in our home based teams to increase the 
capacity and capability enabling more patients to be supported at 
home and reduce the need for some of our community reablement bed 
base capacity. This will support the ‘home first’ ethos which is a key 
part of the Rotherham Place Plan. 
 
Key Outcomes 

 Increase in the number of patients who are supported at home 
following an urgent episode 

 Reduced admission into hospital or community bed base 

 Reduced length of stay for patient where admission is unavoidable 

 Reduction in the demand for community beds for intermediate care 
services 

 
Milestones (note: final milestones will be confirmed for the performance report and 

appear in the published version of the plan) 

 Start to implement the home based pathways for Intermediate Care 
and Reablement - Q1 20/21 

 Reduction in the community bed base – Q2 20/21 

 Evaluation of the Therapy Led Intermediate Care Beds – Q3 20/21 
 
KPIs (note: final KPIs will be confirmed for the performance report and appear in the 

published version of the plan) 

 Proportion of new clients who receive short term (enablement) 
service in year with an outcome of no further requests made for 
support  - ASCOF 2d 2B7 

 Proportion of older people (65 and over) still at home 91 days after 
discharge from hospital into reablement / rehabilitation services 

 Number of emergency re-admissions within 28 days of hospital 
discharge to Intermediate Care Beds 

 Number of patients discharged to their usual place of residence 
from Intermediate Care Beds 

 Average length of stay to below national intermediate care target  

 Average length of stay to below national intermediate care target  

 Proportion of therapy led Step Up / Step Down beds which are 
utilised for patients on a Step Up pathway 

 The number of people seen within their usual place of residence for 
their intermediate care needs 

 The % of patients admitted to Intermediate Care beds who are 
discharged on or before their pathway expected length of stay 

 
Priority 3: Development of a coordinated approach to care homes 
support 
The Enhanced Care in Care Homes framework set out a clear vision 
for working with care homes to provide joined up primary, community 
and social care to residents of care and nursing homes. 
 
We are committed to developing a network of relationships to actively 
promote good health in care homes rather than a reactive response to 
ill health. We want to pursue the development of technology to link 
homes to services and the improved access points. 
 
We will continue to implement our response to Enhanced Health in 
Care Homes. Current care home support activity will be mapped to 
identify opportunities to further integrate and streamline out services 
and training offer. We will continue to explore opportunities for the use 
of assistive technology and will roll our NHS mail to all care homes to 
enable service information sharing. 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 116



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

64 
 

Key Outcomes 

 Greater focus on prevention and recovery to support greater 
independence for longer 

 Holistic, patient centred care which reduces duplication 

 Increased use of assistive technology to upskill staff and reduce 
A&E attendances and admissions 
 

Milestones (note: final milestones will be confirmed for the performance report and 

appear in the published version of the plan) 

 Roll out of ECHO in Residential/Nursing Care Homes via a hub 
supported by the Hospice – Q2 20/21  

 Development of robust plan for integration of Care Home provision 
across the Health and Social Care – Q3 20/21 

 
KPIs (note: final KPIs will be confirmed for the performance report and appear in the 

published version of the plan) 

 New permanent admissions to residential nursing care for adults –
  65+  BCF/ASCOF 2a (2)/ BCF (per100,000)  

 Number of A&E attendances from care home residents (local) 

 Number of unscheduled hospital admissions Care Homes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10 Governance to Support Delivery 

10.1 Governance Structure 
The ICP Place Board is the group responsible for directing and leading 
the ICP, reporting to the H&WB Board for progress against the Place 
Plan. 

 
In addition, with the exception of RMBC as they are not formal partners 
to the ICS, the Place Board will liaise, where appropriate, with: 

 the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw ICS to communicate the views 
of the ICP on ICS level matters; and 

 national stakeholders (including NHS England and NHS 
Improvement) to communicate the views of the ICP on national 
matters relating to integrated care. 
 

Partners represented at the Place Board have developed and agreed 
an ICP Agreement for how we will work together.  The Agreement is 
based on a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) approach to provide 
an overarching arrangement which governs the development of 
integrated multi-party solutions for health, care and support across the 
geographical area of Rotherham. The format is designed to work 
alongside the NHS Standard Contract and arrangements for the 
delivery of non-NHS care, support, and community services via RMBC.  
  
The Agreement is not intended to be legally binding except for specific 
elements, but encompasses the spirit by which the ICP partners have 
and will continue to collaborate in supporting work towards the 
transformation and better integration of health, care, support and 
community services for local people.  The Agreement reflects the 
differing position RMBC has with the ICS. This will be further 
strengthened by the development and implementation of a Provider 
Alliance agreement during 2020/21.  Key benefits of the agreement  
will be; a more formal forum for partners to deliver targeted outcomes; 
the development and implementation of joint incentives; and ability for 
more rapid escalation and resolution of issues. 

 

P
age 117



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

65 
 

Collectively the ICP has worked towards an agreed governance 
structure and have agreed a shared vision and a set of principles by 
which the Rotherham Place Board, and sub-groups will adhere to.   
These can be found in section 2.2. 
 
The Place Board will act in accordance with its Terms of Reference 
and will: 

 promote and encourage commitment to the Place Plan and ICP 
Principles amongst all partners; 

 formulate, agree and implement the transformational priorities of 
the Place Plan;  

 ensure alignment of all organisations to facilitate sustainable and 
better care which is able to meet the needs of the population; 

 review performance of partners against the Place Plan and the ICP 
outcomes and determine strategies to improve performance or 
rectify poor performance; 

 agree policy as required, including values to be adopted and 
annual and short-term performance outcomes/targets; 

 report on progress against the Place Plan to the H&WB Board as 
required; 

 communicate the collective interests and views of the ICP at 
meetings of, or when liaising with, the ICS and national 
stakeholders; 

 oversee the implementation of the Place Plan in line with the ICP 
Principles. 

 
The ICP Delivery Team is the group responsible for managing the 
collaborative operation of partners and the delivery of the Place Plan 
and will:  

 make recommendations to the Place Board for its approval or 
rejection as to how the services should be delivered in a more 

integrated and best for Rotherham way so as to deliver the Place 
Plan; and 

 provide clinical and professional leadership with regard to the 
services. 

 
The diagram on page 67 shows the governance structure for the Place 
Board, setting out the relationship to the H&WB Board. 
 

10.2 Performance Management 
A quarterly report is produced on the delivery of this Place Plan so that 
the ICP Place Board can be assured on its delivery and can be sighted 
on any potential opportunities or risks to delivery.   

 
The Performance Report includes key milestones and key 
performance indicators (KPIs) for each of the priorities beneath the five 
areas of transformation. The milestones provide a way of measuring 
that the actions and pace set for each of the priorities is being met.  
The KPIs have been chosen from existing metrics that are already 
collected and where there is baseline information and associated 
targets.   

 
In section 9 where we have described each of the transformation 
workstreams and priorities we have also documented the associated 
milestones and KPIs. 
 

10.3 High Level Risks 
In addition to the robust governance arrangements and structure 
established to deliver this plan, we have considered the potential risks 
and mitigations. 
  

P
age 118



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

66 
 

Potential Risk  Mitigation 
Organisational behaviour – potential impact of 
individual organisations financial and delivery targets on 
the overall system wide delivery of plan → 

 Open and transparent discussions. 

 Robust governance arrangements. 

 System wide commitment to joint planning 

Capacity to deliver the Plan – risk of organisations not 
having the capacity/workforce within existing resources 
to deliver the plan. → 

 Realistic implementation plans, aligned to partners organisational goals and objectives. 

 Robust performance monitoring arrangements. 

 Make best use of joint working arrangements and shared resources. 

 Joint workforce strategy, aligned to the requirements of the plan and  

 Joint Organisational Development Plan. 

Capability to deliver the Plan - risk of organisations not 
having sufficient capability / skills within existing 
workforce to deliver the plan. → 

 Skills gaps analysis/ competency Framework / training plan. 

 Effective change management / culture change. 

 Joint Organisational Development Plan. 

Impact of national policy / regulations – unknown 
impact of national policies and changes to business rules → 

 Robust governance arrangements. 

 Work with statutory and regulatory bodies to inform development of revised policy / 
regulations. 

Public opinion – risk of not undertaking relevant public 
consultation on the key initiatives of our plan. 

→ 

 Open and transparent discussions. 

 Robust governance arrangements. 

 Use existing consultations and ensure robust consultation is continued to be undertaken on 
future developments. 

 Make best use of joint working arrangements and shared resources. 

Impact on organisational reputation - risk of adverse 
publicity in relation to the plan and its objectives. → 

 Open and transparent discussions. 

 Utilise collective communication and engagement resources to ensure robust approach 
continues. 

Resident Behaviour – risk that current behaviour in 
terms of access and use of services is not changed as a 
result of the plan. → 

 Open and transparent discussions. 

 Effective public education. 

 Effective communication plan. 

 Insight into local behaviour and create environments for healthy lifestyle choices. 

IT Infrastructure – impact of not successfully integrating 
health and social care systems and not driving forward IT 
solutions to support self-management. → 

 Joint Interoperability group and partner sign up. 

 Effective training. 

 One provider for Health IT. 

Wise use of current resources – use of current funding 
and impact of not being successful in securing additional 
funding to deliver the place plan at pace and scale. → 

 Development of robust implementation plan, agreed by partners. 

 Upfront agreement on how potential funding is prioritised, agreed by partners. 

 Ability to mobilise plans quickly to attract any potential additional funding announcements. 

P
age 119



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

67 
 

 

 
  

Rotherham ICP Governance Structure 

P
age 120



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

68 
 

11 Glossary 

 

 

A&E Accident and Emergency KPI Key Performance Indicator 

BCF Better Care Fund LAC Looked After Children 

CAMHS Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services LMC Local Medical Committee 

CCC Care Co-ordination Centre LOS Length of Stay 

CCG Clinical Commissioning Group MOU Memorandum of Understanding 

CHR CIC Connect Healthcare Rotherham CIC NHS LTP NHS Long Term Plan 

C&YP Children and Young People PCN Primary Care Network 

DTOC Delayed Transfers of Care RDaSH Rotherham Doncaster and South Humber NHS Foundation Trust 

H&WB Health and Wellbeing RHR Rotherham Health Record 

HSR Hospital Services Review RMBC Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council 

ICP Integrated Care Partnership SEND Special Educational Needs and Disabilities 

ICS Integrated Care System SY&B South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw 

IH&SC Integrated Health and Social Care STP Sustainability and Transformation Plan 

IRR Integrated Rapid Response TRFT The Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust 

IT Information technology VAR Voluntary Action Rotherham 

IDT Integrated Discharge Team VCS Voluntary and community sector 

JSNA Joint Strategic Needs Assessment   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

P
age 121



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

69 
 

Appendix 1: Prevention in detail 

11.1 Tobacco Addition 
Tobacco addiction is the single biggest cause of preventable illness 
and avoidable death in the world. It kills about half of all lifetime users, 
and is the leading cause of socioeconomic inequalities in health in the 
UK, accounting for around half the difference in life expectancy 
between the richest and poorest groups. In the UK, adults from 
deprived backgrounds are more likely to smoke and therefore bear the 
burden of health impacts disproportionately. Conditions where smoking 
has been identified as a causative agent include coronary heart 
disease and stroke, cancers of the lung, stomach, mouth, throat, 
larynx, oesophagus, bladder, bowel, cervix, kidney, liver and pancreas, 
asthma and Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD), and 
osteoporosis. The harms are not just limited to the individual smoker, 
as the second hand smoke impacts on the health of their partners and 
children. 
 
While overall the prevalence rate for smoking in adults in Rotherham 
has fallen overall in the last decade, unfortunately it has recently 
increased and is currently 18.9%, the highest since 2015, and it is 
higher than the England average of 14.4%. The number of women 
smoking at time of delivery (SATOD) has fallen to 17.6% compared to 
19.9% in 2018, though this is higher than the England average of 
10.8%. Tackling tobacco addiction is a major part of tackling health 
inequalities, as rates for routine and manual workers are much higher 
than the rest of the population at 29.9%. In the most deprived 
communities where smoking may still be perceived as a social norm, 
levels of tobacco addiction are higher. High rates are also seen in 
individuals with mental health conditions and learning disabilities, 
where it is a substantial contributor to the higher rates of premature 
death observed amongst them. In 2018 the costs to society of smoking 
in Rotherham were estimated to be around £64.2 million (2016) 
compared to £12.6 billion for England (http://ash.lelan.co.uk) 
 
 
 
 

What we are doing 
Public Health has commissioned a smoking cessation service for 
adults within the Get Healthy Rotherham (GHR) Integrated Lifestyle 
wellness service. The service supports people to quit using evidence-
based practice, which involves a combination of pharmacotherapy and 
support from a trained stop smoking advisor. In people can also chose 
to use e-cigarettes as a quit smoking aid alongside the advisor 
support. Work is ongoing to increase the number of referrals to Get 
Healthy Rotherham from primary care to reach the target numbers of 
residents for 4 week smoking cessation quits. 
 
The Maternity Transformation Plan has SATOD as a priority with work 
focused on bringing the high local rate down towards the England 
average. Public Health are working in partnership with The Rotherham 
Foundation Trust (TRFT) and supporting the work of the Rotherham 
Maternity Better Births group to reduce the prevalence of women 
smoking at time of delivery to 16% or less by end of 2022. All women 
smoking during pregnancy are offered specialist midwifery smoking 
cessation support. The SATOD midwifery led service ensures every 
pregnant woman has their carbon monoxide level tested regularly 
which gives an accurate local picture of women who are smoking; a 
robust opt out system is in place to support these women to give up. 
 
The QUIT programme is the systematic implementation of the 
treatment of tobacco dependency in secondary care (acute and mental 
health trusts) and the provision of ongoing support for people from 
community stop smoking services or the specialist mental health stop 
smoking advisors. It is based on the Ottawa and London Senate 
Models, NICE Public Health Guidance and has four comprehensive 
steps: 

Q Ask all hospital patients about their smoking status 

U 
Understand their addiction and record CO monitor results for all hospital 
patients 

I 
Inform them that the hospital site is smokefree and provide support for 
nicotine replacement 

T 
Initiate treatment as soon as possible by referral to smoking cessation 
support 

The QUIT programme is a priority within the NHS Long Term Plan, and 

P
age 122

http://ash.lelan.co.uk/


 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

70 
 

recognises that tobacco dependence is a chronic, relapsing clinical 
condition that prematurely kills at least half of people who smoke, with 
smoking being seen as a medical condition that can be treated rather 
than as a lifestyle choice. The CURE programme in Greater 
Manchester has shown that it is possible to implement the Ottawa 
model in NHS acute trusts with impressive results. A business case 
written by South Yorkshire ICS details the plans and funding now 
agreed to expand routine tobacco dependence treatment to all patients 
at TRFT and RDaSH. 
 
Work across communities in Rotherham includes that done with 
schools and by trading standards. A smokefree toolkit will be launched 
in September 2019, which will strengthen efforts to stop young people 
taking up smoking. There are also regional and national tobacco 
control campaigns such as Breathe 2025. Trading standards work 
across Rotherham to enforce smokefree legislation in public places 
and for standardised packaging, ensure reduction of access to illicit 
tobacco and prevent sale of tobacco products to children and children. 
 
Expected outcomes / benefits 
Reducing the prevalence of smoking across all sections of the 
Rotherham population would have a major impact on morbidity and 
premature mortality, improve quality of life, ensure a healthier, more 
productive workforce and help ensure sustainability of the health and 
social care system. Supporting people to stop smoking is the quickest 
and most effective thing to support a reduction in health inequalities, as 
it accounts for half of the health gap between the poorest and most 
affluent communities and is a major contributor to the 15 – 20 years 
gap in life expectancy between people with a severe mental health 
illness and the general population. 
 
The British Thoracic Society has estimated that 25% of patients 
admitted to acute hospital are smokers, with even higher rates for 
people admitted to or using mental health secondary care. Reducing 
the prevalence of smoking is one of the most effective demand 
management measures for the NHS since the risk of hospital 
admission falls as soon as someone stops smoking; evidence from the 
Ottawa model suggests individuals are 50% less likely to be re- 

admitted to the hospital for any cause and 30% less likely to visit an 
emergency department within 30 days. It is also one of the key actions 
that the NHS can do to reduce the incidence of cancer 
 
It has been estimated that implementing QUIT in Rotherham would 
lead to: 
 383 lives saved at one year, 460 lives in two years 
 396 readmissions to acute trusts within 30 days prevented 
 747 readmissions to acute trusts within a year prevented 
 958 six month quits 
 Around £1.2 million saving from acute trust readmissions alone 

within a year 
 £46,000 savings from A&E attendances within 30 days 

11.2 Obesity  
The problem 
Tackling the high levels of overweight or obesity in our society is 
important for preventing a number of serious and potentially life- 
threatening conditions, such as type 2 diabetes, coronary heart 
disease, stroke and some types of cancer, including breast and bowel 
cancer. Obesity does not just affect physical health as it can also have 
an impact on quality of life and lead to psychological problems, such as 
depression and low self-esteem. Income, social deprivation and 
ethnicity all have a big impact on the chances of becoming obese, and 
there is a strong relationship between deprivation and childhood 
obesity (Marmot Review, National Child Measurement Programme). 
 
In Rotherham 25.5% of 4-5 year olds and 36.1% of 10-11 year olds are 
overweight or obese (NHS Digital, National Child Measurement 
Programme). Obesity levels are much higher in our most deprived 
communities: the three most deprived wards (Rotherham East, 
Rotherham West and Valley) have some of the highest rates for obese 
children at Reception and Year 6 (2015/16 – 2017/18 combined) (NHS 
Digital, National Child Measurement Programme). Recent adult obesity 
levels were significantly higher than the England average. However, 
Rotherham improved dramatically between 2016/17 and 2017/18 from 
71.2% to 62.7%. Therefore nearly two-thirds of Rotherham adults aged 
over 18 years are now overweight or obese, similar to the England 

P
age 123

https://breathe2025.org.uk/


 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

71 
 

average (62.0%). These levels of obesity cost the local economy an 
estimated £23.7 million and reducing obesity will be an important 
contributor to achieving sustainability in the health and social care. 
 
What we are doing 
Reducing the high prevalence of overweight and obesity in Rotherham 
requires a whole-system approach across the borough. A local 
‘Healthy Weight for All’ Plan to promote healthy weight and reduce 
obesity across all ages is being developed, led by Public Health. The 
contribution and engagement of all NHS partners and council  
directorates will be needed for it to be effective. Steps are also being 
taken towards adopting the Local Authority Declaration on Weight. This 
involves looking at opportunities across the whole council, as well as 
working with partners, to create healthy environments for local people, 
including areas such as planning, licensing, green spaces, and 
catering. 
 
The Rotherham Activity Partnership (RAP) is developing a local plan 
which focuses on getting the population of Rotherham, particularly the 
least active, children and families, and older people more engaged in 
physical activity. Currently only 13.5% of the Rotherham population 
use outdoor space for exercise or health reasons, which is lower than 
elsewhere in South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw. The Cultural Strategy for 
Rotherham 2018-2025: Things to Do, Places to Go (available here: 
Like Rotherham) has also been launched which helps tackle this, 
supporting good levels of physical activity to become the norm as a 
result of encouraging people to get active, more creative and get 
outdoors more often; this will need to be linked to active travel plans for 
all partners. Rotherham has accessed Sheffield City Region 
sustainable travel access funding in 2017 -18 for a range of walking 
and cycling projects to encourage people to be more active, and there 
is an active travel working group in the Council incorporating Members 
from multiple areas of responsibility. 
Public Health has recently commissioned a new child weight 
management service, being delivered by the 0-19 Service at the 
Rotherham Foundation Trust (TRFT) called WHAM (weight, health and 
attitude management service). This provides tailored support to 
children, young people and their families who have been identified with 

a weight concern (over 91st centile) via the National Child 
Measurement Programme (NCMP), a health professional or by self- 
referral. WHAM has links with a range of professionals including school 
nurses, dietetics, paediatricians and general practitioners (GPs), as 
well as with community organisations such as Rotherham United 
Community Sports Trust. The service is also developing a training 
package for staff across the council and the NHS who work with 
children and young people, which will aim to raise their confidence 
andskills in talking to people about weight and provide information 
about where to sign-post or refer children and families onto. 
 
Further discussions now need to take place to explore what more 
could be done in early years (children under 5) to promote healthy 
weight messages and identify children with weight concerns before 
they reach school. If children over 96th centile were flagged early 
(during the standard 2 year check) and families provided with support, 
this could help reduce the numbers of children being identified as 
obese at reception (via NCMP). 
 
Get Healthy Rotherham offers weight management support and also 
helps those individuals attending for a Health Check identified as 
overweight or obese to make lifestyle changes to address their weight 
issues in partnership with Slimming World. Those who are identified 

non‐diabetic hyperglycaemia or raised fasting plasma glucose as part 
of their Health Check are referred to the National Diabetes Prevention 
Programme (NDPP). 
 
New Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) has been developed 
for health and inequalities. This includes a restriction on new fast-food 
takeaways within a 400-metre radius of schools and colleges. 
 
Although SPDs are non-statutory, it forms part of the local plan and 
can be used as guidance when processing planning applications. The 
SPD also includes a checklist for any prospective developers to help 
ensure they consider health and wellbeing issues. 
 
In addition to using planning to ensure provision of healthier, affordable 
food for the general population, there are a number of opportunities 

P
age 124

http://likerotherham.org/
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=QMEUp-o04XM&amp;feature=youtu.be


 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

72 
 

available to improve the local food environment. These include looking 
at food provision in council buildings, hospitals, leisure centres and 
schools. All partners have a role to play in this, to ensure consistent 
healthy weight messages are given in all settings for the public as well 
as the workforce. 
 
In line with this and the aspirations of the NHS long term plan hospital 
premises should adopt hospital food standards on healthy nutrition for 
both patients and staff to limit the proportion, placement and promotion 
of foods and beverages high in fat, salt and sugar. In addition the 
promotion of physical activity within clinical services and for staff, and 
the use of active travel plans for both patients and staff will also be 
conducive to the promotion of healthier weight 
 
Expected outcomes / benefits 
The strategic vision is for Rotherham to be a place where healthy 
weight is the norm and making healthy choices around nutrition and 
physical activity is easy for everyone. As obesity is the major 
modifiable risk factor for diabetes, reducing obesity levels would have 
an impact on the prevalence of diabetes, which is currently rising and 
therefore its associated costs. As well as improving the quality of life 
for individuals with obesity, reducing obesity levels would make an 
impact on levels of cancer, cardiovascular disease, and maternity 
outcomes. It would also make a contribution to tackling health 
inequalities, given the association between obesity and deprivation. 

11.3 Alcohol 
The problem 
Long-term alcohol misuse in particular affects the brain and nervous 
system, heart, liver and pancreas, and is associated with an increased 
risk of high blood pressure, stroke, liver disease and cancer, 
pancreatitis, cancers of the mouth, head and neck, breast, bowel, 
depression and dementia, sexual and infertility problems. The effects 
of alcohol are not limited to health, and also include harms from 
accidents and violence, antisocial behaviour, impacts on education and 
employment, family break-up and divorce, domestic abuse, financial 
problems and homelessness. 
 

While people in the most socioeconomically deprived neighbourhoods 
of the UK do not drink more alcohol, they are more likely to experience 
more alcohol-related health problems than those drinking equivalent 
amounts living in more affluent neighbourhoods (the alcohol harm 
paradox). Rotherham’s rate of hospital admissions related to alcohol is 
significantly higher than England with over 1,800 people admitted in 
2017/18. 
 
What we are doing 
Actions to tackle excess alcohol consumption and treat alcohol 
dependence are being undertaken by the local NHS and the Council. 
Several alcohol partnership events have recently been held to identify 
the key issues and discuss what the next priorities for action should be. 
A rapid alcohol health needs assessment has been carried out that will 
also inform these priorities. 
 
The Challenging, Leadership and Results (CLeaR) assessment for 
responsible drinking has been completed and will inform work on 
responsible drinking and the licensing process. Public Health have 
worked closely with licensing as a Responsible Authority and 
contribute meaningful intelligence and advice into the alcohol licensing 
process. 
 
Get Healthy Rotherham is identifying individuals with high levels of 
alcohol consumption and providing a brief intervention which allows 
such individuals to understand alcohol limit guidelines and how they 
can reduce their drinking. They also refer on those individuals 
identified as being problem drinkers to Change Grow Live (CGL). 
Referrals to the CGL service for problem drinking from GPs and the 
Get Healthy Rotherham service are low (in line with a Public Health 
England reported national trend), and work is needed to address this.  
An Alcohol Care Team is in place in TRFT to reduce emergency 
attendances and admissions bed days, readmissions and ambulance 
call-outs, with a referral service for problem drinking from Get Healthy 
Rotherham. This is another element of the Healthy Hospital 
Programme that will encompass the other prevention priorities within 
the Long Term Plan that relate to Trusts, such QUIT, healthy hospital 
food standards, active transport and air pollution. 

P
age 125



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

73 
 

CGL also deliver the opiate and non-opiate treatment service for 
adults. Public health continue to monitor any changes in patterns of 
substance misuse. 
 
Expected outcomes / benefits 
Reducing excess alcohol consumption in Rotherham would contribute 
substantially to the sustainability of the health and social care system, 
for example more than 1 in 10 visits to accident and emergency 
departments in England are due to alcohol-related illnesses, as well as 
to reducing the burden on the public sectors outside of health, for 
example more than 1.2 million violent incidents are linked to alcohol 
misuse each year in England. 

11.4 Air Pollution 
The problem 
Air pollution is a mixture of particles and gases that can have an 
adverse effect on human health. The black smog which once shrouded 
British cities has now cleared but it is estimated that invisible air 
pollution still produces an effect equivalent to 28,000 to 38,000 deaths 
in the UK annually (Health Protection Profile, PHE, 2018). Although air 
pollution has improved over recent decades, there are still significant 
public health challenges mainly related to Particulate Matter (PM2.5 and 
PM10) and nitrogen dioxide (NO2) in ambient air. It is now regarded as 
the largest environmental risk linked to deaths in the United Kingdom 
and a significant source of ill-health. Tackling air pollution is a 
government priority, as demonstrated through the Governments latest 
Clean Air Strategy https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/clean- 
air-strategy-2019 and will feed into the wider work to tackle the climate 
emergency’ 
There are strong associations between air pollution and major 
diseases that pose a great health and economic burden, including 
childhood asthma, coronary heart disease, stroke, and lung cancer. 
Poor air quality can have an impact on health at all stages of life, from 
being associated with low birth weight, lung function development in 
children, an increased risk of chronic respiratory disease and acute 
exacerbations, and premature death, and is estimated to be 
responsible for 4.1% of mortality in Rotherham. Recent evidence 
suggests air pollution can affect cognitive function. All these may have 

an impact upon the quality of life, with the most vulnerable being the 
young and the old. It is often the case that the most deprived 
communities where there is less car ownership bear the brunt of air 
pollution from vehicle emissions. 
 
In most of Rotherham, air quality is good, but Rotherham, along with 
most urban areas in England, has areas of elevated air pollution which 
have been declared as Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA) 
Rotherham Air Quality monitoring. Whilst traffic emissions continue to 
impact on the quality of air in Rotherham, air quality in the Wellgate 
AQMA has improved sufficiently for the AQMA to be revoked. 
 
What we are doing 
Local authorities are required to declare an AQMA where both 
exceedances of air quality targets occur (averaged over a period) and 
where people are exposed. The current air quality management areas 
for Rotherham cover those locations where exceedance of objectives 
for NO2 has been measured and relevant exposure to this pollution 
occurs. The Council has implemented a range of measures as part of 
Air Quality Action Plans to work towards achieving compliance with the 
air quality objectives identified in the AQMAs. 
 
 Clean Air Zone 
The National Air Quality Plan, published by Department for 
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) in July 2017, identified 
those Local Authorities with areas that are not compliant with the 
European Union (EU) Ambient Air Quality Directive through national air 
quality modelling. 28 Local Authorities were included (‘mandated’) in 
the plan, including Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council (RMBC). 
Following the completion of a joint feasibility study across Sheffield and 
Rotherham, a Plan will be produced which will include a range of 
targeted measures to be implemented locally to reduce emissions from 
vehicles and achieve compliance in the shortest possible time as 
required by the Government. 
 
 Planning 
The Rotherham Local Plan supports the provision of local health 
facilities but also influences health directly by supporting strategies for 

P
age 126

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/clean-air-strategy-2019
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/clean-air-strategy-2019


 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

74 
 

improvements to air quality and promoting a healthier lifestyle through 
walking, cycling and the provision of open spaces and recreation 
facilities. Aspects of the plan which aim to improve air quality and 
reduce inequalities in health by the end of the plan period (Rotherham 
Local Plan Core Strategy 2013-2028) include: 

 

 An increased proportion of trips made by walking and cycling 

 Improved public transport interchanges and bus services between 
local communities 

 Initiatives to secure improved information technology networks to 
enable increased “teleworking”, along with the development of 
live/work housing and mixed use schemes in appropriate locations. 

 
 Electric transport 
The Government has provided funding for the rollout of public Electric 
Vehicle (EV) Charging Points throughout Rotherham borough during 
2018. These public charging points have been installed in Rotherham’s 
main town centre car parks, our country parks, and at our leisure 
centres. Many of the public EV Charging Points have been installed in 
conjunction with solar panels and battery storage which will also 
increase public awareness to alternatives to petrol and particularly 
diesel vehicles. This is in parallel with the South Yorkshire Care4air 
campaigns ‘Fuelling Change’ https://fuellingchange.co.uk/ and 
https://drivingcleanair.care4air.org/ 
 
The Council has started to move towards increasing use of Ultra Low 
Emission Vehicles, with the purchase of some electric cars and 
installation of electric vehicle charging facilities at the Transport Depot. 
In the near future, electric vans will start replacing conventionally 
fuelled ones for undertaking Council business. 
 
 The Rotherham Activity Partnership (obesity section 5.2.2) 

supports work to tackle air pollution by encouraging active travel as 
part of being more physically active through schemes to: 

 Improve accessibility to walking and cycling 

 Local road safety, e.g. new crossings 
 

 NHS Partners will also need to assist local government in the 
reduction of air pollution. Actions suggested in the NHS long term 
plan which should be adopted locally include: reducing business 
mileages from redesigned care and greater use of virtual 
appointments, minimising the need for patient and staff travel; and 
reducing air pollution by ensuring that at least 90% of the local 
NHS fleet use low-emissions engines (including 25% Ultra Low 
Emissions) by 2028, and that primary heating from coal and oil fuel 
in NHS sites is fully phased out. Adoption of active travel plans for 
patients and staff will also help reduce air pollution 

 
Expected outcomes/benefits 
Shifting from motorised to active forms of transport, such as walking 
and cycling, can reduce the levels of particulate matter (PM) and 
nitrogen dioxide (NO2) while also contributing to reducing the burden 
of obesity and non-communicable diseases; this is known as the ‘co- 
benefits’. This approach can lead to substantial benefits for public 
health and reduce healthcare costs in addition to reducing health 
inequalities. 
 
In 2017, the total NHS and social care cost due to PM2.5 and NO2 was 
estimated to be £42.9 million in England. If no action to improve air 
quality is taken and trends continue, costs could accumulate to £5.3 
billion between 2017 and 2035. 
https://publichealthmatters.blog.gov.uk/2018/05/22/enabling-local- 
authorities-to-tackle-air-pollution/ 
Air pollution is an international problem that affects everyone, but 
almost always the most socioeconomically disadvantaged suffer most 
from the health effects of pollution. Other groups disproportionately 
affected include older people, children, pregnant women, individuals 
with existing medical conditions, and communities in areas of higher 
pollution. 

11.5 Antimicrobial Resistance 
The problem 
The overuse of antimicrobials in clinical and other settings (e.g. in 
animal health) is leading to increasing resistance to antibiotics that is 
spreading worldwide. A particular concern globally is the spread of 

P
age 127

https://fuellingchange.co.uk/
https://drivingcleanair.care4air.org/
https://publichealthmatters.blog.gov.uk/2018/05/22/enabling-local-authorities-to-tackle-air-pollution/
https://publichealthmatters.blog.gov.uk/2018/05/22/enabling-local-authorities-to-tackle-air-pollution/


 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

75 
 

carbapenemase-producing gram-negative infections (CPE) which are 
resistant to carbapenem antibiotics which are often the last line of 
treatment in severe bacterial infections. Antimicrobial resistance (AMR) 
to carbapenems is currently at low levels in England. However, there is 
considerable variation across Europe. In 2017, there was less than 1% 
resistance in most of northern Europe, including the UK, in contrast to 
8.6% in Portugal, 31.4% in Romania, 22.5% in Italy and 64.7% in 
Greece (European Centres for Disease Prevention and Control, 2018, 
Surveillance Atlas of Infectious Diseases). 
https://atlas.ecdc.europa.eu/public/index.aspx 
 
AMR makes treating infections caused by multi-drug resistant 
organisms increasingly difficult, which is both costly and a safety risk. 
Of particular concern is the potential for levels of AMR to rise quickly. 
For example, Italy had 1% to 2% resistance from 2006 to 2009 but by 
2014 this had increased to 33% at which point control efforts became 
expensive and challenging. This reinforces the need for proactive 
control measures which are vital to prevent the rapid development of 
resistance. 
 
What we are doing 
The government has published a five-year action plan which sets out 
actions to slow the development and spread of antimicrobial 
resistance. Part of this strategy includes national voluntary point 
prevalence surveillance for Healthcare Associated Infections (HCAI) 
and antimicrobial stewardship to benchmark performance and to be 
able to compare primary care prescribing rates for co-amoxiclav, 
cephalosporins, and quinolones. The Rotherham Foundation Trust 
(TRFT) and Rotherham CCG have been active participants although 
the full report for the National and European results has not yet been 
published. 
 
Good infection prevention and control, and appropriate antimicrobial 
use are essential in ensuring safe and effective care for those 
receiving health and social care and in managing and controlling the 
spread of communicable diseases. Effective prevention and control of 
infection must be part of everyday practice and be applied consistently 
by everyone (Health and Social Care Act: Code of Practice, DH 2008). 

The Council, CCG commissioners and the CQC continually monitor 
and seek assurance that patient safety and service quality are 
maintained for Infection Prevention and Control in the public and 
independent sectors who deliver regulated services. 
Through medicines management actions are being undertaken to 
optimise the use of antibiotics, reduce unintentional exposure to them 
and the requirement for them. Particularly challenging areas remain in 
the community to ensure that policies are implemented on appropriate 
prescribing and review. In the coming year CCG and TRFT will 
therefore be working on the following areas: 

 Long term Urinary Tract Infection (UTI) management, including use 
of non- antibiotic treatment e.g. promoting hydration 

 Review of prophylactic antibiotic regimens in primary care in terms 
of length of course and appropriateness of treatment choice, in 
conjunction with microbiology at TRFT to inform future joint actions. 

 Review of long term and repeated ‘rescue medication’ in Chronic 
Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD) management. 

 Review of prophylactic antibiotic regimens in primary care in terms 
of appropriateness of treatment choice and frequency of repeat 
courses in conjunction with microbiology at TRFT. 

 Review of topical antifungals for fungal nail infection 

 Review of acne treatment pathway/ de-prescribing of topical 
antibiotics for acne 

 Implementing aspects of TARGET Antibiotic Tool kit. 
 
The UK wide Antibiotic Guardian campaign to raise awareness and to 
stimulate behaviour change in members of the public, healthcare 
professionals and other local stakeholders are encouraged to sign up 
to these national aspirations. 
 
Expected outcomes/benefits 
With an aging population, increased co-morbidities and surgery, it is 
important to reduce unnecessary and inappropriate antibiotic use in 
both the community and hospital. This will avoid unnecessary costs 
across the health and social care system. 
 

P
age 128

https://atlas.ecdc.europa.eu/public/index.aspx


 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

76 
 

11.6 Stronger Action on Health Inequalities 
The problem 
'There can be no more important task for those concerned with the 
health of the population than to reduce health inequalities' (Sir Michael 
Marmot 2019) 
 
Health inequalities are the preventable, unfair and unjust differences in 
health status between groups, populations or individuals that arise 
from the unequal distribution of social, environmental and economic 
conditions within societies, which determine the risk of people getting 
ill, their ability to prevent sickness, or opportunities to take action and 
access treatment when ill health occurs (NHS and Public Health 
England). 
 
The overarching indicators of health inequalities are life expectancy 
and health life expectancy for men and women. Life expectancy at 
birth in Rotherham is still below the England average: currently for men 
in Rotherham it is 77.9 years compared to 79.5 years for the England 
average, and for women in Rotherham it is 81.6 years compared to 
83.1 years for the England average. Within Rotherham inequalities are 
even more striking, a baby boy born in the poorest areas can expect to 
live on average 10.8 years less than one born in the richest areas, and 
for a baby girl this difference is 8.4 years. People are more likely to live 
in poor health with multiple long-term conditions in Rotherham, and as 
a result they are likely to have substantial health and social care 
needs. Healthy life expectancy in Rotherham for men is 59.8 years 
compared to the England average of 63.3 years, and for women 55.7 
years compared to the England average of 63.9 years. This means 
that on average men in Rotherham spend 24% of their life in poor 
health and women 30%. 
 
While life expectancy for men and women improved overall in the last 
decade, more recently it shows signs of having levelled off or to be 
declining. Moreover the gap in life expectancy between Rotherham 
and the England average has been getting steadily wider. The reason 
for this is not completely clear but inequalities in the underlying social 
determinants of health play a large part. The green paper on 

prevention references evidence to suggest that these are responsible 
for 15-20% of premature mortality. These wider determinants of health 
that encompass a range of social, economic and environmental factors 
account for 80% of population health outcomes but do not receive an 
equivalent amount of dedicated NHS funding to tackle them; 
healthcare accounts for 20% of population health outcomes, though 
the relative proportions could be altered if services were to be better 
targeted and more attuned to the needs of the most marginalised and 
the underlying social determinants addressed. The adapted Dahlgren 
and Whitehead model (Figure 1) highlights how the health of the 
people of Rotherham is affected by a wide range of factors throughout 
the life course: 
 
Rotherham is more deprived compared to the rest of England on 
average, and people with lower incomes have significantly worse 
physical and mental health than those with higher incomes. In 2018, 
18.9% of children in Rotherham were living in workless households, 
the highest number in Yorkshire and Humber; in 2016, 21.8% of 
Rotherham children under 16 were living in poverty (low income 
families) compared to 17% for England. Stable employment in a quality 
job is usually associated with greater income and better health. 
Employment rates have improved in Rotherham, but not for vulnerable 
groups such as those with learning disabilities or in contact with 
secondary mental health services. Moreover, many of those in work 
are still living in poverty as a result of short term or zero hours 
contracts. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 129

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/advancing-our-health-prevention-in-the-2020s
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/advancing-our-health-prevention-in-the-2020s


 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

77 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Figure 1: Rotherham Influencers on Health (adapted from Dahlgren- 
Whitehead, 1991) 
 
In addition to where people work, where they live and play has an 
impact on their health; therefore a consistent and sustained 
commitment across place needs to be developed to address the 
resulting health inequalities. Poor quality housing, a contributor to 
excess winter deaths, is an issue for Rotherham particularly in the 
private rented sector, where 16% of properties have category 1 
Housing Health and Safety Rating System hazards and 4.2% have an 
Energy Performance Certificate rating below band E. The housing in 
many deprived communities tends to be closer to busier roads and 
therefore more prone to the effects of particulate air pollution (section 
5.2.4). 
 
The physical and social environment around homes and workplaces is 
also important. Good access to green spaces is associated with better 

physical and mental health, but this is not equal across Rotherham 
where only 13.5% of the population use outdoor space for exercise or 
health reasons, which is lower than elsewhere in South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw. Cohesive communities and good social links support 
mental health, resilience, and overall happiness; currently 11.2 % of 
people in Rotherham have a self-reported low happiness score in the 
annual wellbeing survey compared to the national average of 8.2%, 
and less than half of both adult social care users and carers have as 
much social contact as they would like (47.5% for adult social care 
users and 37.3% for adult carers). 
 
The impact of these wider determinants becomes apparent when the 
pattern of preventable ill health and premature death across 
Rotherham is considered. Rates for tobacco dependence (section 
5.2.1), cancer, cardiovascular disease, respiratory disease (sections 
5.9.1, 2 & 5) and suicide (section 3.3.2) are all above the England 
average. Of particular concern locally is respiratory disease where the 
rate is increasing faster than the England average. These conditions 
are more prevalent in deprived communities where the underlying risk 
factors of tobacco dependence, obesity (section 5.2.2), high blood 
pressure, diabetes (section 5.9.4) and high cholesterol occur more 
often and tend to cluster. 
 
What we are doing 
The 2010 Marmot Review identified six areas for action in order to 
address health inequalities: 
1. Give every child the best start in life 
2. Enable all children, young people and adults to maximise their 

capabilities and have control over their lives 
3. Create fair employment and good work for all 
4. Ensure healthy standard of living for all 
5. Create and develop healthy and sustainable places and 

communities 
6. Strengthen the role and impact of ill-health prevention 

P
age 130



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

78 
 

This recognises that reduction of health inequalities requires action 
from all partners across the life course; specific actions to address 
health inequalities in maternity and children’s services are addressed 
elsewhere in this plan (section 3.3.1). The NHS Long Term Plan (NHS 
LTP) and associated NHS LTP Implementation Framework (NHS LTP 
IF) emphasise a commitment to progressively increase the NHS focus 
on prevention and ensure that reducing health inequalities is central to 
any local system plans. The NHS LTP highlights that such plans 
should be developed between NHS and Local Authorities partners and 
include consideration of the need to integrate relevant services. 
 
Health bodies have a duty (Health and Social Care Act 2012) to reduce 
health inequalities; all public sector bodies also need to give 
consideration to achieving equality (The Equality Act 2010) for the 
most vulnerable in society, including but not exclusively those 
disadvantaged due to age, sexuality and gender, deprivation, ethnicity, 
mental health status, physical or learning disability (section 3.3.2), 
caring responsibility, or housing status. This applies to all endeavours 
to improve life expectancy and healthy life expectancy across society, 
so reducing the disparity in outcomes is a vital part of them. Those 
enduring health inequalities may do so for more than one reason 
(Figure 2). One of the requirements of the NHS LTP IF will be to 
demonstrate how additional funding will address the health inequalities 
experienced by these groups. Actions to address health inequalities 
should be at both the individual level, such as improvements to 
knowledge around services and self-management abilities, and at the 
community or population level, such as those to address the social 
determinants of health; they should work across the life-course to 
address the most significant health inequalities in Rotherham but care 
needs to be taken to ensure that any actions do not unintentionally 
widen health inequalities. 
 
Figure 2: Overlapping dimensions of health inequalities (PHE, 2019) 
For the purposes of reducing health inequalities and improving 
population health, a framework centred on four pillars has been 
identified (King’s Fund 2018): 
 
 

 Wider determinants of health 

 Behaviours and lifestyles 

 Places and communities 

 Integrated health and care systems 
 
 Wider determinants of health 
The wider determinants of health are being addressed in Rotherham 
through actions for education and employment, housing, use of green 
spaces and to reduce air pollution. 
 
The employment and skills plan is an essential part of improving the 
opportunities for good, well paid, sustainable employment in 
Rotherham. In line with the Strategic Economic Plan, individuals with 
health issues are being supported to gain or remain in employment by 
primary care and workplace health. The Working Win health-led 
employment trial has now supported 4,000 people living with a physical 
or mental health condition to stay in or get into employment across the 
Sheffield City Region; for Rotherham the target number is 1,375. The 
South Yorkshire wide Bewell@work scheme was also launched in 
March 2019 to improve physical and mental health in the workplace. 
Having access to benefits and welfare advice within healthcare 
settings would further support this work. 
 
Improving health through housing is one of the four key themes of the 
new Housing Strategy. The Council has 21,000 council homes, of 
which 99.7% reach decent homes standards. As part of the Sheffield 

P
age 131

https://moderngov.rotherham.gov.uk/mgConvert2PDF.aspx?ID=118549
https://www.rotherham.gov.uk/downloads/file/4016/housing_strategy_2019-2022


 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

79 
 

City Region, Rotherham is involved in work to tackle excess winter 
deaths. This will be focused on affordable warmth and improvements 
to the thermal efficiency of the housing stock, which will also help 
combat climate change. In addition a Tenancy Health Check Form has 
been developed to support identification of health issues in council 
housing tenants. Asking about housing in healthcare appointments and 
signposting on to support when issues are identified would further 
strengthen this work. 
 
The council is developing plans for investment and development of the 
major parks and is in process of finalizing a new library strategy which 
will have an important role in the wellbeing of communities, in 
particular supporting mental wellbeing. The Cultural strategy for 
Rotherham has also been launched to encourage people to get active, 
more creative and get outdoors more often, making best use of natural 
resources to promote health in the wider sense. 
 
 Behaviours and lifestyles 
The local NHS and council have key roles in promoting healthy 
lifestyles and behaviours as a result of the contact the public has with 
their services. The Get Healthy Rotherham integrated lifestyle service 
helps the people of Rotherham to stop smoking, reduce their alcohol 
consumption, get more active, lose weight, and improve their overall 
health, in addition to carrying out an NHS Health Checks. Increased 
referral and uptake of these services would help meet health 
inequalities objectives particularly as all these services are targeted to 
individuals, groups and communities where health outcomes are 
worse. Other services commissioned by public health that address 
behaviours are the sexual health and alcohol and substance misuse 
services. For problem gambling a comprehensive awareness raising 
programme for front line staff within Rotherham Council and wider 
partner services has also been developed and rolled out to council 
staff. Extension of this awareness programme to healthcare would 
support appropriate signposting to relevant sources of help and 
support including the planned NHS specialist clinics for people with 
serious gambling problems. 
 
In addition to specific interventions and programmes, the local NHS 

and council need to maximise opportunities that arise for prevention 
and lifestyle change arising from their contact with the public and those 
using their services, through Making Every Contact Count (MECC). 
Furthermore, they need to take on the role as champions of reducing 
inequalities by improving their workforce health (section 4.2), ensuring 
healthy estates and premises (section 4.5), further enhancing social 
value in their commissioning and contracting processes, and acting as 
anchor institutions. 
 
In Rotherham in 2017/18 the proportion of 0-19s having a hospital 
episode for an extraction was 1.55% of 0-19s (62,543 hospital 
episodes in one year), which was the highest of all lower tier local 
authorities in England, with Doncaster a close second at 1.54%, 
followed by Sheffield (1.35%) and Barnsley (1.23%), meaning that this 
an issue of particular concern both to Rotherham and to South 
Yorkshire as a sub-region. Oral health is a striking indicator of health 
inequality: tooth decay in young children tends to follow a social 
gradient, meaning that children living in more deprived areas are more 
likely to experience tooth decay. Hospital dental extractions are a 
significant cost burden to the local NHS system. Alongside other oral 
health interventions, South Yorkshire will work together to assess the 
feasibility of community water fluoridation, which would be a very 
effective means of reducing health inequalities. 
 

 Places and communities 
While individual behaviour change is an important part of prevention in 
Rotherham, there needs to be an increased focus on changing the 
environments in which individuals live, work and play, and making the 
healthiest choice the easiest choice. 

P
age 132



 

‘Supporting people and families to live independently in the community, with prevention 

and self-management at the heart of our delivery’ 

 

Final Draft 3.0 Final Draft 3.0  Final Draft 3.0 

80 
 

The Thriving Neighbourhoods Strategy has been developed by the 
Council to enable residents, members and partners to work together 
using an asset based approach at ward level to find solutions in order 
to achieve three key outcomes: safe and welcoming neighbourhoods; 
residents happy, healthy and loving were they live: residents using 
their skills and assets to contribute to the outcomes that matter to 
them. Facilitated by this strategy, healthcare needs to link with existing 
community assets to support healthier lifestyles and reduce health 
inequalities. 
 
The “Five Ways To Wellbeing” is being promoted across Rotherham, a 
social prescribing scheme is in operation for individuals with long term 
and mental health conditions, and a pilot is in place to tackle loneliness 
in the south of the borough which will be extended more widely. 
Discussions are underway to determine the best local means of 
extending social prescribing to a wider population as part of the NHS 
LTP offer (section 5.1.2). This needs to avoid placing undue burden on 
the voluntary sector and to identify the best fit with the developing 
primary care networks. The latter should also link in with existing 
community assets to support healthier lifestyles and reduce health 
inequalities, supported by the Thriving Neighbourhoods Strategy. 
Other opportunities to commission, partner with and champion local 
charities, social enterprises and community interest companies to 
provide services and support to vulnerable and at-risk groups need to 
be explored. 
 
 Integrated health and care systems 
Prevention is a key focus of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy though 
actions need to be further developed and implemented. The refresh of 
the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) alongside development 
of the Rotherham Health Care Record and population health 
management approaches such as segmentation by deprivation 
(section 4.4.1 & 2) will support Health and Wellbeing Board strategies 
to tackle the leading causes of morbidity and mortality, and create 
sustainable, place-based health and care across partners in 
Rotherham and reduce inequalities for all ages. 
 
 

Better use and analysis of existing datasets will enable links to be 
identified between health, wider determinants of health and the 
services outside of health, and help shift the focus from treatment to 
prevention and early intervention. It should also allow for the planning 
of more joined up care across the health and social care system, which 
would minimise duplication from the user end and make it easier for all 
individuals to access and engage with (section 5.5). Services should 
also aim to work with communities differently, taking into account 
cultural variation to achieve equality of outcomes. This will be an 
important part of improving the overall quality of and access to care, 
and reduce unwarranted variation compared to peers and within local 
areas. 
 
Expected outcomes /benefits 
Upscaling prevention by focusing on the environments in which 
individuals live and work will add years to life and life to years and 
allow inclusive economic growth through a healthier workforce. 
In addition to the moral imperative to tackle health inequalities, 
reducing them would bring about substantial socioeconomic benefits; it 
has been estimated that the consequent burden of illness and disability 
accounted for around £60-70 billion per year in 2010 in the UK due to 
productivity losses, lost taxes, higher welfare payments and additional 
NHS healthcare costs (Marmot Review, 2010). 
Tackling health inequalities is a key part of ensuring sustainability 
across health and social care as the poorer health outcomes observed 
in the disadvantaged communities lead to a higher demand on 
services. 
 
Furthermore improving the health of the worst off in society and 
reducing co-morbidities as a result of tackling the underlying causes of 
ill health, will help reduce the overall burden on the health and social 
care system. Across the UK, of all the potential years of life lost due to 
inequality, half come from the most deprived fifth of the population but 
a further quarter come from people in middle socioeconomic deciles. 
Improving inequalities across the whole of society will therefore lead to 
better outcomes for all. 
 
 

P
age 133

https://www.rotherham.gov.uk/downloads/download/383/neighbourhood_strategy


TO: Health and Wellbeing Board

DATE: 11th March 2020 

LEAD OFFICER Anne Marie Lubanski 
Strategic Director of Adult Social Care, Housing 
and Public Health 
Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council

Jo Hinchliffe 
Service Improvement & Governance Manager
Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council 

BRIEFING 

TITLE: Carers Framework for the Future 2020-21

Background

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

Rotherham's Adult Social Care Pathways put the person at the centre of everything we 
do. For us to do our best work, every process, every interaction and every outcome must 
have the person at the core. 

On the 21st October 2019 the service introduced new a way of working to ensure a 
consistent, robust and sustainable Pathway; meaning the people contacting us get 
access to support that builds on their strengths and enables them to achieve the best 
outcomes and live their best lives.

Our work with carers is defined via a “sub-pathway” and this now needs to be introduced 
to staff and our partners so we have clear and transparent information available to all.  

Furthermore, now we have implemented the new pathway we need to review our Adult 
Social Care - Carer Assessment and Eligibility Policy Guidance for Carers. It was 
finalised 4.01.19 with a review date of July 2019. The document describes how 
Rotherham Council’s Adult Social Care will fulfil its legislative responsibilities as detailed 
in the Care Act 2014, to meet the eligible needs of adult carers with support needs.

With the introduction of the sub-pathway and the need to review the Policy Guidance a 
programme of work has been devised to provide a framework for future work. This will 
ensure we deliver a quality customer journey and the right level of support for carers. 

Key Issues 

2.1

2.2

2.3

The Survey of Adult Carers in England 2018-19 is a national survey carried out by the 
NHS Digital for Health and Social Care.  362 out of a sample of 813 carers responded to 
the survey, which is a response rate of 44.5%.

All local authorities with social services responsibilities are required to take part. The 
purpose of the survey is to find out; if services received by carers are helping them in their 
caring role, about the carer’s life outside of caring and carer’s perception of services 
provided to the cared for person.

Key findings:
 142 (40%) of carers told us that their caring roles had caused them financial 

difficulties.  

Page 134 Agenda Item 10



2.4

 81(23%) of the carers told us that they are not in paid employment with 65 (19%) 
of these stating this is due to their caring responsibilities.  

 227 carers (66%) told us that they do some of the things they value or enjoy with 
their time but not enough.   

 130 carers (36%) said that they have as much social contact as they want, 170 
(47.5%) have some but not enough and 58 carers (16%) stated they have little 
social contact and feel socially isolated. 

 207 carers (59%) stated that they have some control over their daily life but not 
enough.  

 44% of carers said they feel they have some encouragement and support but not 
enough in their caring role with a further 18% stating that they receive none.   

 39% of carers spend over 100 hours or more per week looking after the person 
they care for.

Carer Survey Recommendations: 
1. Develop processes to enable a smoother transition from children to adult services.   
2. Develop consistency in our approach i.e. dedicated case worker from point of 

contact throughout.  
3. Strengthen our information and advice offer to ensure it reaches its target audience 

and is fit for purpose. 
4. Introduction of the TOM Model should ensure that advice and support is available 

before the situation becomes critical. 

Key Actions and Relevant Timelines 

4.1

4.2

The following key actions have been identified: 

 Update the carer profile (Inc Young Carers) who are our carers?
 Review of the current carer strategy – complete an impact assessment via focus 

group work.
 Assistive Technology Offer - ensure carers are embedded with the strategic 

plans.
 Assessment process reviewed to ensure the sub-pathway is pitched correctly.
 Carer Journey – mapped to inform policy guidance changes.
 Carers Centre - impact assessment.
 Partnership Boards - review Terms of Reference and map to the carer strategy 

delivery.
 Information Offer - scope it out.
 Carer services - asset mapping of what is out there.
 Activity and events planned for 2020-21.
 Training prospectus refreshed for new financial year.

To build on the scoping work it is preferable to bring together a Carers Project Group 
strategic in the first instance then supported by an operational group. Members would 
gather through March 2020 as per a business case to due to go to the Adult Social Care, 
Housing and Public Health Directorate Leadership Team on the 10th March. After which 
the project group will report into the Adult Social Care Project Assurance Meetings. An 
Implementation Plan will be presented for sign-off at the Project Assurance Meeting on 
the 19th March. Over and above this it is suggested the programme reports into Health 
and Wellbeing Board on a six-monthly basis. 

Page 135



Recommendations 

4.1

4.2

Note the update on the Carers Framework for the Future 2020-21.

Agree to receive six-monthly updates on the programme. 

Page 136



Adult Social Care 

Carers – Framework for the Future 

March 2020

P
age 137



Carers - Framework for the Future 2020-21

ASC - Carer Assessment and Eligibility Policy Guidance for Carers

Finalised: 4.01.19

Date Review due: July 2019

The document describes how Rotherham Council’s Adult Social Care will fulfil its legislative responsibilities as detailed in the Care Act 

2014, to meet the eligible needs of adult carers with support needs.

The document is aligned to the Local Authority’s duties under the Care Act 2014 which came into effect in April 2015, and recognises 

and acknowledges the valuable contribution carers provide.  Rotherham Council must also adhere to the national assessment 

framework and the national minimum eligibility threshold for carers as set out in the associated Regulations.

The document outlines the policy framework by which Rotherham Adult Social Care meets its obligations to carers under the Care Act 

2014, Statutory Regulations and Statutory Guidance.

*For the purposes of this document a ‘carer’ means an adult aged 18and over who provides or intends to provide help to another adult.  An adult who provides 

care under a contract or as voluntary work will not be regarded as a carer. 

Carers Action Plan 2018-20 - Department of Health & Social Care  

June 2018

“Carers need to be recognised and valued. Carers need access to information and support to provide the best care they can. Carers 

need to be helped to balance their caring responsibilities with their own employment and to preserve their personal health and 

wellbeing. “

“...we also need business, local communities, the voluntary sector and individuals to play their part in addressing challenges to make 

sure that caring is everybody’s business.”

P
age 138



Where are we at?

Carers Survey Report July 2019

P
age 139



Things to do:

•Update the carer profile (Inc Young Carers)

•Review of the current strategy - impact assessment / focus 

group work

•AT Offer - carers embedded with in

•Assessment process reviewed and recommendations made

•Carer Journey - mapped

•Carers Centre - impact assessment

•Partnership Boards - review TOR

•Information Offer - scope it out

•Carer services - asset mapping of what is out there

•Activity and events planned 

•Training prospectus

Things to aim for: 

•We will commit to improving how carers are involved in the production 

and design of services.

•We will make sure carers feel informed about and involved in the 

conversations surrounding the person they care for. 

•We will look at how to widen personal budgets.

•We will work with employers to raise awareness of flexible working 

policies.

•We will support carers taking a break from caring.

•We will make it easy for carers to get the right information at the right 

time.

•We will ensure carer assessments incorporate solutions that include 

friends, family and the wider community. 

Things to consider: Carers Survey Analysis 

Briefing Note: July 2019

Recommendations: 

•Develop processes to enable a smoother transition from children’s to adult’s services.   

•Develop consistency in our approach i.e. dedicated case worker from point of contact throughout.  

•Strengthen our information and advice offer to ensure it reaches its target audience and is fit for purpose. 

•Introduction of the TOM Model should ensure that advice and support is available before the situation becomes critical. 

What do we need to do?

P
age 140



Proposed High Level Implementation Plan 2020-21

P
age 141



Getting things going…

Proposed Timeline of Activity 2020-21

Start-up activity Feb-Mar 2020: 

• Scoping work (Reported into SMT 5th March)

• Business case to DLT (10th March)

• Health and Wellbeing Board update 11th March 2020

• Project group set-up (Reports into Project Assurance Meeting from 19th March)

• Programme - Implementation Plan (Signed off at Project Assurance Meeting on the 19th March)

P
age 142



Rotherham ICP Place Board 
 

A full version can be found at: 
 https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-

content/uploads/2020/01/2020-21-NHS-
Operational-Planning-Contracting-

Guidance.pdf 

NHS Operational Planning & Contracting Guidance  
 

P
age 143

A
genda Item

 11

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/01/2020-21-NHS-Operational-Planning-Contracting-Guidance.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/01/2020-21-NHS-Operational-Planning-Contracting-Guidance.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/01/2020-21-NHS-Operational-Planning-Contracting-Guidance.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/01/2020-21-NHS-Operational-Planning-Contracting-Guidance.pdf


 
The People Plan ‘package’, including… 
 
• 50,000 WTE nurses 
• Maintenance grants / university expansion 
• International recruitment  
• Retention & return to practice 
• 6,000 WTE GPs 
• 4000 training places 
• International graduates 
•  26,000 other primary care professionals 
• Pensions tax reform 

P
age 144



ICSs and System  
Planning 

 
Two core roles 
• system transformation and  
• system performance 
through 
• population health management, service 

redesign and digitisation  
• capital and estates plans at a system level.  

 

P
age 145



Mental Health  
 • Additional funding in 2020/21 for community 
mental health provision for adults and older 
adults.  

• By March 2021, all MH should work with their 
PCNs to organise and deliver services together. 

Learning Disabilities & Autism 
• Support for people with learning disabilities 

and/or autism in the community,  
    rather than in hospital.  

 

P
age 146



Elective Care 
• On 31 January 2021 waiting lists should be 

lower than that on 31 January 2020  (ICS 
Level).  

• In 2020/21, additional choice at 26 weeks. 
 
Rotherham historically  
performs strongly in  
this area 

P
age 147



 
 
Urgent & Emergency  
Care 
 
 
 
Material improvement in A&E performance 
against a 2019/20 benchmark  
• All to reduce general and acute bed occupancy 

to a maximum of 92%.  
  

P
age 148



Outpatient Transformation  
 Planned reduction by a third in unnecessary 
outpatient activity 
• providers  income maintained  through 

payments  for advice and guidance and uptake 
of non-face to face consultations.  

 

In 2020/21, video  
consultations in major  
outpatient specialties  

P
age 149



Cancer  
 
• Additional funding in 2020/21 to support the 

roll out of rapid diagnostic centres and the 
targeted lung health checks programme.  

 
• 28 day faster diagnosis standard will be 

challenging. 

P
age 150



Prevention 
 The guidance places significant emphasis on measures to improve 
population health.  
• Alcohol care teams and smoking cessation support will be 

expanded in selected sites.  
• Low-calorie diets will be piloted in ten systems to support people 

with type 2 diabetes to achieve remission.  
• Department of Health and Social Care is considering making flu 

vaccination mandatory for NHS staff.  
 

Climate Change 
• NHS to develop a national de-carbonisation and climate change 

plan. 
• Ending business travel reimbursement for domestic flights within 

England, Wales and Scotland. 
• Purchasing 100% renewable electricity by April 2021.  
• Replacing lighting with LED alternatives during routine maintenance 

P
age 151



Primary and Community Services 
Overall spending by CCGs on primary medical care, community 
services and continuing healthcare, should continue to increase. 
Primary Care Networks (PCNs) development will need to 
accelerate through 2020/21. 
CCGs  will support to 
• Redesign workforce and recruit to new roles. 
• Improve patient access and waiting times. 
• Set up online consultation systems. 
• Provide information about A&E attendances by the PCNs 

patient population . 
In addition  PCNs will need to  
• Work with community providers (including pharmacies). 
• Provide crisis response services, guaranteed two-hour home 

response appointments . 
 

P
age 152



Primary Care Networks 

• Major enhancements to the additional roles 
reimbursement scheme.  
– 6,000 extra staff will be funded under the Scheme.  
– More roles will be added to the Scheme from April 2020 in 

addition to those previously agreed: pharmacy technicians, 
care co-ordinators, health coaches, dieticians, podiatrists 
and occupational therapists. Mental health professionals 
will be added from April 2021.  

– Reimbursement for the 26,000 roles increases from 70% to 
100%.  

– PCNs are encouraged to take immediate action to recruit. 

P
age 153



Increasing the Number of GPs 
• A raft of measures to aid GP training, recruitment and retention to 

help meet the target of 6,000 extra doctors in primary care. GP 
trainee numbers will increase from 3,500 to 4,000 a year from 2021.  

• A two-year Fellowship in General Practice will now be offered as a 
guaranteed right to all GP trainees on completion of their training. 

•  A new national Mentors Scheme will offer highly experienced GPs the 
opportunity to mentor GPs, in return for a minimum time 
commitment.  

• The New to Partnership Payment guarantees first-time partners a 
£20,000 one off payment, plus £3,000 funding for business training. 

•  The Induction and Refresher Scheme will be expanded and enhanced 
to provide more support to GPs returning to general practice.  

• A new Locum Support Scheme will provide greater support to locum 
GPs, in return for a minimum time contribution.  
 

P
age 154



Primary Care 
A renewed focus on improving access including a new GP 
Access Improvement Programme, which will initially seek 
to cut the longest waits for routine appointments. More 
people working in general practice will help achieve 50 
million more appointments in general practice. An 
improved appointments dataset will be introduced in 
2020, alongside a new, as close to real-time as possible, 
measure of patient experience. At least £30m of the 
£150m PCN Investment and Impact Fund in 2021/22 will 
support improved access for patients, rising to at least 
£100m of the £300m Fund in 2023/24.  
  

 
 

P
age 155



Primary Care  
• Vaccination and immunisation payments will be overhauled to support 

improved vaccination coverage.  

• Further improvements to QOF including significant reforms to the 
asthma, COPD and heart failure QOF domains.   

• A universal post-natal check for new mothers introduced, backed by 
£12m of additional funding.  

• The Structured Medication Review and Medicines Optimisation, 
Enhanced Health in Care Homes and Supporting Early Cancer Diagnosis 
PCN service specifications will be introduced in 2020/21. The remaining 
four - CVD diagnosis and prevention, tackling inequalities, personalised 
care and anticipatory care - will be introduced in 2021/22. From April 2020 
every PCN will offer a social prescribing service.  

• Incentives under the new Investment and Impact Fund introduced in 
2020/21 to increase uptake of LD health checks, seasonal flu jabs, social 
prescribing referrals, and improve specific aspects of prescribing.  

P
age 156



TO: Health and Wellbeing Board

DATE: 11th March 2020 

LEAD OFFICER Teresa Roche, Director of Public Health 
Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council 

Becky Woolley, Policy Officer 
Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council 
 

BRIEFING 

TITLE: Refresh of the Terms of Reference 

Background

1.1 

1.2

The Terms of Reference for the Health and Wellbeing Board was refreshed in March 
2019. It was agreed when this refresh came to the board that the Terms of Reference 
would be reviewed on an annual basis. 

A survey of Health and Wellbeing Board members was also undertaken in January-
February 2020 to explore how the board has worked in the past year. The findings from 
this survey have informed the refresh of the Terms of Reference.

Key Issues 

2.1 The following key changes have been made to the Terms of Reference: 

 The ‘role of the board’ section has been expanded to improve clarity around the 
focus of the board. 

 Reference to the Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment has been included under the 
section around the responsibilities of the board.

 Further detail has been included regarding the relationship of the board with Health 
Select Commission. 

 Relevant updates have been made in line with the refreshed Place Plan. For 
example, details are included around the new Prevention Enabling Group and the 
fact that this group will report directly into the Health and Wellbeing Board. 

Key Actions and Relevant Timelines 

3.1 Subject to approval by the board, the Terms of Reference will continue to be reviewed 
by the board on an annual basis, meaning the next scheduled refresh would be March 
2021. 

Recommendations 

4.1

4.2

Discuss and agree the refreshed Terms of Reference. 

Agree to review and refresh the Terms of Reference in March 2021. 

Page 157 Agenda Item 13



Terms of Reference: 
Rotherham Health and Wellbeing Board 

Key Contacts  
Chair Councillor Roche – Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and 

Health, Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council 
Vice Chair Dr Richard Cullen – Chair of Rotherham Clinical 

Commissioning Group
Health and Wellbeing 
Board Support 
Officer

Becky Woolley – Policy Officer, Rotherham Metropolitan 
Borough Council 
rebecca.woolley@rotherham.gov.uk 

Role of the Health and Wellbeing Board 
The Health and Wellbeing Board brings together local leaders and decision-makers, to 
work to improve the health and wellbeing of Rotherham people, reduce health inequalities 
and promote an integrated approach. The Health and Wellbeing Board is a statutory sub-
committee of the Council but will operate as a multi-agency board of equal partners.

The role of the board includes: 
 Overseeing and driving the implementation of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy, 

2018-2025 with a focus on leading our system approach to reducing health 
inequalities in Rotherham. 

 Identifying priorities and needs within our system, and mobilising action to respond 
to these priorities. 

 Setting the strategic direction for the Integrated Care Partnership Place Board and 
Place Plan. 

 Influencing other bodies and stakeholders, including those with a role in 
addressing the wider determinants of health to embed health equity in all policies.

Rotherham’s Health and Wellbeing Board is also committed to delivering the four aims 
outlined within the Health and Wellbeing Strategy, which are: 

1. All children get the best start in life and go on to achieve their potential 
2. All Rotherham people enjoy the best possible mental health and wellbeing and 

have a good quality of life 
3. All Rotherham people live well for longer
4. All Rotherham people live in safe and resilient communities.

Responsibilities 
The Health and Wellbeing Board has a number of responsibilities and duties. This 
includes: 

 Assessing the needs of the population and producing the local joint strategic needs 
assessment (JSNA)

 Using the data and knowledge in the JSNA to publish a local health and wellbeing 
strategy, setting priorities for joint action 

 Undertake a Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) every three years. 

Page 158

mailto:rebecca.woolley@rotherham.gov.uk


 Using the strategy and its priorities to influence and inform commissioning 
decisions for the health and wellbeing of Rotherham people

 Enabling, advising and supporting organisations that arrange for the provision of 
health or social care services to work in an integrated way

 Holding relevant partners to account for the quality and effectiveness of their 
commissioning plans

 Ensuring that public health functions are discharged in a way that helps partner 
agencies fully contribute to reducing health inequalities. 

Partners of the Health and Wellbeing Board have also committed to embedding the 
following principles in everything they do, both individually as organisations and in 
partnership: 

 Reduce health inequalities by ensuring that the health of our most vulnerable 
communities, including those living in poverty and deprivation and those with 
mental health problems, learning or physical disabilities, is improving the fastest

 Prevent physical and mental ill-health as a primary aim, but where there is already 
an issue, services intervene early to maximise impact 

 Promote resilience and independence for all individuals and communities
 Integrate commissioning of services to maximise resources and outcomes 
 Ensure pathways are robust, particularly at transition points, so that no one is left 

behind
 Provide accessible services to the right people, in the right place, at the right time.

The Health and Wellbeing Board has a responsibility to equalities and diversity and will 
value, respect and promote the rights, responsibilities and dignity of individuals within all 
our professional activities and relationships.

Expectations of a Health and Wellbeing Board member 
Delivery of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy is the responsibility of all board members. 
Considering this responsibility, it is the expectation that board members will:

a) Act in the interests of the Rotherham population, leaving aside organisational, 
personal, or sectoral interests.

b) Effectively communicate and action outcomes and key decisions of the board 
within their own organisations.

c) Contribute to the development of the JSNA.  
d) Ensure that commissioning is in line with the requirements of the Health and 

Wellbeing Strategy.
e) Deliver improvements in performance against measures within the public health, 

NHS and adult social care outcomes frameworks.
f) Declare any conflict of interest, particularly in the event of a vote being required 

and in relation to the providing of services. 
g) Act in a respectful, inclusive and open manner with all colleagues to encourage 

debate and challenge. 
h) Act as ambassadors for the work of the board. 
i) Participate where appropriate in communications/marketing and stakeholder 

engagement activity to support the objectives of the board, including working with 
the media.

j) Read and digest any documents and information provided prior to meetings to 
ensure the board is not a forum for receipt of information.  

Page 159



It is also expected that members will attend board meetings and actively engage in 
discussions. If the member is not able to attend, an appropriate deputy should be agreed 
with the Chair to attend in their place. 

All members of the board, as a statutory sub-committee of the council, must observe the 
Council’s code of conduct for members and co-opted members. 

Membership 
The board will be chaired by the council’s cabinet member for adult social care and health, 
with the vice-chair from a non-council health partner (e.g. Rotherham Clinical 
Commissioning Group). Members of the board should be of sufficient seniority to be able 
to make significant commitments on behalf of their relevant organisations. All members of 
the board will have equal voting status.  

The board is committed to having a broad membership, engaging as many partners as 
possible. In order to ensure that this continues to be the case, membership will be 
reviewed on a regular basis. 

The membership of the board is as follows: 
 Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Health (Chair)
 Chair of NHS Rotherham Clinical Commissioning Group (Vice Chair) 
 Cabinet Member with responsibility for Children’s Services
 Deputy Leader, RMBC*
 Director of Public Health
 Chief Executive, RMBC
 Strategic Director of Adult Care, Housing and Public Health   
 Strategic Director of Children and Young People’s Services
 Chief Officer, NHS Rotherham Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG)  
 GP Executive Member of NHS Rotherham CCG  
 Senior representative, NHS England South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw  
 Healthwatch representative
 Rotherham District Commander, South Yorkshire Police
 Chief Executive, Voluntary Action Rotherham
 Chief Executive, Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust 
 Chief Executive, Rotherham Doncaster and South Humber NHS Foundation Trust 

Standing invites will also be circulated to:
 Chair, Rotherham Local Safeguarding Children Board
 Chair, Rotherham Safeguarding Adults Board
 Strategic Director Regeneration and Environment, RMBC 
 Representative, South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Service 
 Rotherham ICP Place Board Manager, CCG

Governance 
The Health Select Commission is the health scrutiny function and the Health and 
Wellbeing Board provides updates on progress to Health Select where required. The 
minutes of the Health and Wellbeing Board are also received at every meeting of the 
Health Select Commission to ensure that Health Select can scrutinise items from the 
Health and Wellbeing Board if they so wish. 

Page 160



Critically, the Health and Wellbeing Board will also be an integral part of Rotherham 
Together Partnership’s structures. The Chair will be a member of the Rotherham Together 
Partnership and will be required to regularly report on progress. 

The board is also signed up to the Rotherham Safeguarding Partnership Protocol which is 
an agreement between several partnership boards to ensure that strategic priorities in 
relation to safeguarding are translated effectively into action plans. The Chair and the 
Health and Wellbeing Board support officer will be responsible for ensuring that the 
requirements of this protocol are met.   

The Health and Wellbeing Board will also be responsible for governing the Integrated 
Care Partnership Place Board, as the Place Plan is the delivery mechanism of the aspects 
of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy relating to integrating health and social care. Regular 
updates on the delivery of the Place Plan will be received by the Health and Wellbeing 
Board to ensure appropriate oversight. The Chair and the Health and Wellbeing Board 
support officer will also attend Place Board meetings as observers. 

Further to this, the Prevention Enabling Group established by the Place Plan will report 
directly into the Health and Wellbeing Board. 

A diagram is included within appendix one which outlines the governance arrangements. 

Quorum 
A quorum of the board will be at least one third of members (i.e. six), including at least one 
representative from RMBC and the CCG.

Meeting arrangements 
The board will meet every two months, with additional special meetings arranged as 
required to discuss specific or urgent issues. The schedule of meetings will be reviewed 
and agreed annually by the board.  The meeting venue will rotate between Rotherham 
Town Hall (RMBC), Oak House (the CCG) and The Spectrum (Voluntary Action 
Rotherham). Alternative meeting venues may be considered according to the discretion of 
the Chair and the requirements of the meeting. 

Board meetings will be conducted in public, though the board will retain the ability to 
exclude representatives of the press and other members of the public from a defined 
section of the meeting having regard to the confidential nature of the business to be 
transacted (in accordance with the Public Bodies Act 1960).

Papers for the board will be distributed at least one week in advance of the meeting. 
Additional items may be tabled at the meeting in exceptional circumstances at the 
discretion of the chair.  Minutes of the board will be circulated in advance of the next 
meeting and approved at the meeting.

All agenda items brought to the board need to clearly demonstrate their contribution to 
delivering the board’s priorities.

Page 161



Engaging with the public and providers 
The public and providers may wish to attend meetings to observe or submit questions to 
the Health and Wellbeing Board.  Any questions should be submitted to the Health and 
Wellbeing Board support officer (contact details included in the key contacts section 
above) one working day before the date of the meeting. Ordinarily, this will mean that any 
questions will need to be submitted by 9am on the Tuesday preceding a Health and 
Wellbeing Board meeting on the following Wednesday. 

In responding to queries, the board may wish to provide a written response and will 
commit to providing this response within a month of the board meeting. 

The board is inclusive of commissioners and providers and it is intended that all members 
will take part in and support the development of strategic priorities and direction. However, 
members who have a provider role should declare any conflict of interest whenever 
appropriate.

Review date 
Reviewed in March 2020 – subject to sign off at Health and Wellbeing Board. 
Next review due March 2021. 

Page 162



APPENDIX ONE: Rotherham Health and Wellbeing Board governance 
arrangements 

Page 163



 

Page 1 of 5 
 

 

 
 

Rotherham Integrated Care Partnership  
 

 
 

Minutes 

Title of Meeting: PUBLIC Rotherham ICP Place Board 

Time of Meeting: 9:00am – 10:00am 

Date of Meeting: Wednesday 4 December 2019 

Venue: Elm Room (G.04), Oak House 

Chair: Chris Edwards 

Contact for Meeting: Lydia George 01709 302116 or Lydia.george@nhs.net   

 

Apologies:  

Conflicts of Interest: 

General declarations were acknowledged for Members as 
providers/commissioners of services.  However, no specific direct 
conflicts/declarations were made relating to any items on today’s 
agenda.  

 
 
Members Present:  
Sharon Kemp, (SK) Chief Executive, RMBC 
Chris Edwards (CE), Chairing, Chief Officer, Rotherham CCG  
Kathryn Singh (KS), Chief Executive, RDaSH  
Janet Wheatley (JW), Chief Executive, Voluntary Action Rotherham 
Dr Gok Muthoo (GM), Medical Director, Connect Healthcare Rotherham CIC  
Chris Preston (CP), (Deputising for L Barnett) Acting Director of Strategy & Transformation, TRFT 
 
Participating Observers 
Dr Richard Cullen (RC), Rotherham CCG Chair 
Cllr David Roche (DR), Joint Chair, Heath & Wellbeing Board, RMBC 
 
In Attendance:  
Ian Atkinson (IA), Chair, Rotherham ICP Delivery Team 
Lydia George (LG), Strategy & Development Lead, RCCG  
Gordon Laidlaw (GL), Head of Communications, Rotherham CCG 
Andrew Clayton (ACl), Head of Digital, Rotherham CCG 
Jenny Lingrell (JL), Joint Assistant Director of Commissioning, RMBC 
Wendy Commons (WC), ICP Support Officer, Rotherham CCG 
 
There were NO members of the public present. 
 

Item 
Number 

Discussion Items 

1 Public & Patient Questions 

There were no questions raised.   

 

 

 

Connect 
Healthcare 
Rotherham Ltd 
(awaiting logo) 

 

 Page 164 Agenda Item 15

mailto:Lydia.george@nhs.net


 

Page 2 of 5 
 

2 Transformation Group Updates 

Children & Young People’s Transformation Group 
Subject –  Child & Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) 
Presented by Jenny Lingrell 
 
Jenny Lingrell highlighted that there had been two recent inspections one by the CQC and the other by 
the System Improvement Team.  Positive feedback had been received from both.  In relation to 
CAMHS, the CQC had; been impressed with the highly skilled compassionate staff focus on patient 
need; acknowledged the strong partnership working and; heard from patients and carers that staff are 
responsive and flexible.    

As part of the 4 week wait trailblazer pilot, the System Improvement Team reported that the intellectual 
disability pathway ensures equity of access, the safety nets group supports the reduction in stigma and 
engages young people creatively, and acknowledged both the multi-disciplinary working of the eating 
disorders pathway and the peer support workers employed in the service.  Currently 89% of cases 
referred are receiving 2 contacts from the service within timescale and additional children’s wellbeing 
practitioners are in training posts.  Service delivery is expected to become more consistent in the new 
year.  

JL also highlighted that the mental health schools team trailblazer pilot is progressing well with staff 
now recruited and engagement with the schools involved good. 

JL reported high number waiting for the diagnosis of ASD/ADHD as the service is unable to keep pace 
with level of demand. She went on to outline a number of actions being taken to address the trajectory 
including an event planned for January 2020 to examine the pathways in detail and help give more 
clarity. In the meantime, a clear action plan has been put in place to reduce the waiting times.  These 
are structured into 3 areas; ensuring the current referral pathway works efficiently; adding capacity to 
the current pathway and taking a whole system approach. 

Kathryn Singh acknowledged the issues and the need to better understand the increase in referrals.  
The critical factor is workforce and recruitment however despite numerous attempts RDaSH has not 
been able to adequately recruit staff.  Alternative approaches such as the introduction of Healios are 
being employed.  Written feedback and recommendations from the unannounced visit to Rotherham 
CAMHS is awaited. 

Following discussion it was noted that a number of approaches are being undertaken.  CAMHS has 
been made an investment priority which has resulted in real improvement.  Work has taken place 
across the system to improve the diagnostic pathway with schools and practices, however further work 
is still required to address the trajectory. 

Place Board thanked JL and the Children & Young People’s Transformation Group for the work being 
undertaken.  Chief Executive Officers agreed to take escalation in relation to ASD/ADHD by looking in 
more detail at the issues and actions.  A review of the position will take place again in February/March 
to see if there has been improvement and determine whether any future change is required. 

Action: CEOs/JL/LG 
 
Urgent & Community Care Transformation Group 
Subject – Integrated Single Point of Contact 
Presented by Chris Preston 

Chris Preston gave an update on progress highlighting that the focus has moved from structural 
change to integrated ways of working with integrated points of contact across the wider system re-
affirmed as a key theme.  The intention is to use Intermediate Care and Re-ablement health and social 
care multi-disciplinary community hub as a test bed.  Work is due to be undertaken on defining how the 
hub will work in practice and scoping the co-location of a re-ablement team.  The team will be 
supported by the use of the Directory of Services and the Rotherham Health Record. 

Concerns were noted around the capacity to deliver particularly with winter approaching, the pace and 
scale of the change and upskilling staff.  However, mitigations have been put in place including backfill 
arrangements to release specialist resource; phased implementation and co-location of staff facilitating 
the transfer of knowledge and increased levels of risk tolerance by acute decision makers in the 
community setting. 

Place Board thanked Chris Preston and the group for the update on progress. 

Page 165



 

Page 3 of 5 
 

Mental Health & Learning Disability Transformation Group 
Subject – Community Crisis and Home 
Presented by Ian Atkinson 

Ian Atkinson gave an update on progress advising that self harm training has now been completed and 
capacity has been increased which in turn has released social work capacity.  A successful bid from the 
Community Crisis Transformation Fund and inclusion on the Urgent and Crisis Mental Health Care 
national pilot have seen further allocations. 
 
IA explained that workforce recruitment and retention is proving challenging for both RDaSH and 
RMBC.  Last year police street triage over the winter period proved to be a good way of preventing 
crisis however this year the required workforce is not available.  The levels of suicide and drug related 
deaths seen in Rotherham recently has also had an impact and affect our staff in community crisis 
teams.  A number of ways of supporting resilience are currently being examined.  Further work is also 
required to enhance the crisis helpline but this is also recruitment dependent. 

The bed base at both Swallownest and Woodlands is experiencing higher delayed transfers of care 
(DToCs) than seen before but the move to care at home is in line with our strategy.  Funding has also 
been agreed to address delayed transfers of care (DToCs) but a wider approach is required. 

Work to fill the vacancies required to deliver the action plan continues including a bid submitted for 
additional funding to support workforce issues.    

Sharon Kemp thanked IA for the update.  Recruitment is an issue across Place and needs to be 
addressed collectively as part of the OD and workforce discussions going forward. 

Noting the concerns around DToCs, it was agreed that further discussion is required at CEO level to 
determine next steps.  In the meantime, to aid discussion Place Board asked the Delivery Team to 
undertake a piece of work using recent case study examples to determine the complexity involved in 
changing the current system. 

Action: IA/LG/CEOs 

Place Board recognised the amount of work being undertaken by the Group and requested an update 
on the action undertaken at the next meeting.  

Action: IA 

Place Board members thanked Ian Atkinson for the update and assurance provided. 

3 Enabling Group Update – Digital 

Andrew Clayton attended to give an update on the work being undertaken by the Digital Enabling 
Group.  However, due to the limited time at this meeting and the importance of the digital agenda, it 
was agreed re-schedule the update for the February meeting to allow more detailed discussion to take 
place. In the meantime, ACl will escalate the issues outlined in the slides via e-mail to relevant Partner 
Chief Executive Officers as appropriate. These challenges and issues are around capacity and delays 
in receiving datasets for mental health and local authority for Rotherham Health Record.  

Action: ACl/SK/CP 

It was agreed to extend the public session in February to 2 hrs, ie 9am to 11am. 
Action: LG/WAC 

Discussion turned to the use of the Rotherham Health App in conveying winter messages.  Gordon 
Laidlaw will share messages about the App and its use with Partners.  

Action: GL 

4 Rotherham ICP Place Plan – Progress Update 

Lydia George reported that progress is being made towards the refreshed plan.  The final draft will be 
sent to all Partners for reviewing internally within their organisations before the ICP Place Board is 
asked to sign it off in February 2020.  It was noted that a few areas of narrative are still outstanding and 
LG will escalate any issues or barriers to completion via partner CEOs.   

Discussion followed about engaging Health Select Committee (HSC).  Sharon Kemp will consider how 
this can best be undertaken during the current period of ‘purdah’.  It was noted that the Health & 
Wellbeing Board will be the governance route for signing off the Plan on behalf of the Council.  

Action: SK 

Page 166



 

Page 4 of 5 
 

5 Rotherham ICP Performance Report – Quarter 2 

Overall the position reported this quarter is positive with the combined number of milestones either on 
track or completed.  Specific areas of concern and the associated challenges had been discussed 
earlier in the meeting as part of the transformation group updates.  These related to ASD/ADHD 
diagnoses and early help assessments for the 0-19 service.   

There had been little fluctuation in KPI performance for any of the RAG ratings.  The position remains 
similar to Quarter 1 with the exception of one new ‘red’ rating relating to new permanent admissions to 
residential nursing care for adults. Further work is required to understand the reasons for this. 

Members noted the progress with delivery of the ICP Place Plan as at the end of October 2019. 

6 Winter Plan and Preparedness Update 

As agreed, this item will be added throughout the winter period to enable Partners to flag any related 
issues by exception.  There was nothing to highlight this month other than the delayed transfers of care 
(DTOC) discussed earlier in the meeting under the Mental Health & Learning Disability Transformation 
Group update. 

7 Draft Minutes from Public ICP Place Board –  6 November 2019 

The minutes from the previous meeting were APPROVED as a true and accurate record.  There were 
no matters arising.  

8 Communication to Partners 

Gordon Laidlaw will work with Partners on conveying winter messages and Health App information.   

In future, Members agreed to create short videos highlighting key points from Place meetings which will 
be publicly ‘tweeted’.  

Action: GL/All 

9 Risk/Items for Escalation 

Partner CEOs will discuss the issues highlighted around delays in the diagnosis of ASD/ADHD for 
CAMHS and Delayed Transfers of Care (DToCs) with mental health beds.  Updates will be received at 
the February meeting. 

Action: Partner CEOs/LG 

10 Future Agenda Items 

  OD & Workforce Update – Workforce Maturity Index (tbd)  

 Rotherham ICP Communications & Engagement Strategy (Feb) 

 Digital & Finance Update (Feb) 

 Rotherham ICP Place Plan (Feb) 

 Quarter 3 Performance Framework (Mar) 

 Rotherham Provider Alliance Update (Feb) 

Standard Agenda Items 

 Delivery Dashboard/Performance Framework (quarterly) 

 Transformation Groups Spotlight Updates (monthly) 

 Enabling Group Updates (monthly) 

 Rotherham Provider Alliance Update (monthly) 

 Impact of Brexit Updates (Feb) 

 Primary Care Network Updates (as required)  

11 Date of Next Meeting  

Wednesday 5 February 2020 at 9am at Oak House, Bramley. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 167



 

Page 5 of 5 
 

Membership 
NHS Rotherham CCG (RCCG) - Chief Officer - Chris Edwards (Joint Chair) 
Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council (RMBC) - Chief Executive – Sharon Kemp (Joint Chair) 
The Rotherham Foundation Trust (TRFT) - Chief Executive – Louise Barnett 
Voluntary Action Rotherham (VAR) - Chief Executive – Janet Wheatley 
Rotherham Doncaster and South Humber NHS Trust (RDaSH) - Chief Executive – Kathryn Singh 
Connect Healthcare Rotherham Ltd (Rotherham GP Federation) – Dr Gok Muthoo  
 
Participating Observers: 
Joint Chair, Health and Wellbeing Board, RMBC - Cllr David Roche 
Joint Chair, Health and Wellbeing Board, RCCG - Dr Richard Cullen 
 
In Attendance: 
Deputy Chief Officer, RCCG – Ian Atkinson (as Delivery Team Place Joint Chair)  
Director of Legal Services, RMBC 
Head of Communications, RCCG – Gordon Laidlaw 
Strategy & Development Lead, RCCG – Lydia George 

Page 168



 

  

 

2 3 2 

11 6 11 

24 32 27 

0 
3 6 8 
3 1 4 2 2 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Overall Milestones Performance 
Grey

Brown

Blue

Green

Amber

Red

 

Rotherham Integrated Care Partnership  
 

 
Rotherham ICP Place Board – 4 March 2020 

 

Quarter 3 Performance Report for ICP Place Plan 
 

Lead Executive 
Ian Atkinson 

Deputy Chief Officer, NHS Rotherham CCG 

Lead Officer 

Lydia George 

Strategy and Delivery Lead, NHS Rotherham CCG/Rotherham Integrated 
Care Partnership 

 

Purpose 

For members to note progress with the delivery of the ICP Place Plan as at the end of Quarter 3 
2019/20.   

Background 

A performance report for the ICP Place Plan has been developed so that ICP Place Board 
members can assess progress against the key priorities and on implementation of the plan.  

The performance report includes a small set of milestones and key performance indicators for 

each of the priorities beneath the three transformational areas. 

 

The performance report will be reported 4 times a year and received at ICP Place Board in 

September, December, March and June. 

 

The performance report will also be received at the Health and Wellbeing Board. 

 

The performance report has been refreshed for 2019/20,however it should be noted that a 

further refresh will be necessary once the new ICP Place Plan has been produced and agreed 

(Rotherham response to the NHS Long Term Plan) 

Analysis of key issues and of risks 

 
The graph below shows overall performance for the 49 milestones: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 169 Agenda Item 16



3 3 2 

10 10 12 

22 24 20 

5 3 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Overall KPI Performance 

Grey

Green

Amber

Red

 
The graph below shows overall performance for the 39 Key Performance Indicators: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Key to RAG rate: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Further information and analysis can be seen in the attached Performance Report. 
 

Brown Milestone Not due to start 

Red KPI / Milestones Not achieving target/Significant issues 

Amber KPI / Milestones Almost achieving target/Started but not on track 

Green KPI / Milestones Achieving Target/On track 

Blue Milestones Complete 

Grey KPI / Milestones To be confirmed 

Approval history 

ICP Delivery Team – 26/02/2020 

ICP Place Board –  04/03/2020 

Recommendations 

Members are asked to note the performance for Q3 2019/20, which is very similar to the position 
in Q2.  

 

Page 170



Page 1 of 6  

 

  

 

                                                                                                 

 

 Rotherham Integrated Care Partnership 
 

2019/20 Performance Report: Quarter 3 
(against the 2018-20 Place Plan) 

The performance framework will report against the agreed Milestones and 
Key Performance Indicators on a quarterly basis as follows: 

 

 Delivery Team Place Board 

Q1 22 August 2019 4 September 2019 

Q2 20 November 2019 4 December 2019 

Q3 19 February 2020 4 March 2020 

Q4 20 May 2020 3 June 2020 
 

Key to ratings: 
 

Brown Milestone Not due to start 

Red 
KPI 

Milestones 
Not achieving target (Tolerance = more than 2%) 
Significant issues 

Amber 
KPI 

Milestones 
Almost achieving target (Tolerance = within 2%) 
Started but not on track 

Green 
KPI 

Milestones 
Achieving Target 
On track 

Blue Milestones Complete 

Grey 
KPI 

Milestones 
To be confirmed 

There are five transformational workstreams, led by three Transformational Groups.  All workstreams have key priorities as shown below (note that in 2019/20 
some priorities are complete and have been removed): 

 Children and Young People  Mental Health and Learning Disability  Acute and Community 
C&YP 1 Implementation of Children and Young People 

Mental Health Services  (CAMHS)  
Transformation Plan 

LD&MH 1 Deliver improved outcomes and performance in the 
Improving Access to Psychological Therapies service 

UC&C 1 Creation of an integrated point of contact for care needs 
in Rotherham 

C&YP 2 Maternity and Better Births LD&MH 2 Improve dementia diagnosis and support UC&C 3 Development of an integrated health and social care team 
to support the discharge of people out of hospital 

C&YP 3 Oversee delivery of the 0-19 healthy child 
pathway services 

LD&MH 5 Improve community crisis response and intervention for 
mental health.  

UC&C 4 Implementation of integrated locality working across 
Rotherham 

C&YP 4 Children’s Acute and Community Integration LD&MH 6 Implement Public Health ‘Better Mental Health for All’ 
Strategy 

UC&C 5 Development of the re-ablement and intermediate care 
offer 

C&YP 5 Special Educational Needs and Disability 
(SEND) – Journey to Excellence 

LD&MH 7 Oversee delivery of Learning Disability Transforming Care UC&C 6 Development of a coordinated approach to care home 
support. 

C&YP 7 Transitions LD&MH 8 Support the implementation of the ‘my front door’ 
Learning Disability Strategy 

  

  LD&MH 9 Support the development of the Autism Strategy   

P
age 171



Page 2 of 6  

2 3 2 

11 
6 

11 

24 32 
27 

0 

3 6 
8 

3 1 4 2 2 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Overall Milestones Performance 

Grey

Brown

Blue

Green

Amber

Red

3 3 2 

10 10 12 

22 24 20 

5 3 
5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Overall KPI Performance 

Grey

Green

Amber

Red

 

  

Summary of Performance Quarter 1 - 3 

Of note: 
The combined number of milestones 
either on track or complete has 
slightly decreased in Q3.  Although 
the number that are complete has 
increased/ 
 
The number of milestones of light 
concern has increased in Q3 

Of note: 
The overall figures show that there 
has been little fluctuation in 
performance over Quarters 1 – 3 for 
any of the RAG ratings. 

P
age 172



Page 3 of 6  

2 2 0 

6 

3 

7 
8 

10 
8 

0 2 2 
3 

0 0 0 2 2 
0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

C&YP Milestones 
Red

Amber

Green

Blue

Brown

Grey

2 2 
0 

6 

4 
5 

4 
5 

4 

0 1 
2 

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

C&YP KPIs 

Red

Amber

Green

Grey

Summary of Children and Young People Performance 
 
  
 

 

 

  

Milestones 

RAG Descriptor 
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

No % No % No % No % 

Red Of concern 2 10.5 2 10.5 0 0 
  

Amber Slightly off track 6 31.6 3 15.8 7 36.8 
  

Green On track 8 42.1 10 52.6 8 42.2 
  

Blue Complete 0 0.0 2 10.5 2 10.5 
  

Brown Not due to start 3 15.8 0 0.0 0 0 
  

Grey 
Still to be 
confirmed 0 0.0 2 10.5 2 10.5 

  
Totals  19 100 19 100 19 100 

  

Key Performance Indicators 

RAG Descriptor 
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

No % No % No % No % 

Red Of concern 2 16.7 2 16.7 0 0 
  

Amber Slightly off track 6 50.0 4 33.3 5 45.4 
  

Green On track 4 33.3 5 41.7 4 36.4 
  

Grey 
Still to be 
confirmed 0 0.0 1 8.3 2 18.2 

  
Totals  12 100 12 100 11 100 

  

Of note: 

 The number of milestones in Q3 complete or on track has decreased from 
63.1% to 52.7% 

 In Q3, the number of red milestones has reduced from 10.5% in Q1 and Q2 to 0 
in Q3 (review of RDaSH CAMHS ASD/ADHD diagnosis pathway and addressing 
barriers to 0-19 IPHN EHAs) 

 The number of amber milestones has increased from 15.8% in Q2 to 36.8% in 
Q3; 2 are milestones that have gone from green to amber (signs of safety 
training and development of transition pathways for long-term health 
conditions  

Of note: 

 The number of KPIs on track in Q3 has decreased from 41.7% in Q2 to 
36.4 in Q3 

 The number of red KPIs has reduced from 16.7% in Q2 to 0 in Q3 

 There is 1 less KPI as there was agreement for the ‘Increased Early Help 
Assessments completed by 0-19 practitioners to a min 10 per month’ KPI 
has been removed 

P
age 173



Page 4 of 6  

Children and Young People 
Milestones 

Chairs: Councillor Gordon Watson, RMBC/ Vice Chair, Dr Jason Page, CCG 

  
Please note, the Signs of Safety Priority is under review with a view to being transferred to the Workforce and OD Enabling Group: 

As at November 2019, no training has been delivered in the last quarter due to changes in staffing so the position remains the same, however, wider partnership advanced 

training is due to be delivered in the next  three months. 

Priority 1 C&YP – CAMHS Transformation Plan 

No. Description Target 
Progress 

Comments Q4 
1819 

Q1 
1920 

Q2 
1920 

Q3 
1920 

Q4 
1920 

 
CH1.1 

Work with all stakeholders to review the RDaSH CAMHS 
ASD/ADHD diagnosis pathway. 

Q4 19/20 G R R A 

 A partnership action plan is in place to reduce tackle waiting 
times for Neurodevelopment Assessments. An additional 
provider for ASD assessments has been commissioned by 
RCCG and this service is now live. Partners have been engaged 
through establishment of the SEMH Strategy Group which has 
replaced the CAMHS Partnership.   

CH1.2 
Integration of the CAMHS Single Point of Access (SPA) and 
RMBC Early Help access point. 

Q4 19/20 A A A A 

 As part of the CAMHS Trailblazer , the interface between the 
Mental Health Support Team, Locality Advice and 
Consultation and Early Help, School inclusion Services has 
been reviewed.  

 
CH1.3 

Improved CAMHS Crisis service out of hours. 

Q4 19/20 A A A A 

 This is a long term area of work. RDaSH are working with 
TRFT as part of a national pilot for Urgent and Emergency 
Care Access Standard. In addition a programme manager 
has been appointed to lead work on CYP crisis provision at 
the ICS level.  
 

 
CH1.4 

Clarification of the pathways between the CAMHS service 
and Youth Offending Team (YOT) and ‘Liaison & Diversion’ 
service. 

Q4 19/20 A A A A 
 This action has been incorporated into the SEMH 

Strategy/Action  Plan to progress   

 
CH1.5 

Scoping out of a Schools ‘CAMHS’ service in line with the 
government ‘Green Paper’ recommendations Q3 19/20 G G G G 

 Progressing well.  Joint launch event with Doncaster 
planned for CYP Mental Health Week in February 

P
age 174



Page 5 of 6 

 

 

Priority 2 C&YP – Maternity and Better Births 

No. Description Target 
Progress 

Comments Q4  
1819 

Q1 
 1920 

Q2  
1920 

Q3  
1920 

Q4 
 1920 

CH2.1 To reduce stillbirths and neonatal deaths 

Q4 2021 1.61% 1.61% 1.2% tbc 

 The Q2 2019/20 rate is 1.2%, a slight reduction on the 
previous quarterly figure. The Q3 2019/2020 data will be 
published by NHS England in late March 2020. 

CH2.2 For all women to have a Personalised Care Plan (PCP) 
Q4 2021 100% 100% 100% 100% 

 All women are now provided with a Personalised Care Plan 
and work is on-going with a review to ensure the plan 
meets the needs of the women. 

CH2.3 To reduce the number of women smoking in pregnancy 

Q3 2022 19.6% 20.2% 
16.4% 
(prov) 

tbc 

 Nationally the aim, by end of 2022, is to reduce the 
prevalence of smoking in pregnancy from 10.7% to 6% or 
less. SY&B aim set at 5% reduction. The Q3 2019/2020 data 
will be published by NHS England in late March 2020. 
 
 

 

 

Priority 3 C&YP – 0-19 Healthy Child Pathway 

No. Description Target 
Progress 

Comments Q4 
1819 

Q1  
1920 

Q2  
1920 

Q3  
1920 

Q4  
1920 

 
CH3.1 

To address the barriers to 0-19 IPHN EHAs and increase the 
numbers submitted by the service. Q4 19/20 A R R G 

 The numbers of EHA’s completed by the service has 
increased but, following discussions with commissioners, it 
has been agreed that having a target is inappropriate – this 
should needs led. 

CH3.2 All 0-19 Practitioners will have completed Signs of Safety 
training by the end of 2018/19. Q4 19/20 A A G A 

  70 % of staff attended this training, but we  are awaiting 
new dates so no more staff have been trained. 
 
Waiting future dates for remaining staff to book onto  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 175



Page 6 of 6 

 

Priority 4 C&YP – Acute and Community Integration 

No. Description Target 
Progress 

Comments Q4  
1819 

Q1  
1920 

Q2  
1920 

Q3  
1920 

Q4  
1920 

 

 
CH4.1 

Embed the work of the rapid response team with referral 
routes established across the system 

 

Work with GPs and test direct referrals from General 
Practice to the Rapid Response Team 

Q4 18/19 G G G G 

 The work is now embedded across the children’s ward, 
children’s CAU and UECC.  
 
In the recent spotlight presentation to the Board it was 
suggested that the team link with the primary care network 
to progress work with GPS. There are ongoing discussions 
regarding of PARROT with the CCG 

CH4.2 Establish links between Rapid Response Team & Early Help 

Q3 18/19 G G G G 

 The CCN /PARROT team have links with Early help. The 
teams are both based at Kimberworth  and are aware of 
the process for referral.  

CH4.3 Pilot a direct link between Children’s Ward and Children’s 
Service to support timely discharge plans 

Q3 18/19 G G G G 

 There is a direct link between the Rapid response 
Team (PARROT)  
PARROT nurses attend ward round every morning.  
Referral to Early Help would be considered on a case by 
case basis. 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Priority 5 C&YP – SEND 

No. Description Target 
Progress 

Comments Q4  
1819 

Q1 
 1920 

Q2  
1920 

Q3  
1920 

Q4  
1920 

 

 

 
 

CH5.1 

Undertake the following in respect of Joint Commissioning: 

 Implement the joint financial protocol and service 
specifications 

 Implement the Special School Funding Model 

 Review of SEMH Support Centres (PRUs) 

 Review of Traded Models 

 Review of service provision within the High Needs Budget 

Q4 19/20 G G B B 

  Joint Resourcing Panel in place 

 SEND Sufficiency Strategy approved 

 SEND Health Sufficiency Strategy approved and at 
implementation phase 

 Review of SEMH Support Centres complete; 
focused work to commence in September 2019 

 Strategic Inclusion Steering Group in place to 
review traded models 

 High Needs  

 Budget Recovery Plan submitted to DfE  

 Consultant appointed to advise on SEMH sufficiency 
and use of PRUs. 

 
CH5.2 

Create a plan to reduce placements outside Rotherham 
(including residential provision offer,  Reduce OOA 
provision arrangements 

Q2 19/20 G G B B 

  SEND Sufficiency Strategy approved by RMBC 
Cabinet 

 SEND Sufficiency proposals agreed with schools  

 Building programme on track  for 2021 
 

 

 

 

P
age 176



Page 7 of 6 

 

Priority 7 C&YP – Transitions 

No. Description Target 
Progress 

Comments Q4  
1819 

Q1  
1920 

Q2  
1920 

Q3  
1920 

Q4  
1920 

 

 

 

CH7.1 

Develop an operational transition pathway based on 
Preparing for Adulthood model and publish the transition 
pathway on the Council website (local offer). Q2 19/20 A A A A  

The transitional pathway has been developed and 
will be published as part of the Adult Care Pathway 
transformation.  This has been published internally:  
see  http://rmbcintranet/Directorates/ACH/Pages/Adult-

Social-Care-Pathways.aspx A date for public 
publication will be confirmed with comms.  

   
CH7.2 

Hold an engagement event to ensure young people,  
families and schools are aware of the employment and skills 
strategy 

Q3 19/20 N/A BR G G  

 RiDO has recently been successful in securing ESF 
funding to build links between employers and 
schools to share local job market information, 
career and progression routes. 

 The ESF initiative will enable RiDO officers to plan 
events with employers, schools and partners to help 
raise awareness, increase work experience, 
supported internship opportunities and the number 
disability confident employers. 

 RiDO’s Enterprise Adviser Network programme is 
helping schools to work towards developing careers 
education and guidance in line with 8 Gatsby 
Benchmarks. 

  

CH7.3 
Producing a video for schools / colleges setting out local 
job market information, including educational routes and 
career progression opportunities for the preparing for 
Adulthood Cohort 

Q4 19/20 N/A BR G G  

 28 students from 2 PRU’s attended the LEAF annual 
job and careers fair 2018 for the first time.  

 36 students from 2 PRU’s are booked in for LEAF 
2019. 

 54 students from 3/6 special schools attended LEAF 
2018. 
 CH7.4 Transition pathways for long-term health conditions to be 

developed Q3 19/20 N/A BR G A  
A plan is being prepared as part of the Preparing for 
Adulthood Board.  This is to be shared in late November.  
This is outstanding. 

P
age 177

http://rmbcintranet/Directorates/ACH/Pages/Adult-Social-Care-Pathways.aspx
http://rmbcintranet/Directorates/ACH/Pages/Adult-Social-Care-Pathways.aspx


 

8 
 

Children and Young People 
KPIs 

 
Chairs: Cllr Gordon Watson, RMBC/ Vice Chair, Dr Jason Page, CCG 

Performance  

No. Description Trajectory Target 1920 Priority Q4 1819 Q1 1920 Q2 1920 Q3 1920 Q4 1920 Comments 

CH/KPI 1 
Percentage of referrals assessed 
within 6 weeks 

Increase 95% 
CH1 - 

CAMHS 
A 

84% 
A 

89.5% 
G 

100% 
G 

100% 
 

As at 31 December 2019 excluding ASD/ADHD (in line with 
the Contract Reporting) 

CH/KPI 2 
Percentage of referrals receiving 
treatment within 18 weeks 

Increase 95% 
CH1 - 

CAMHS 
A 

87% 
A 

93% 
A 

97.4% 
G 

100% 
 

As at 31 December 2019 excluding ASD/ADHD (in line with 
the Contract Reporting) 

CH/KPI 3 
Percentage of referrals triaged for 
urgency within 24 hours of receipt 
of referral 

Increase 100% 
CH1 - 

CAMHS 
G 

100% 
G 

100% 
G 

100% 
A 

99.4% 
 

As at 31 December 2019 excluding ASD/ADHD (in line with 
the Contract Reporting) 

CH/KPI 4 
Percentage of all appropriate urgent 
referrals assessed within 24 hours of 
receipt of referral 

Increase 100% 
CH1 - 

CAMHS 
G 

100% 
G 

100% 
G 

100% 
G 

100% 
 

As at 31 December 2019 excluding ASD/ADHD (in line with 
the Contract Reporting) 

CH/KPI 5 
A reduction in the rate of stillbirths 
and neonatal deaths 

Reduce 3.76% 
CH2 – 

Maternity 
G 

1.61 
G 

1.61% 
G 

1.2% 
tbc  

The Q2 2019/20 rate is 1.2%, a slight reduction on the 
previous quarterly figure. The Q3 2019/2020 data will be 
published by NHS England in late March 2020. 

CH/KPI 6 
All pregnant women have a 
Personalised Care Plan by March 21 

Increase 70% 
CH2 – 

Maternity 
G 

100% 
G 

100% 
G 

100% 
G 

100% 
 

All women are now provided with a Personalised Care Plan 
and work is on-going in relation to review to ensure the plan 
meets the needs of the women. 

CH/KPI 7 
A reduction in the percentage of 
women smoking at time of delivery 

Reduce 
5% 

reduction 
CH2 – 

Maternity 
R 

19.6% 
A 

17.8% 
16.4% 
(prov) 

tbc  

Nationally the aim, by end of 2022, is to reduce the 
prevalence of smoking in pregnancy from 10.7% to 6% or less. 
SY&B aim set at 5% reduction. The Q3 2019/2020 data will be 
published by NHS England in late March 2020. 
 
 CH/KPI 8 

Increased Early Help Assessments 
completed by 0- 19 practitioners to 
a min 10 per month 

Increase 
10 per 
month 

 
CH 3 - 0-19 

A 
8 

R 
13 

R 
19 

DELETE  

Agreed at 0 -19 performance meeting with Commissioners to 
remove target as this is not needs led.  Work to continue on 
identifying EHA’s and lead roles. Meeting arranged to discuss 
EHA with Susan Claydon as EHA is wider than 0 -19 service. 

CH/KPI 9 
Reduction in the number of 
exclusions 

Reduce 
Reduction on 

previous 
year 

CH 5 - SEND 
R 
19 

R 
15 

R 
12 

A 
11 

 
All 11 registered with SEN Support. This measure is a subset of 
the Council Plan measure.  This measure will be reviewed as 
part of the wider work for the 19/20 performance reporting. 

CH/KPI 10 
Increased number of Children in 
Local Provision (reduced OOA) 

Increase 
17/18 – 
93.5% 

 
 

CH 5 - SEND 

A 
88.9% 

A 
89.1% 

A 
85.2% 

A 
89.5% 

 

End of Q3 (Dec 19) there were 234 CYP in an OOA provision 
out of 2220 CYP who have an EHCP in place (This is 111 Post 
16 CYP and 123 statutory school age CYP). Whilst more 
provision is being developed this is not currently keeping pace 
with demand. It is a priority to develop more post 16 
provision in the borough. 

CH/KPI 13 
Numbers of SEND Tier 1 tribunal 
applications 

Reduce 
8 plus 1 in 

court 
CH 7 - 

Transitions 
G 
3 

A 
3 
 

A 
3 

A 
3 

 
 No update 

CH/KPI 14 
Proportion of young people with 
SEND needs in paid employment 
(Working Age Adults) 

To base 
line 

TBC 
CH 7 

Transition 
N/A A A A  

This baselining is still ongoing.  It is planned to  use the 
national defined ASCOF measure – we are already monitoring 
this on a monthly basis, there is benchmarking available and 
the service have started improvement work as part of My 
Front door and the adult care pathway 

P
age 178



 

9 
 

0 1 2 
4 

3 
4 

7 

10 
8 

0 1 1 0 0 0 

4 

0 0 
0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

MH&LD Milestones 

Red

Amber

Green

Blue

Brown

Grey
0 0 0 1 

3 

5 

9 
10 

7 

3 
0 1 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

MH&LD KPIs 

Red

Amber

Green

Grey

Summary of Mental Health and Learning Disabilities Performance 

Milestones 

RAG Descriptor 
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

No % No % No % No % 

Red Of concern 0 0 1 6.7 2 13.3 
  

Amber Slightly off track 4 26.7 3 20.0 4 26.7 
  

Green On track 7 46.7 10 66.7 8 53.3 
  

Blue Complete 0 0.0 1 6.7 1 6.7 
  

Brown Not due to start 0 0.0 0 0.0 0 0 
  

Grey 
Still to be 
confirmed 4 26.7 0 0.0 0 0 

  
Totals  15 100 15 100 15 100 

  
  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Key Performance Indicators 

RAG Descriptor 
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

No % No % No % No % 

Red Of concern 0 0 0 0 0 0 
  

Amber Slightly off track 1 7.7 3 23.1 5 38.5 
  

Green On track 9 69.2 10 76.9 7 53.9 
  

Grey 
Still to be 
confirmed 3 23.1 0 0 1 7.6 

  
Totals  13 100 13 100 13 100 

  

Of note: 

 In Q3 the number of red milestones has increased to 13.3% from 6.7% in Q2 
(Development of Rotherham based Autism and ADHD diagnostic pathway) 

 The number of milestones on track or complete has decreased to 60% in Q3, 
compared to 73.7% in Q2 

Of note: 

 The number of KPIs on track has decreased from 76.9% in Q2 to 53.9% in Q3 

P
age 179



 

10 
 

Mental Health and Learning Disability 
Milestones 

Chair:  Ian Atkinson, RCCG 
 

Priority  1 MH - IAPT  

No. Description 
Target 
1920 

Progress 
Comments Q4  

1819  
Q1  

1920 
Q2  

1920 
Q3  

1920 
Q4  

1920 

MH1.1 

Identify and agree workforce development and training 
requirements (LTC & Core) – IAPT 

Q1- Q4 
19/20 

G G G G  

1 trainee CBT started in October 2019.  Unable to recruit 
a 2

nd
 so this place rolled over to March 2020 course.  

Discussions had about additional places from out of area 
training providers and agreement for 3 trainee PWP to 
be requested for March 2020 but no progress or update 
on this and whether this was actioned.  No discussion or 
agreement about LTC work or future workforce 
development for core services. 

MH1.2 
All GP practice review support visits completed – IAPT Q1-Q4 

19/20 
A Tbc R R  

‘support visits’ to include offer of contract of less formal 
interactions then full meeting review.  Three completed 
and one booked. 

MH1.3 Delivery of 5 year forward IAPT 19/20 plan – IAPT Q4 19/20 G G G G   

 
 

Priority 2 MH - Dementia Diagnosis and Support  

No. Description 
Target 
1920 

Progress 
Comments Q4  

1819  
Q1  

1920 
Q2  

1920 
Q3  

1920 
Q4  

1920 

MH2.1 
Develop new dementia pathway for post diagnostic care  

Q4 19/20 G G G G  
New pathway has been through the RCCG governance 
process. Further discussions are taking place around 
implementation.  

MH2.2 Review dementia diagnosis pathway  Q4 19/20 A A G G  As above 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 180



 

11 
 

 

 Priority 5 MH - Improve Community Crisis Response (including Core Fidelity, suicide-prevention) 

No. Description 
Target 
1920 

Progress 
Comments Q4  

1819  
Q1  

1920 
Q2  

1920 
Q3  

1920 
Q4  

1920 

MH5.1 
Complete CORE Fidelity review, recommendations and 
action plan for improvement (inc investment requirements) 

Q4 19/20 A G G G  
Model for ICS crisis investment agreed with RDaSH and 
TRFT  

MH5.2 

SY&B ICS NHS England Suicide-prevention – delivery of   
Rotherham element of the plan (year 2) 

Q4 19/20 G G G G  

The small grants panel met in October and awarded 9 
grants to new community groups and continuation funds 
to a number of groups from the first round. 
Discussions progressed with colleagues across SY&B ICS 
to jointly commission a listening service across the 
region. Service launch date beginning of January 2020. 
Some trainers from the first cohort of the Self Harm 
Train the Trainer project commenced delivery of the 4 
hour awareness sessions with 38 people trained during 
this period. 

MH5.3 

Refresh of the Rotherham suicide prevention and self-harm 
action plan  Q3 19/20 A Tbc G G  

The refreshed Suicide Prevention and Self Harm Action 
Plan was signed off at the November H&WBB meeting. 
Professor Nav Kapor and colleagues at Manchester 
University reviewed the plan and gave positive feedback. 

 

Priority 6 MH – Public Health: Better Mental Health for All Strategy 

No. Description 
Target 
1920 

Progress 
Comments Q4  

1819  
Q1  

1920 
Q2  

1920 
Q3  

1920 
Q4  

1920 

MH6.1 

Evidence of integration of Five Ways messages within 
provider and commissioned services   

Q1-Q4 
19/20 

A Tbc A A  

The refreshed Better Mental Health for All action will be 
shared at the March meeting  
 
Five ways is promoted through the Be Well @ Work 
scheme. The five themes will be used to highlight 
connectedness work across the borough as highlighted 
in the draft Loneliness Action Plan. 

 

Priority 7 LD – Oversee Delivery of Transforming Care 

No. Description 
Target 
1920 

Progress 
Comments Q4  

1819  
Q1  

1920 
Q2  

1920 
Q3  

1920 
Q4  

1920 

LD7.1 
RMBC and CCG to agree process for  funding learning 
disability joint placements  Q2 19/20 A A A A  

Work is being undertook with NHSE to confirm dowry 
eligibility  and Funding Transfer Agreements – to 
conclude by March 2020 

LD7.2 
Identify Indicative costs for transforming care cohort 
(including those on the risk register) 

Q2 19/20 G G B B  
Complete 

LD7.3 
Commissioning solutions to be in place to meet individual 
trajectories  Q4 19/20 G A G A  

Work as a place is completed.  There is ongoing 
complexity in resettling cases where the preferred 
choice is out of area. Work is ongoing to ensure  

P
age 181



 

12 
 

 

 Priority 8 LD – Support the Implementation of the My Front Door – Learning Disability Strategy 

No. Description 
Target 
1920 

Progress 
Comments Q4  

1819  
Q1  

1920 
Q2  

1920 
Q3  

1920 
Q4  

1920 

LD8.1 Delivery of joint Learning Disability transformation strategy Q4 19/20 A G G G  
The My Front Door strategy is being updated  

 
 

 Priority 9 LD – Support the development of an Autism Strategy 

No. Description 
Target 
1920 

Progress 
Comments Q4  

1819  
Q1  

1920 
Q2  

1920 
Q3  

1920 
Q4  

1920 

LD9.1 

Complete the development of the Autism Strategy 
(including Action Plan)  

Q3 19/20 A A A A  

The pathway is in development and on track.  However, 
in dialogue with RDaSH, it is clear the risks in relation to 
recruitment are still evident and this reflects the change 
from green to amber.  Mitigation:  regular meetings 
occur to ensure that the risks are reviewed and 
appropriate action is taken to reduce this risk 

LD9.2 

Development of Rotherham based Autism and ADHD 
diagnostic pathway  Q4 18/19 G Tbc G R  

Pathway has been developed.  The launch of the 
diagnostic and post diagnostic support service start date 
of April 2020 will be missed.  The service in Rotherham is 
to open by May 2020.  

  

P
age 182



 

13 
 

Mental Health and Learning Disability 
KPIs 

    Performance  

No. Description Trajectory Target 1920 Priority Q4 1819 Q1 1920 Q2 1920 Q3 1920 Q4 1920 Comments 

MH/KPI 
1 

Percentage of people referred to 
IAPT commencing treatment within 
6 weeks of referral.  

Maintain 75% 
MH 1 - 

IAPT 
G 

91.8% 
G 

84.4% 
G 

97.8% 
G 

92.6% 
 

On track 

MH/KPI 
2 

% Compliance of those who have 
entered (i.e. received) treatment as 
a proportion of people entering 
treatment with anxiety or 
depression 

Increase 
 

19% 
Accumulative  total 
of population with 

depression -reported 
to NHSE 

MH 1 - 
IAPT 

G 
4.77% 

G 
4.36% 

G 
4.58% 

G 
4.41% 

 

On track 

MH/KPI 
3 

% of people who have completed 
treatment having attended at least 2 
treatment contacts and are moving 
to recovery  

Increase > 50% 
MH 1 - 

IAPT 
G 

55.6% 
G 

54% 
G 

53.6% 
G 

53.5% 
 

On track 

MH/KPI 
4 

Dementia diagnosis rates (%) 
Maintain 

National = 
67%  

Local = ≥80% 

MH 2 - 
Dementi

a 

G 
86.4% 

G 
85.2% 

G 
84.4% 

G 
83.9% 

 

National target is 67%.  Local target set to 
maintain or improve on 80%.   

MH/KPI 
5 

50% of GP practices achieving  62% 
of Post diagnostic support plan 
recorded in last 12 months  
 

Increase 

50% of 
practices 

achieving 62 
% (in year 1) 

MH 2 - 
Dementi

a 

G 
97% 

tbc 
G 

60% 
tbc  

 

MH/KPI 
6 

Urgent and emergency MH response 
within 1 hour of receiving an urgent 
referral (Core 24 liaison) 

Increase 95% 
MH 3 – 
Core 24 

A 
84% 

G 
100% 

G 
89% 

G 
95% 

 

 

MH/KPI 
7 

To reduce the suicide rate by 10% 
from the 2013-15 baseline (14.2 per 
100,000) 
 

Decrease 

10% reduction 
against the 
2013-2015 
baseline by 
2019-2021 

MH 5 - 
Crisis 

A tbc A A   

Fingertips Profiles (PHOF and Suicide 
Prevention Profiles)  Rotherham - September 
2019 Update The latest update to 2016-18 
shows a decrease to 13.1 deaths per 100,000 
reducing the gap with England which remained 
at 9.6 per 100,000. 

MH/KPI 
8 

Referrals who require a Face to Face 
assessment who were seen within 4 
Hours % Compliance (crisis) 

Increase >95% 
MH 5 - 
Crisis 

G 
97.6% 

G 
98.2% 

G 
100% 

G 
100% 

 

On track 

LD/KPI 
9 

Ensure that patients receive a CTR 
prior to a planned admission to an 
Assessment and Treatment Unit or 
mental health inpatients: adults. 

Increase 95% 

LD 7 - 
Transfor

ming 
Care 

G 
100% 

G 
100% 

G 
100% 

A  
Recent admissions have occurred without a 
CTR being completed – to monitor pathway  

LD/KPI 
11 

Ensure that patients in an 
Assessment and Treatment Unit 
receive a Care and Treatment 
Review (CTR) every 6 months. 

Increase 100% 

LD 7 - 
Transfor

ming 
Care 

G 
100% 

G 
100% 

G 
100% 

G  On track 

P
age 183



 

14 
 

    Performance  

No. Description Trajectory Target 1920 Priority Q4 1819 Q1 1920 Q2 1920 Q3 1920 Q4 1920 Comments 

LD/KPI 
12 

Reduce the number of people 
admitted in line with the South 
Yorkshire and North Lincolnshire LD 
TCP trajectory – Local Reporting 

Reduce 

Target = 3 – 
CCG funded LD 
beds /5 – NHSE 
funded secure 

LD beds tbc 

LD 7 - 
Transfor

ming 
Care 

G 
3 = CCG 
4=NHSE 

G 
G 

3 = CCG 
4=NHSE 

A 
4 = CCG 
4=NHSE 

 

A recent admission has increased the number 
of CCG commissioned beds to 4.   

LD/KPI 
13 

Proportion of eligible adults with a 
learning disability having a GP health 
check 

Increase 1058 
LD 8 - LD 
Strategy 

A A A A  

An increase in completed GP health checks is 
reported. – 82% 

LDKPI/
15 

The numbers of people receiving a 
diagnosis of autism within 18 weeks   
(55 assessments completed in 
2017/18) 

Increase  

5% increase 
on 2017/18 

performance 
 = 58 

LD9 – 
Autism 

G 
15 

Tbc A A  

The work with SAANs has confirmed that the 
average wait for an adult (non LD) diagnosis is  
28 weeks - am 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

P
age 184



 

15 
 

0 0 0 1 0 0 

9 

12 
11 

0 0 
3 

5 
3 

1 0 0 0 
0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

U&C Milestones 

Red

Amber

Green

Blue

Brown

Grey 1 1 
2 

3 3 
2 

9 9 9 

2 2 2 

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

U&C KPIs 

Red

Amber

Green

Grey

Summary of Urgent and Community Performance 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

  

Milestones 

RAG Descriptor 
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

No % No % No % No % 

Red Of concern 0 0 0 0.0 0 0 
  

Amber 
Slightly off 
track 1 6.7 0 0.0 0 0 

  
Green On track 9 60.0 12 80.0 11 73.3 

  
Blue Complete 0 0.0 0 0.0 3 20 

  
Brown 

Not due to 
start 5 33.3 3 20.0 1 6.7 

  
Grey 

Still to be 
confirmed 0 0 0 0.0 0 0 

  
Totals  15 100 15 100 15 100 

  

Key Performance Indicators 

RAG Descriptor 
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

No % No % No % No % 

Red Of concern 1 6.7 1 6.7 2 13.3 
  

Amber 
Slightly off 
track 3 20.0 3 20.0 2 13.3 

  
Green On track 9 60.0 9 60.0 9 60.0 

  
Grey 

Still to be 
confirmed 2 13.3 2 13.3 2 13.3 

  
Totals  15 100 15 100 15 100 

  

Of note 

Of note: 

 The number of red KPIs has increased from 6.7% in Q2 to 13.3% in 
Q3, this is for new permanent admissions to residential nursing care 
for adults and the number of people provided with information and 
advice at first point of contact 

 It should be noted that the DTOC position has deteriorated 

 The number of KPIs on track has remained the same 

Of note: 

 The number of milestones on track or complete in Q3 has increased 
to 93.3%, compared to 80% in Q2 

 

P
age 185



 

16 
 

Urgent and Community 
Milestones 

Chairs: Anne Marie Lubanski RMBC 
Priority 1 UC&C - Integrated Point of Contract 

No. Description Target Progress 
Comments Q4 

1819 
Q1 

1920 
Q2 

1920 
Q3 

1920 
Q4 

1920 

1.1 Develop and implement integrated intermediate care and 
reablement pathways into points of contact 

Q4 19/20 NEW G G G 

 A high level pathway model has been drafted.   A 
community triage hub, co-located with TRFT’s Care Co-
ordination Centre (CCC) at Woodside, will review 
multi-disciplinary cases.   
 
The CCC has carried out extensive service 
improvement work in preparation including 
introducing paperless processing to release capacity to 
meet increased demand, with templates to ensure 
patients are directed to the most appropriate level of 
care.   
 
The Rotherham 111 Directory of Services is now 
aligned to the CCC, where previously it defaulted to 
the Urgent and Emergency Care Centre 

1.2 Identify further opportunities for integrated working into 
points of contact 

Q4 19/20 NEW G G G 

 The CCC, Integrated Rapid Response and Unplanned 
Hub are working together to provide an integrated hub.  
Work has begun to incorporate community therapies.  
 
RMBC’s Target Operating Model was launched in 
October 2019 with a new First Point of Contact. 
 
Work has begun on the Rotherham Health Record to 
provide the respective contact points with a shared 
view of physical and mental health and social care 
episodes of care.  Requirements for a new intermediate 
care and reablement view have been identified.  

 
 

Priority 3 UC&C - Integrated Discharge (Phase 2) 

 
No. 

 
Description 

 
Target 

Progress  
Comments Q4 

1819 
Q1 

1920 
Q2 

1920 
Q3 

1920 
Q4 

1920 

UC 3.1 Complete review of Integrated Discharge Team Q3 19/20 NEW G G Closed  Completed  

UC 3.2 Service re-design for 7 day working with nursing 
Q4 19/20 NEW BR G G 

 Seven day cover is in place.  TRFT are reviewing the 
nursing element.   

 

P
age 186



 

17 
 

 

Priority 4 UC&C - I Integrated Working into Localities 

No. Description Target Progress 
Comments Q4 

1819 
Q1 

1920 
Q2 

1920 
Q3 

1920 
Q4 

1920 

4.1 Implement social care locality framework in response to 
Primary Care Networks (PCNs) Q3 19-20 NEW G G Closed 

 A new framework was implemented as part of 
the Target Operating Model in October 2019 
 
 
 

4.2 Develop integrated intermediate care and reablement 
pathways as a platform for integrated working into 
PCNs/localities 

 
Q4 19-20 

NEW G G G 

 Integrated working into localities is being progressed 
through the integrated intermediate care and 
reablement project in 2019/20.  The learning and 
successful outcomes will be used as a platform for 
future development. 

4.3 Identify and develop further opportunities for integrated 
working in PCNs/localities informed by the Intermediate 
Care & Reablement Evaluation 

 
Q4 19/20 

NEW BR 
 

G 
 

G 

 Future scoping will be taken forward through the new 
Urgent and Community Place and Delivery governance 
groups.  To be developed through Q4 2019/20 and in to 
2020/21 

 

 

Priority 5 UC&C – Reablement and Intermediate Care 

No. Description Target Progress 
Comments Q4 

1819 
Q1 

1920 
Q2 

1920 
Q3 

1920 
Q4 

1920 

UC 5.1 Approval of business case 

Q2 19/20 G A G Closed 

 The Outline Business Case (OBC) was approved by 
partner governance groups in June 2019.  In addition the 
TRFT Board of Directors approved a business case for a 
therapy led off-site 24 bed community unit with nursing 
for one year to mitigate risks within the Trust in July 
2019 
 
date it UC 5.2 Develop service model and service specifications 

Q3 19/20 BR G G G 

 A high level overarching pathway model has been 
developed including feedback from two cross 
system stakeholder events.   
 
The pathway and specification for the therapy led 
community unit with nursing at Athorpe Lodge has 
been approved.   

UC 5.3 Phase 1 of new service model implemented: investment in 
home based teams and implementation of the off-site 
community unit Q4 19/20 BR BR G G 

 The 24 bed  therapy led community unit with nursing 
opened at Athorpe Lodge in November 2019. 
 
Recruitment to the home based community roles 
initiated.  

UC 5.4 Phase 2 New model of care fully implemented 

Q3 20/21 BR BR BR G 

 Pathway 3A initiated at Athorpe Lodge.   

UC 5.5 Embedding of the new model and evaluation Q4 20/21 BR BR BR BR   

P
age 187



 

18 
 

 

Priority 6 UC&C - Care Home Support 

No. Description Target Progress 
Comments Q4 

1819 
Q1 

1920 
Q2 

1920 
Q3 

1920 
Q4 

1920 

6.1 Identify opportunities to integrate activity and review 
spend 

Q4 19/20 NEW G G G 

 Stock-take of current community health provision to 
support care homes have been completed which 
identifies duplication/overlap of services.  A task group 
and draft Terms of Reference will be established in 
Quarter 4 to develop a co-ordinated approach to care 
home support. 

6.2 Continue to implement enhanced health in care home 

Q4 19/20 NEW G G G 

 A report went to Quality Board in September which 
included key achievements over last 12 months 
and progress against the EHCH domains.  This is a 
long term national initiative and a key element of 
the NHS Long Term Plan. This includes enhanced 
primary care support, MDT approach including co-
ordinated health and social care, reablement and 
rehabilitation, high quality end of life care and 
dementia care, workforce development and data IT 
and technology. 

6.3 Roll out of registration on DPST/Use of NHS Mail to all Care 
Homes 

Q3 19/20 NEW G G G 

 All care homes for older people (100%) are now 
registered on the DSPT/Use of NHS mail, 88% have 
published the DSPT and 55% have a shared NHS mail 
box and are now fully compliant.  100% of care homes 
need to be fully compliant by 31.3.20.  Care homes 
providing community unit and winter pressure beds are 
now fully using this system to safely transfer patient 
sensitive data with the Integrated Discharge Team, 
pharmacies and GP practices.  

 
  

P
age 188



 

19 
 

 
 

Urgent and Community 
KPIs 

 Performance  

No. Description Trajectory Target 1920 Priority Q4 1819 Q1 1920 Q2 1920 Q3 1920 Q4 1920 Comments 
 
 

UC/ 
KPI 1 

SPA - Number of people provided 
with information and advice at first 
point of contact (to prevent 
service need) SPA LOCAL PI (based 
on ASCOF 2B3) 

Increase 40% UC 1 - IPC 
G 

37.8% 
A  

39.30% 
A 

38.3% 

 
R        

37.60% 
 

 

Council Plan Measure.  In Q3 DoT trend worsened by 0.7% 
to 37.6%; performance is below last year's outturn of 
38.8%. The previous Quarter 2 fall of 1% was felt to be 
partially due to new staff inconsistencies in recording 
which led to an increase in recording of 'No Further 
Action' outcomes, which reduce the performance score. In 
reality 'NFA' is known to be a rare outcome as customers 
almost always receive some kind of redirection guidance 
to more appropriate services. The Service is undertaking a 
quality assurance of the current quarter’s recording to see 
if this has again impacted adversely. However, the scale of 
the downward trend may also be more of an indicator 
that the new operating pathways are now initially 
impacting, as the Customer Contact Centre may be 
meeting some customers’ needs prior to them formally 
being processed by the Adult Social Care First Contact 
Team. This is recognised by the Service and a series of fact 
finding actions and a workshop to address next steps is 
scheduled for late January. 
 
If recovery steps from and identified data recording 
actions are not sufficient to narrow the gap to achieve 
target by year end then it may be that a ‘re-basing’ of the 
cohort data would be required for future target setting. As 
a result due to the current uncertainty the measure has 
been rated ‘off-target’. 

UC / 
KPI 2 

CCC – Number of GP urgent 
admissions to AMU (including those 
referred through CCC) 

 
Reduction 

3150 
threshold 

UC 1 – IPC 
UC 5 – IC 

/Reab 

G 
319 

G 
363 

G 
256 

G 
300 

 April 168, May 97, Jun 98 = green 
Jul 83, Aug 85, Sep 88 = 256 = green 
Oct 92, Nov 107, Dec 101 = 300 = green 

 

 
UC/ 

KPI 3 

Of the new clients who have had a 
formal social care assessment 
completed this year, what 
percentage went on to receive long 
term social care support  - Local PI 

(based on ASCOF) 

 

 

 

Reduction 

 

 

 

TBC in Q2 

 
 

UC 1 – IPC 
UC 4 – Int 
Locality 

61% 53.5% 59.3% 60.14% 

 Regional data/ benchmarking is being monitored to 
inform targets moving forward, target to be 
introduced from 2020-21.In Q3 Adult Care 
implemented new pathways to support a more 
preventative model of working.  
 

  

P
age 189



 

20 
 

 
 
 

Performance  

No. Description Trajectory Target 1920 Priority Q4 1819 Q1 1920 Q2 1920 Q3 1920 Q4 1920 Comments 
 

 

 

UC / 
KPI 4 

Proportion of new clients who receive 
short term (enablement) service in year 
with an outcome of no further requests 
made for support - ASCOF 2d 2B7 

Increase 90% 

UC 1 – IPC 
UC4 – Int 
Loc UC 5 – 

IC 
/Reab 

G  
93.5% 

G  
91.2% 

A 
89.8% 

 
    G  
91.8% 

 In Q3 DoT shows a rise in performance to 91.8, 
which is just above the year-end target of 90%; but 
the Service recognises that this level of performance 
remains high compared to latest benchmarked 
averages. Management actions will continue to 
monitor Qtr 4 activity to identify if any experienced 
downturn may be due to service transformational 
changes and the wider cohort profile of adults now 
accessing the service. As the pathway embeds and 
the service supports a wider range of needs, there is 
an accepted risk within the service that 
performance against this indicator may reduce and 
be more aligned to the latest national and regional 
averages of approximately 80% and 74% 
respectively. However the real term numbers of 
customers successfully supported should increase. 

UC/ 
KPI 5 

New permanent admissions to 
residential nursing care for adults – 
65+ BCF/ASCOF 2a (2)/ BCF 
(per100,000) 

Decrease 

 

 
Population 
Mid year 
estimates 

refresh revises 
rate to 510.7  

(264 
admissions) 

Q1 81 
Q2 61 
Q3 61 
Q4 61 

UC 1 – IPC UC 4 – 
Int 

Loc UC 5 – IC 
/Reab 

A 
revised 

published 
outturns = 

564.9 equal to 
292 

admissions) 
 

R 
172.47 
(Adj Q1 

snapshot 88 
admissions) 

 
 
 

 
R  

135.23 
(Adj Q2 

snapshot 69 
admissions) 

 
YTD Figure 

307.7           
(157 snapshot 

admissions) 

R   
133.27 

(68 
Admissions) 
YTD Figure 

440.98        
(225 snapshot 

admissions) 

 

BCF Indicator, also contributes to Council Plan 
measure “All Age Admissions”. Admission rates of over 
65’s remain slightly higher, than the expected quarterly 
(+7) and accumulative (+22) milestones, although some 
evidence of slowing is being seen. This correlates well 
with the total numbers supported by the Council in 
residential / nursing care, which is on track to reduce by 
33 people to meet the 900 threshold target by year end.  
 
However, challenges remain and although we may see 
improvement to reduce below last year’s total number 
of admissions of 292 the measure is rated off target to 
achieve 264.  
 
Performance clinic actions continue aimed to improve 
performance through to year end where possible. These 
include a joint SMT session on 30/01/20 of Service and 
Commissioning managers to identify longer term 
alternatives to residential care from Commissioning and 
partner developments, as part of on-going monitoring of 
the action plan. Latest benchmarking data will be used 
to help the Service model future demand level for 
residential care, as the current target of 264 is proving 
challenging and may be indicative of the total that may 
not be possible to reduce beyond, unless more long 
term alternatives are available and thus delay the need 
for residential admissions. 
 
 

 

UC/ 
KPI 6 

Proportion of older people (65 and over) 
still at home 91 days after discharge 
from hospital into reablement / 
rehabilitation services – BCF/ ASCOF 2B  

Increase 86% 

UC 1 – IPC UC 4 – 
Int 

Loc UC 5 – IC 
/Reab 

A 
85.6% 

TBC Q4 TBC Q4 TBC Q4 

 Data collected Oct 2019 – Mar 2020 as part of snapshot 
period. Performance on this indicator will next be available 
in March 2020. 

  

P
age 190



 

21 
 

 
 
 

Performance  

No. Description Trajectory Target 1920 Priority Q4 1819 Q1 1920 Q2 1920 Q3 1920 Q4 1920 Comments 

 

UC/ 
KPI 7 

Number of emergency admissions for 
people over 65 Out of Hours Reduction 

8760 
(2190 per qtr) 

UC 1 – IPC UC 4 – 
Int 

Locality 

G 
1915 

G 
April / May 

1170 

G 
1742 

G 
1757 

 

April 590, May 580 
Jul 561, Aug 592, Sep 589 
Oct 530, Nov 569, Dec 658 = 1757 

 
UC/ 

KPI 8 

Number of emergency re-admissions 
within 28 days of hospital discharge (all 
age - same day readmissions excluded) 

Reduction 
 

13.3% 

 

UC 1 – IPC UC 4 – 
Int 

Locality 

11.2% 
(Feb figure) 

11.9% 
(May19) 

G 
10.1% 

(Sept 19) 

G 
9.6% 

 On track 
 

UC/ 
KPI 9 

Length of stay in hospital (over 64’s) 
Reduction 

2018/19 
baseline: 
All = 6.7, 
NE = 7.05 

 

UC 4 – Int 
Locality 

All - 6.62 
NE - 6.96 

All = 6.6 
NE = 7.0 

All = 7.18 
NE = 7.52 

All = 7.02 
NE = 7.43 

 

Using TRFT reporting: 2017/18 baseline: All = 6.9, 
NE = 7.5 
Not including 0 LOS (RG 31.07.19) 

 

UC/KPI 
10 

Number of patients discharged to their 
usual place of residence (over 64’s) – 
does not include 0 and 1 day stays 

Increase 

2018/19 
baseline 

All = 53.04% 
NE = 49.60% 

UC 3 - 
IDisc UC 5 – 

Int 
Locality 

All = 
45.26% 

NE=42.93 
% 

All = 55.8% 
NE = 52.39% 

All = 
54.55% 

NE = 
51.38% 

All = 
54.95% 

NE = 
51.21% 

 

Using TRFT reporting, 2017/18 baseline: All = 45%,  
NE = 41% 

 

UC/KPI 
11 

Average length of stay to below 
national intermediate care target 
(general rehabilitation) (beds only) 

Reduce 
 

Less than 21 

UC 3 - 
IDisc UC 5 – 

Int 
Locality 

G 
Year end 
= 20.25 
average 

G 
19.2 av 

A 
31 av 

A 
25 av 

 Q1 = 17, 19 , 22 = average of 19.3 
Q2 = 31,31,31 = average of 31 
Q3 = 21,16,38 = average of 25 

 

UC/KPI 
12 

Average length of stay to below 
national intermediate care target 
(specialist rehabilitation) (beds only) 
 

Reduce 

 

Less than 
42 

UC 3 - 
IDisc UC 5 – 

Int 
Locality 

A 
Year end = 

47.0 
average 

A 
47.3 av 

G 
40.3 

G 
40.3 

 Q1 = 44, 74, 28 = 48.6 (amended at Q2) 
Q2 40,43,38 = average of 40.3 
Q3 55,34,32 = average of 40.3 

UC/ 
KPI 13 

Delayed transfer of care from 
hospital (TRFT) (I&AF 127e). Reduction 3.5% 

UC 3 – 
IDis 

G  
1.5% 

A  
3.9% 

G 
3.44% 

 

A 
4.4% 

 Oct 3.3%, Nov 4.6%, Dec 5.2% = quarter average of 4.4% 
The national standard is a maximum of 3.5% of total occupied bed 
days taken up by delayed transfers of care, the standard is not 
currently being met.  

UC/ 
KPI 14 

Number of A&E attendances from 
care home residents (local) Reduction 3400 

(850 per qtr) 

UC 6 – 
Care Homes 

G  
477 

G 
April / May 

115 

G 
232 

G 
223 

 April 53, May 62 
Jul 62, Aug 86, Sep 84 = green 
Oct 67, Nov 72, Dec 84 = green223 
 UC/ 

KPI 15 
Number of unscheduled hospital 
admissions Care Homes Reduction 

1950 
(490 per qtr) 

UC 6 – 
Care Homes 

G  
311 

G 
April / May 

258 

G 
450 

G 
443 

 April 126, May 132 
Jul 141, Aug 133, Sep 176 = green 
Oct 145, Nov 132, Dec 166 = 443 = green 

 

P
age 191


	Agenda
	6 Minutes of the previous meeting
	7 Autism Strategy - Update
	8 Rotherham Loneliness Action Plan 2020 - 2022
	9 Integrated Care Partnership Place Plan 2020-2022
	Rotherham Integrated Care P Place Plan appendix

	10 Carers Framework for the Future 2020-21
	Carers Framework

	11 NHS Operational Planning and Contract Guidance 2020/21
	Rotherham ICP Place Board�
	�The People Plan ‘package’, including…�
	ICSs and System �Planning
	Mental Health �
	Elective Care
	��Urgent & Emergency �Care���
	Outpatient Transformation �
	Cancer �
	Prevention�
	Primary and Community Services
	Primary Care Networks
	Increasing the Number of GPs
	Primary Care
	Primary Care 

	13 Terms of Reference
	Terms of Reference 2020 refresh Appendix

	15 Integrated Care Partnership Place Board Minutes
	16 ICP Place Plan Q3 Performance
	Q3 Perf Rep cover
	Q3 ICP Performance Report - Place Board 04 03 2020


